oo e W 1

Cremw P8 LEEE







R A
PR
777 -

LAY %,
A A
755 Jff/

CONTENTS




01 Company Information
03 Vision & Mission

05 Environment Excellence
07 Product Portfolio

09 Chairman’s Message

11 CEQ’s Message

13 Notice of Annual General Meeting

15 Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

21 Statement of Compliance of the Code of
Corporate Governance

23 Report of the Audit Committee

25 Review Report to the Members on

Statement of Compliance with the
Code of Corporate Governance

26 Auditors’ Report to the Members

29 Unconsolidated Balance Sheet

31 Unconsolidated Profit and Loss Account

32 Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

33 Unconsolidated Cash Flow Statement

34 Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

35 Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

66 Key Operating and Fnancial Data for Six Years

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNT

69 Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

71 Auditors' Report to the Members

73 Consolidated Balance Sheet

75 Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

76 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

i i | Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
AN 78 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
.79 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
\12& Patterns of Share Holding

“\\‘\\‘\\.\“ \
wl2d.\  Proxy Form




COMPANY INFO

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez, O.B.E, H.Pk. Chairman

Mr. Zameer Mohammed Choudrey Chief Executive

Mr. Mohammad Younus Sheikh Director

Mr. Arshad Mehmood Chaudhary Director

Mr. Dawood Pervez Director

Mr. Muhammad Irfan A. Sheikh Director Finance & CFO
Ms. Najma Pirzada Director

Audit Committee

Mr. Mohammad Younus Sheikh Chairman

Mr. Dawood Pervez
Ms. Najma Pirzada

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Mr. Muhammad Irfan A. Sheikh Chairman
Mr. Mohammad Younus Sheikh

Mr. Dawood Pervez

Company Secretary
Ms. Sehar Husain

Registered / Head Office

Bestway Building, 19-A, College Road,
F-7 Markaz, Islamabad.

Tel: +92 (0) 51 265 4856 ~ 64

Fax: +92 (0) 51 265 4865

E-mail: management@bestway.com.pk

Plant Sites

Hattar

Suraj Gali Road, Village Shadi, Hattar, Distt. Haripur,
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Pakistan.

Tel: 492 (0) 995 639 261 ~ 3, Fax: +92 (0) 995 639 265
E-mail: gmworks1@bestway.com.pk

Faroogia

12 km, Taxila-Haripur Road,

Faroogia, Teh. & Distt. Haripur,

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Pakistan.

Tel: +92 (0) 995 639 501~3 Fax: +92 (0) 995 639 505
E-mail: gmworks2@bestway.com.pk







~ Toproduce High Quality Cement
at the Lowest Cost
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MISSION

e (Consistently produce high quality cement

e Endeavor to be the lowest cost producer

e Achieve 20% of the market share of North Zone in
the short term and Ultimately 30% in the longer term

e Consistently maintain a high standard of customer
service

e (Continue to invest in human resource through
training, development and promotions from within
whenever possible in order to meet future expansion
needs

e (Continue to set aside adequate funds from net

profits for fulfilling its various social responsibili ties

particularly in the field of education and health
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ENVIRONMENT
EXCELLENCE

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit. Quisgue at iaculis eros.
Curabitur ut velit sagittis, lacinia eros sit amet, fermentum dui. Sed velit erat, ornare et
tellus vitae, ultricies efficitur velit. Nulla at dui quis mauris suscipit ultrices. Quisque
vitae nisi sed mauris ultricies venenatis. Donec ex nibh, lacinia nec felis sit amet,
pellentesque luctus massa. Donec imperdiet neque neque, quis convallis ligula

posuere sit amet. Aenean posuere rutrum cursus. Donec magna risus, faucibus vitae

odio quis, fringilla facilisis massa.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 22nd Annual General Meeting of Bestway Cement Limited (the Company) will be held at
Bestway Building, 19-A, College Road, F-7 Markaz, Islamabad at 12:00 noon on Wednesday, 14th October, 2015 to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the minutes of previous Annual General Meeting held on September 23, 2014.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts for the year ended June 30, 2015 together with the Directors’
and Auditors’ Reports thereon and the Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance.

3. To approve and declare final cash dividend of 25% in addition to 75% interim dividends already paid, as
recommended by the Board of Directors.

4. To appoint auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2016. The present
auditors M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. retire and being eligible, offer themselves for rezppointment.

PECIAL BUSINESS

consider and if deemed fit, to pass the following resolution under Section 208 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
or without modification, as recommended by the Directors:-

VED THAT pursuant to the requirements of Section 208 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the
pany be and is hereby authorized to acquire upto 100,000,000 ordinary shares of Pakcem Limited
bsidiary) at the applicable quoted price of such shares on the Stock Exchanges on the date of purchase.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT investment already made by the Company in Pakcem Limited in the form of equity
investment be and is hereby approved.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the above said resolution shall be valid for one year and the Chief Executive
Officer and/or the Chief Financial Officer of the Company be and are hereby singly empowered and authorized
to undertake the decision of the said investment of shares as and when deemed appropriate and necessary
in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders and to take all steps and actions necessary,
incidental and ancillary for the acquisition of shares of Pakcem Limited including execution of any and all
documents and agreements as may be required in this regard and to do all acts, matters, deeds and things as
may be necessary or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to the spirit and intent of the special resolution
for making investment from time to time.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT subsequent to the above said equity investment, the Chief Executive Officer
and/or the Chief Financial Officer of the Company be and are hereby authorized singly to dispose off, through

any mode, a part or all of equity investment made by the Company from time to time as and when deemed
appropriate and necessary in the best interest of the Company.”

OTHER BUSINESS

6. Any other business with the permission of the chair.

Islamabad:
September 12, 2015




NOTES

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from October 8, 2015 to October 14, 2015 (both days
inclusive). No transfer will be accepted for registration during this period. Transfers received in order at Technology Trade
(Pvt) Ltd, Dagia House, 241-C, Block-2, PE.C.H.S., Off: Shahrah-e-Quaideen, Karachi upto the close of business on
October 07, 2015 will be treated in time to attend the Annual General Meeting.

1. A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote
in place of the member. The Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of
the Company, 19-A, College Road, F-7 Markaz, Islamabad not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the
meeting.

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he/she herself/himself is a member of the Company, except that a corporation
may appoint a person who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxy is deposited by a member with the
‘Company, all such instruments shall be rendered invalid.

For CDC Account Holders/Corporate Entities:
In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

4. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and NIC numbers shall be mentioned
on the form.

Attested copies of NIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

5.

8. The proxy shall produce his original NIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

7. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be
submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

8. Shareholders are informed that w.e.f. July 01, 2015 rate of withholding tax has been increased to 17.5% in respect of
non filers and 12.5% for filers of the income tax returns. The shareholders are advised to e-file their returns as the
Department places the names of the e-filers on their website and to provide their NTN to the Shares Registrars of the
Company for availing the benefit of lower withholding rate.

9. Members are requested to provide copies of their valid CNICs, mandatory for dispatch of dividend warrants and also
promptly notify any changes in their addresses.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 160(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984

This Statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business to be transacted at the Anhual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on October 14th, 2015:

Following the acquisition of majority shares in Pakcem Limited (formerly, Lafarge Pakistan cement Limited), the Company
formally assumed management control of the company on 22 April 2015. At present, the Company has a shareholding in
Pakcem Limited of 88.20% and the Board of Directors and management of the Company is excited about the aforesaid
addition to the Company’s portfolio and committed to adding efficiencies and synergies where possible resulting in better
returns for all stakeholders.

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on September 12, 2015 has already approved the proposal
of this equity investment in Pakcem Limited. The Company is planning to acquire up to 100,000,000 shares in Pakcem
Limited at the applicable quoted price of such shares on the Stock Exchanges on the date of purchase (but in no event at
a price greater than Rs.17 per share). The Company expects significant dividends from this equity investment which will
eventually enhance the return on investment of the shareholders of the Company. The Directors have carried out their due
diligence for the proposed investment and consider this enhanced control of shareholding in Pakcem limited to be a
beneficial strategic investment.

Keeping in view the benefit derived from this investment, approval of the shareholders is solicited for passing the special
resolutions specified in the notice of meeting.

The directors have no interest in the special business.

Annual Report 2015
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board of Directors take pleasure in presenting their report together with the Company’s Financial Statements for the
year ended 30 June, 2015 and the Auditors’ Report thereon.

Overview of the Economy

The country recorded GDP growth of 4.2% for the fiscal year ended 30 June, 2015 which is a slight improvemnent over
growth of 4.0% for the year before. Large Scale Manufacturing (LSM) could not perform better with growth remaining at
2.5% for the first three quarters as compared to 4.6% of the corresponding period last vear. The construction sector
registered a growth of 7.0% against a growth of 7.2% last year. Acceleration in the construction activity in the country
primarily resulted from execution of various infrastructure projects and increased investment in small scale construction.
While interest rates and inflation witnessed a decreasing trend with inflation registering its all-time low since 2003, during
the year, power shortage remained the single largest impediment to economic growth,

Industry Overview

Domestic demand grew by 8% from 26.1 million tonnes to 28.2 million tonnes. Exports on the other hand, registered a
decline of 12% from 8.1 million tonnes to 7.2 million tonnes mainly due to slower demand and competitive prices over the
corresponding period last year. Overall industry dispatches slightly increased from 34.2 million tonnes to 385.4 million
tonnes during the reporting period.

umption of Management Control
ing the acquisition of majority shares in Lafarge Pakistan Cement Limited (now known as Pakcem Limited), Bestway
ssumed management control of the company on 22 April, 2015.

Directors andmanagement of your Company is excited about the addition of Pakcem to Bestway'’s portfolio
itted to adding efficiencies and synergies where possible resulting in better returns for all stakeholders.

uant to the acquisition of LPCL, the Company, is in its completion stage of acquiring 300, 002 shares representing
% of the issued share capital of Ecocem Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited held by Lafarge Industrial Ecology International for a
consideration of Rs. 22 million.

PRODUCTION & 2015 Tonnes 2014 Tonnes Increase Percentage

SALESREVIEW Tonnes Increase

Clinker production 4,043,634 3,869,025 174,609 4.5% ]
Cement production 4,486,530 4,368,750 117,780 2.7%

Cement sales 4,528,025 4,371,841 156,184 3.5%

The year 2014-15 proved to be another year of fierce competition for cement producers. Your Company persevered not
only in successfully increasing its market share in the north zone from 17% to 21.3%, but has become the largest cement
producer in the country. Despite competition in international markets, Bestway continued to be one of the largest
exporters of cement to Afghanistan and India.

Operating Highlights

The Company recorded sales of Rs. 38.7 billion compared to Rs. 37.2 billion during the preceding year, which is an
increase of 4.2%. Net turnover amounted to Rs. 30.5 billion compared to Rs. 29.0 billion for the preceding year. This
increase of 5.4% was mainly due to increase in domestic demand and stable retention prices during the year.

Gross profit increased to Rs. 1 2.6 billion from Rs. 11.4 billion last year. This increase of 10.3% was due to higher turnover
and better retention prices.

During the year under review, Bestway managed to reduce its financial charges to Rs. 387 million from Rs. 462 million of last
year. The decrease of 16.3% resulted mainly from healthy cash flows and lower mark-up rates compared with,,last A

Profit before taxation for the year ended 30 June, 2015 stood at Rs. 11.6 billion as comparad to Rs. ﬂ%% llion 1 orthe‘:-** '
previous year. Profit after taxation for the year amounted to Rs. 8.7 billion as compared to Rs. 7.9 billion for the yearended =

30 June, 2014. ==




Earnings per share of the Company for the year ended 30 June, 2015 stood at Rs. 14.9 as against restated EPS of Rs. 14.7
for the year ended 30 June, 2014,

Balance Sheet

Your Company continued to discharge its repayment obligations on all types of loans on a timely basis. The Company’s
total borrowings as at 30 June, 2015 stood at Rs. 25.8 billion compared to Rs. 2.4 billion for the same period last year. This
increase in borrowings was due to acquisition of Pakcem Limited by the Company during the year.

The capital and reserves of your Company grew to Rs. 25.4 billion as compared to Rs. 22.5 billion for the year ended 30
June, 2014.

Net current liabilities on 30 June, 2015 stood at Rs. 855 million against net current assets of Rs. 785 million on 30 June
2014. This change occurred primarily as a result of Rs. 3 billion worth of instalments of the long term financing falling due
within one year of the balance sheet date.

_Other Investments
‘Your Company’s investment in United Bank Limited continues to be highly profitable for the Company. The Bank’s profit
before tax for the year ended 31 December, 2014 stood at Rs. 35.6 billion against Rs. 28.9 billion for the corresponding

... . period fast year which represents an increase of 23%.

We are delighted to inform you that the bank paid out a cash dividend of 115% for itsyear ended 31 December, 2014 thus
provnding a return of Rs. 1,124 million on your investment in the Bank as compared to Rs. 983 million for the year ended
31 December, 2013.

Contribution to the National Exchequer

Your Company is among the largest tax payers in the country. During the year under review, Bestway Cement contributed
to the exchequer more than Rs. 7.1 billion on account of sales tax and excise duty and Rs. 1.9 billion on account of income
tax. In addition, your Company pays large amounts on account of various indirect taxes to the federal, provincial and local
governments.

Appropriation

The directors and management team of your Company are mindful of providing a superior return to the shareholders. In
view of superb performance by your Company during the current period, the directors feel great pleasure in
recommending a final dividend of Rs. 2.5 per share. Three Interim dividends of Rs. 2.5 each per share were declared along
with quarterly resuits of the company and have been paid out during the period. The total dividend is to be approved by
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 14 October, 2015.

Plants’ Performance

Your Company’s management follows an elaborate plan of preventative maintenance, which it has adopted right from the
beginning. This proactive approach ensures efficient and stable operations with minimum disruptions. Our well-knit team
of dedicated managers, engineers, technicians and other members of the management and administrative staff play key
role in the successful implementation of this plan.

During the year under review, all our cement plants and waste heat recovery plants operated satisfactorily.

Alternative Energy & CPP Initiatives
Cement manufacturing is an energy-intensive process. Power represents one of the largest costs of production. The
* gurrent power crisis in the country has necessitated a shift from conventional fossil fuels to alternate energy solutions.

The management of your Company has decided to setup one waste heat recovery power plant at Pakcem Limited's Kallar
Kahar operations with a generation capacity of 12MW. The implementation of this project will not'only generate 12 MW

- power, but also reduce emission of waste gases and positively impact the environment. The project is at the outset and is
expected to be fully operational in the third quarter of 2016-17.

The Company countered its reliance on the national grid by launching two 6MW and 7.5MW waste heat mvery; pewar
plants at Hattar and Faroogia p!ants Both plants became operational during June, 2015.

This is an important step in energy conservation for your Company, making it a forerunner in adopting \
 all four operations. These projects will significantly reduce Company’s dependence on external source
:'heiping in reduction of cost of production and improving operational efficiency.

Quaﬂty Assurance i

Bestway Cement is a company driven by efficiency and quality consciousness. With strict quamy control proceﬁsjms In
place, the Company has deployed high quality control equipment at the plants. Bestway’s laboratories are equipped with
state-of-the-art x-ray fluorescent analyser and diffractometer and were the first in Pakistan to introduce the technology. By
virtue of this equipment, the Company has been able to consistently produce better quality cement than is currently
available in the country.
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Marketing

Bestway is the largest cement producer in Pakistan. Your company continues to be a top brand both in the domestic
market, as well as various international markets, where it is firmly established as a premum brand. Bestway Cement
continues to maintain its position as the largest exporter of cement to Afghanistan and India. Your company has been able
to achieve its status as the market leader due to its consistently superior quality, effective marketing strategy, customer
care and sheer dedication of its marketing team.

Your company is among the few in the country which are certified to export its cement to South Africa, India and Sri Lanka.
it has recently acquired EC-Certificate of Conformity also. These certifications enable Bestway to pursue export
opportunities in India, South Africa, its neighbouring countries, the European Community and countries where EC
certification is required.

Acquisition of Lafarge Pakistan Cement Limited has further strengthened Bestway’s standing in both domestic and
international markets.

Training and Development

Bestway places great importance on the training, development and education of its personnel. In order to keep its
workforce abreast with best operational techniques and practices, technical and general managerial training courses are
organised for various departments and categories of personnel. Staff members are aiso sent on courses, workshops and
seminars organised externally by other institutions. The company actively encourages and assists its employees in pursuit
of professional development and career enhancement.

As part of its commitment to skills development and grooming of workforce, Bestway regularly employs freshly qualified
graduates, professionals and even unskilled human resource. There are carefully planned training programmes in place to
ensure that these personnel are equipped with necessary knowledge, hands-on experience and confidence to become
skilled and productive resource.

At any given time, Bestway employs more than 100 trainee engineers, management trainees and apprentices. Trainee
ineers undergo intensive training in electrical, mechanical and mining departments, while management trainees are
ed in marketing, finance, personnel and administration where they are carefully trained to become effective
in the future. Apprentices are employed in various technical departments at all the factories. While some of
s and apprentices are retained in the company, others move on to other industries where they successfully
he foundation provided to them at Bestway Cement through the training imparted to them for the
nt of their careers and contributing towards the development of the country,

, Safety and Environment

a responsible corporate citizen, Bestway Cement recognises the importance of health and safety not only for its own
employees, but also for non-company personnel in the successful conduct of our business. Your company is therefore
committed to preventing injury at workplace and strives for continuous improvement in its environment, health and safety
management and performance.

Initiatives including trainings on health and safety, safety meetings, incident reporting, safety audits, safety champions,
good housekeeping and hygiene controls are actively and consistently pursued to instil safe behaviour in all personnel.
Your Company has strived to make industrial operations safer, and has established numerous directives and standards to
increase awareness among both employees and contractors. These advisories are to be strictly adhered to across the
organisation and shared with external stakeholders as best practices.

Bestway Cement actively pursues protection and upgradation of the environment by ensuring that its plants continue to
comply with established environmental quality standards at all times. Our plants not only meet the stringent environmental
quality standards prescribed by the Environment Protection Authority of Pakistan, they even surpass the international
standards for emissions. In addition to having a robust environmental control mechanism in place to ensure cleaner
environment, Bestway also conducts a quarterly review of its production facilities through an independent expert.

Bestway believes that it is possible to create a symbiotic relationship between multiple industries, so waste from one 4
company can be used as fuel or raw material for another, thus preserving natural resources. Our plants are 1SO ey
14001:2004 Environmental Management System (EMS) certified, and the company regularly participates in various i |
environment uplift programmes including tree plantation drives and quarry rehabilitation initatives. The wellbeing of the |
social environment in which Bestway operates is considered an integral part of the company’s success.

You would be delighted to learn that for the fifth year running your company has been given the prestigious Enwronmem s
Excellence Award by the National Forum for Environment and Health for all of its factories.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

As a business conglomerate with strong local roots, Bestway invests in its operations for the long term and thus
appreciates that it has a special responsibility towards society. This starts with our own employees, whose health and
safety is one of our top priorities. Your company plays an active part in the socic-economic development of local
communities such as improving access to health services and education, taking part in urban development and
environmental conservation programs and helping create businesses and jobs.

Bestway Foundation, the charitable trust of the Bestway Group to which your company is a major contributor, was
established in the year 1997. It works in close association with Bestway Cement and its main goal is provision of education
in rural commuinities. The foundation is also certified from the Pakistan Centre for Philanthropy.

Quality education is fundamental to building a strong and vibrant society. This aspect has long been neglected especially
in the rural areas where masses are still deprived of good educational facilities. Bearing this in mind, the foundation
constructed a brand new college building in a far flung and backward area of Gujar Khan Tehsil to provide free and quality g
educational facilities to girls who would otherwise go without higher education due to lack of a girls college in the area.
The project consisting of numerous classrooms, faboratories, facilities for extracurricular activities and accommodation for
the residence of the faculty members, was entirely funded by the foundation and became operational in 2011 at a cost af -3
" Rs. 30 million. e pike

~ In keeping with its philosophy, the foundation decided to establish a large state-of-the-art school in District Chakwal.
Suitable land was earmarked for the project, building plans were finalised and necessary arrangements were made last e
year to commence the construction. Work is progressing at full pace and the school is expected to be complete by endof
December 2015 at a cost of Rs. 57.6 million. i :

in August 2005, the Foundation adopted 29 dysfunctional government schools in underprivileged rural areas as gl
Public-Private Partnership initiative. It spent a huge amount of money on renovating dilapidated buildings, provision ©

furniture, science and computer laboratories and necessary teaching aids, hiring of new teaching staff andpmpeg.
retraining of the few existing teachers. Through tireless work and huge investment those schools were turned inte centrt

of excellence where more than 4,300 students are educated every year. The foundation has remained fully committedto
the initiative ever since and devoted a huge amount of resources and time annually on ensuring that quality education is i
imparted from those schools. Having achieved its aim of reviving those schools to a high standard, the foundation handed
back those schools to the government during the year under review. o

The foundation continues to provideselmlarsh’ips- to a large number of talented students throughout the country, avashtd"’,,,
majority of whom are medical and engineering students, who for want of sufficient resources are unable to continue their

higher studies.

During the year, the foundation also provided financial assistance of more than Rs. 50 million to various educational and
health institutions. Some of the beneficiaries of that assistance include Institute of Business Administration, Muhammad
Gulistan Khan Foundation, Layton Rahmatullah Benevolent Trust, National Society for Mentally and Emotionally
Handicapped Children, Forman Christian College University, Family Educational Services Foundation, Northern University
Peshawar, Care Foundation and Kaghan Memorial Trust.

In addition to pursuing its core objective of improving education, Bestway Foundation also provides financial assistance
to a large number of widows and indigents of the local communities in form of monthly stipends.

In the area of basic health, free medical facilities are provided to the local communities through dispensaries located at our A
factory premises. During the year under review alone, more than 14,000 patients benefited from those free ¢5peg§aﬁas -

7,

: : S o
Your company also contributes generously towards various welfare causes such as flood relief activities and projects of
social and communal uplift. .

Changes in the Board of Directors
The directors wish to report the following changes in the Board of Directors:

: Syed Asif Shah, Mr. Mehmood Afzal and Mr. Ghulam Sarwar Malik resigned from the Board of the Company effective from
/24 April 2015, The casual vacancies created by their resignations were filled by Ms. Najma Naheed Pirzada, Mr. Dawood
' Pervez and Mohammed Younus Sheikh with effect from the same date.
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The new Board of Directors is as follows:

Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez - Chairman

Mr. Zameer Mohammed Choudrey - CEO

Mr. Muhammad irfan Anwar Sheikh - Director Finance & CFO
Mr. Mohammed Younus Sheikh

Mr. Dawood Pervez

Mr. Arshad Mahmood Chaudhary

Ms. Najma Naheed Pirzada (Independent Director)

Future Prospects
Bestway's acquisition of Lafarge Pakistan Cement Limited should further enable the company to have deeper and wider
market penetration, broader product offering and even better margins through economies of scale.

Respite has been given to power tariff owing to reduced global fuel prices. However, Bestway’s decision to set up waste
heat recovery power plant at Pakcem, Kallar Kahar operation should considerably support the company in mitigating the
impact of power shortages and tariff hikes in the future.

Coal prices have remained fairly stable and no major increase in prices is anticipated in the foreseeable future. As fuel
represents one of the largest costs of production, stable coal prices bode well for the company.

Improving law and order situation and general economic environment in the country, should result in better prospects for
the cement industry of Pakistan. Inflation and interest rates are inclined to remain low for some time to come. This, coupled
with the government’s focus on infrastructure development, is expected 1o encourage economic activity in the country.
Projects like Pakistan China Economic Corridor and increased allocation in Public Sector Development Programme
(PSDP) in particular, will generate positive impact on cement demand in the domestic market.

Bestway is one of the most efficient and lowest cost producers in the industry. This should enable Bestway to easily
rb any unforeseen cost pressures. Increasing cement consumption should result in higher prices which will help the
any to maintain healthy margins.

firmly established as the leading brand in Afghanistan and India and your company will seek to expand its share
ets. Afghanistan continues to generate good demand for Pakistani cement. in particular Bestway. With
nd increased movement of goods across the Wagah border, Indian market holds a lot of promise for your

e always, your management is cognisant of the challenges that lie ahead and will continue to make all out dforts to
ensure further growth and superior returns in the ensuing years.

The directors are pleased to state that:

*  The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company fairly present its state of affairs, the results of
its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

- The Company has maintained proper books of account.

*  Appropriate accounting policies have been adopted and consistently applied in preparation of financial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement. =3 .

* International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial
statements.

*  The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and momtomd The system:
itseif is also subject to continuous review for enhancement wherever and whenever necessary.

*  There are no doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

*  There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the iiszing
regulations.

*  None of the directors, executives, spouses and minor children transacted any shares of the C
‘book closure periods notified in the year under review.

*  Key financial data for the last six years is given in subsequent pages.

*  Outstanding taxes, duties and charges have been disclosed in the financial statements.

¢  Astatement of the pattern of shareholding in the Company as at 30 June 2015 of certain classes of share ho
whose disclosure is required under the Code of Corporate Governance h_?g in subsequent pages.




s Aftendance by each director in the 8 Board Meetings held during the year was as follows:

Name of the Member No. of Meetings Attended

-]

Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez

Mr. Zameer Mohammed Choudrey
Mr. Arshad Mehmood Chaudhary
Mr. Muhammad Irfan Anwar Sheikh
Mr. Ghulam Sarwar Malik

Mr. Mehmood Afzal

Syed Asif Shah

Mr. Dawood Pervez

Mr. Mohammed Younus Sheikh
Ms. Najma Naheed Pirzada

—“ W o|®| |||~

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend some of the Board meetings.

e Attendance by each director in the 4 Audit Committee meetings held during the year was as follows:

Name of the Member No. of Meetings Attended

Syed Asif Shah

Mr. Ghulam Sarwar Malik

Mr. Mehmood Afzal

Mr. Mohammed Younus Sheikh
Mr. Dawood Pervez

Ms. Najma Naheed Pirzada

) (S SR o R o O

e  Attendance by each director in the 3 HR and Remuneration Committee meetings held during the year was as

follows:
Name of the Member No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. Muhammad Irfan Anwar Sheikh 3

Mr. Ghulam Sarwar Malik

Mr. Arshad Mehmood Chaudhary
Mr. Mohammed Younus Sheikh
Mr. Dawood Pervez

- = PN

Auditors
The present auditors, Messrs KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants retire at the conclusion of the meeting and
being eligible, have offered themselves for reappointment. The Audit Committee of the company having considered the
- matter recommend the mtirlng auditors for reappointment. T

er 12, 2015
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Thi; statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (CCG) contained in the Listing
Regulation # 35 of listing regulations of the Karachi Stock Exchange Limited (KSE) for the purpose of establishing a
framework of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate

governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

i

Under the policy of the Company of encouraging representation of independent non-executive directors and
directors representing minority interests on its board of directors the Company the Board was restructured through
resignation of the executive directors as mentioned at # 4 of this report and co-option of non-executive/indeperident
directors in their place. The representative position is as follows:

Name of the Director Representative Position
Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez Non-Executive
Mr. Zameer Mohammed Choudrey Executive
Mr. Arshad Mehmood Chaudhary Non-Executive
Mr. M. Irfan A Sheikh Executive
Mr. Dawood Pervez Non-Executive
r. Mohammad Younus Sheikh Non-Executive
Najma Naheed Pirzada Independent Director

irectors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,
luding this Company.

All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment of
any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a
defaulter by that stock exchange.

Three executive directors Mr. Ghlam Sarwar Malik, Mr. Mehmood Afzal and Syed Asif Shah resigned from the board
of directors of the Company during the year ending June 30, 2015 and the vacant posts were filled in by co-option of
Mr. Dawwod Pervez, Mr. Mohammad Younus Sheikh and Ms. Najma Naheed Pirzada in the meeting of the Board held
on April 24, 2015.

The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company alongwith its supporting policies and procedures.

The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the.
Company. A complete record of the particulars of the significant policies alongwith the dates on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decision on material transactions, including appointment
and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of CEO, other executive and £
non-executive directors, have been taken by the board/shareholders. e

The meetings of the board were presided by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the board for

this purpose and the board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the board meetings, alongwith thess.
agenda and working papers were circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the ting ;’ﬁ;—g
were appropriately recorded and circulated. A

Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez, Mr. Zameer Mohammed Choudrey, Mr. M. Irfan A. Sheikh and Mr. A
Chaudhary are exempted from directors training programme due to 14 years of education and 15
on the board of listed company which covered this year’s compliance of Code of Corporate Go
directors training programme for the rest of the Board will be arranged in the coming mon_tné;; !



. 16.

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their
remuneration and terms and conditions of their employment.

11. The Directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the CCG and fully
describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

12. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the CEO and the CFO before approval by the
board. :

13. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that disclosed
in the pattern of shareholdings. e

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the CCG. ;

15. The board has formed an audit committee. It comprises of three members, and all the members including Chaf
of the committee are non-executive directors while one of them is an independent director. 4,

The meetings of the audit committee were held at least once in every quarter prior to the approval of lruerﬁ‘n I
results of the Company. As required by the CCG the terms of reference of the committee have been fo
advised to the committee for compliance.

17. The Board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of three members, of whom the Chairman
is an executive director while the other two are non-executive directors.

18. The board has set up an effective internal audit function which is working since inception. The members of the
department are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies
and procedures of the Company.

19. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under me
Quality Control Review Programme of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of me :
partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all Fta_
partners are in compliance with the International Federation of Accountants’ (IFAC) guidelines on the code of ethlc:s.,_}l_
as adopted by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. 2

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services exmm_ Y
in accordance with the listing regulations of the KSE and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed the »:g
IFAC guidelines in this regard. .

21. The ‘closed period’, prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and business decisions, which may mater
affect the market price of the Company’s securities, was determined and intimated to the Directors, emplﬂwas ang m\;
the Stock Exchange. :

22. Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at nncethmugh h
Exchange.

23. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with.

islamabad.
September 12, 2015
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The role of the Board Audit Committee in the context of the Board’s broader governance framework is to oversee:

The integrity of financial statements;

The appointment, remuneration, qualification, independence and performance of External Auditors
The performance and leadership of Internal audit function

The outcome of Internal Audit activities

The effectiveness of system of internal controls and risk management

Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

Compliance by management with constraints imposed by Board

The Audit Committee has concluded its review of the conduct and operations of the Company during 2015, and reports
that:

*  The Financial Statements, Directors Report and other information in the Annual Report have been reviewed by the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. They acknowledge their responsibiiity for true and fair
presentation of the Company’s financial condition and results, compliance with regulations and applicable
accounting standards and establishment and maintenance of internal controls and systems of the Company.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied. Applicable International Accounting Standards were
llowed in preparation of financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis, for the financial year ended
ne, 2015, which present fairly the state of affairs, results of operations, profits, cash flows and changes in equity
ompany for the year under review.

preparation of Financial Statements is in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards as
plicable in Pakistan and requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments were
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under current circumstances.

*  Proper and adequate accounting records have been maintained by the Company in accordance with the Companies
Ordinance, 1984. The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Fourth Schedule to the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 and the external reporting is consistent with Management processes and adequate for shareholder
needs.

e The Company has issued a “Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance” which has also been
reviewed and certified by the Auditors of the Company.

*  Understanding and compliance with Company codes and policies has been affirmed by the Management and
employees of the Company individually. Employees have confirmed and signed their understanding of the
Company’s code of ethics.

* Al direct or indirect trading and holdings of Company’s shares by Directors & executives or their spouses were
notified in writing to the Company Secretary along with the price, number of shares, form of share certificates and
nature of transaction which were notified by the Company Secretary to the Board within the stipulated time. All such
holdings have been disclosed in the Pattern of Shareholdings. The Annual Secretarial Compliance Certificates are
being filed reguiarly within stipulated time.

*  Closed periods were duly determined and announced by the Company, precluding the Directors, the Chief Exe
and executives of the Company from dealing in Company shares, prior to each Board meeting ir
announcement of interim / final results, distribution to shareholders or any other business decision, which unlﬁ -
materially affect the share market price of Company, along with maintenance of confidentiality of all mmimas
information.




internal Audit

The Company’s system of internal control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for effectiveness and
adequacy. The internal control framework has been effectively implemented through an independent in-house
internal Audit function established by the Board which is independent of the External Audit function.

The Audit Committee has ensured the achievement of operational, compliance, risk management, financial reporting
and control objectives, safeguarding of the assets of the Company and the shareholders wealth at all levels within the

Company.

The Internal Audit function has carried out its duties under the charter defined by the Committee. The Committee has
reviewed material Internal Audit findings, taking appropriate action or bringing the matters to the Board’s attention
where required.

The Head of internal Audit has direct access to the Chairman of the Board Audit Committee and the Committee has
ensured staffing of personnel with sufficient internal audit acumen and that the function has all necessary access to
Management and the right to seek information and explanations.

During the year four Board Audit Committee meetings were held to ensure that the Audit Function effectively
performed its assigned task.

Coordination between the External and Internal Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and contribution to the
Company’s objectives, including a reliable financial reporting system and compliance with laws and regulations.

External Auditors

The statutory Auditors of the Company, KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, have completed their
Audit assignment of the “Company’s Financial Statements and the Statement of Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 30 June, 2015 and shall retire on the conclusion of the 22nd
Annual General Meeting.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed Audit observations and Audit Management Letter with the External
Auditors.

The Auditors have been allowed direct access to the Committee and the effectiveness, independence and objectivity
of the Auditors has thereby been ensured. The Auditors attended the General Meeting of the Company during the
year and have indicated their willingness to continue as Auditors.

The Audit Committee has recommended the reappointment of KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co,, Chartered Accountants, as
External Auditors of the Company for the year ending 30 June 2016.

lslamabad: Mohammad Younus Sheikh
30 August 2015 Chairman, Board Audit Committee
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate
Governance ("the Code") prepared by the Board of Directors of Bestway Cement Limited (“the Company") for the year
ended 30 June 2015 to comply with the requirements of Listing Regulation No 35 of the Karachi Stock Exchange where
the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Com pany. Our responsibility is to
review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it dees not and to highlight any
non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal
ontrol systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
¥hether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
ftiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

equires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,
8foFe the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party transactions distinguishing between
BlioNs carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are
BXecuted at arm's length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are
y required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
fansactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any
procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does
not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code
as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2015.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirement of the Code as reflected in the note
references where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

i.  Asdisclosed in point 9, none of the Directors obtained certification under directors' training program during the year
as required under clause Xl of the Code.

gimg T L <L,

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Islamabad: Chartered Accountants
12 September, 2015 Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi




AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated balance sheet of Bestway Cement Limited ("the Company*) as at 30 June
2015 and the related unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income,

unconsolidated cash flow statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming -

_part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare

and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards reguire that

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any
material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by
management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

(a) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance,
1984;

(b) in ouropinion-

(i) the unconsolidated balance sheet and unconsolidated profit and loss account together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books
of account and are further in accordance with accounting polices consistently applied;

(i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and

(i) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance
with the objects of the Company;

(c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated
balance sheet, unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income,
unconsolidated cash flow statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the
information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and
fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2015 and of the profit, its cash flows and changes in
equity for the year then ended; and

(d) in our opinion Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIil of 1980) was deducted by
the Company and deposited in Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

e T 5h,

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Islamabad: Chartered Accountants
12 September, 2015 Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi
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Unconsolidated Balance Sheet

As at 30 June, 2015

2015 2014
Note ———— Rupees in thousands
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 4 5,793,849 5,793,849
Share premium 3,225,770 3,225,770
Unappropriated profit 16,392,557 13,524,545
25412176 22,544 164
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing - secured 5 13,200,000 -
Long term musharaka - secured 6 /8,800,000 -
Long term advance 1,996 5,988
Deferred liabilities 7 4,661,847 4,798,556
26,663,843 4,804,544
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 8 5,772,574 4,899,142
Markup accrued 416,546 12,324
Short term borrowings - secured 9 835,809 2,373,832
Current portion of long term financing 5 1,800,000 .
Current portion of long term musharaka 6 1,200,000 -
Provision for taxation - net 138,860 160,738
10,163,789 7,446,036
62,239,808 34,794,745

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 10

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

==
CHIEF EXECUTIVE




Unconsolidated Balance Sheet

As at 30 June, 2015

2015 2014
Note = ———Rupees in thousands

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 11 24,658,980 24,224,367
Intangible asset 12 27,518 32,374
Investment property 13 345,905 345,785
Long term investments 14 27,804,701 1,862,803
Long term advance 4,003 8,006
Long term deposits 15 90,073 90,323

52,931,180 26,563,658
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 16 3,242,478 4,044,671
Stock in trade 17 1,768,488 1,932,612
Trade debts - considered good 18 746,333 571,981
Advances 19 393,711 400,784
Deposits and prepayments 20 12,056 21,518
Interest accrued 3,150 704
Other receivables 21 80,506 1,820
Due from Government agencies 22 693,161 1,040,735
Bank balances 23 2,368,745 216,262

9,308,628 8,231,087
62,239,808 34,794,745

DIRECTORE|CFO




Unconsolidated Profit and Loss Account

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

2015 2014
Note ——— Rupees in thousands

Turnover - net 24 30,509,548 28,950,528
Cost of sales 25 17,955,055 17,570,204
Gross profit 12,554,493 11,380,324
Administrative expenses 26 384,994 302,155
Distribution cost 27 746,302 706,974
Other expenses 28 732,265 596,702
Finance cost 29 /386,682 462,030
Other income 30 _ (1,296,585) (1,121,693)

953,658 946,168
Profit before taxation 11,600,335 10,434,156
Taxation 31 (2,932,910) (2,562,419)
Profit for the year | 8,667,925 7,871,737
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 35 14.96 13.59

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

— e
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Unconsolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

2015 2014
Rupees in thousands

Profit for the year 8,667,925 7,871,737
Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss :

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (8,370) (7,165)
Related tax effect 2,305 | 1,973
Total other compreshensive income (6.065) (5,192)
Total comprehensive income for the year 8,661,860 8,396,598

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

e B
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Unconsolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets

Depreciation

Amortization

Rental income from investment property

Profit on deposit accounts

Gain on remeasurement of investment property to fair value
Finance cost

Provision for staff retirement benefits

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stock in trade

Trade debts

Advances

Deposits and prepayments

Other receivables

Due from Government agencies
(Decrease) / Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid
Staff retirement benefits paid
Income tax paid during the year

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions in property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets
Rent received from investment property
Decrease in long term advance

Profit on deposit accounts received

Decrease/ (Increase) to long term deposits
Acquisition of subsidiary

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term financing

Repayment of long term financing

Long term shirkat-ul-melk - repayments

Liability against asset subject to finance lease - repayments
Proceeds from long term musharika

Repayment of long term musharika

Dividend paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

-
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Note

36

2015

2014

Rupees in thousands

11,600,835 10,434,156
(12,347) (24,284)
1,181,281 1,061,031
4,856 5,919
(26,705) (24,639)
(65,420) (51,794)
(120) (31,791)
386,682 462,030
53,292 38,752
1,521,519 1,435,224
13,122,354 10,886,058
779,036 (327,402)
164,124 290,823
(174,352) (283,309)
7,073 (186,741)
9,462 43,080
(78,686) (499)
347,574 (111,104)
(898,790) 1,313,056
155,441 737,904
13,277,795 11,623,962
(113,417) (518,533)
(25,739) (13,962)
(1,926,865) (694,882)
(2,066,021) (1,227,377)
11,211,774 10,396,585
(1,476,026) (2,0086,300)
26,593 42,802
27,054 30,945
11 4,003
62,974 51,230
250 (57)
(25,941,898) -
(27,301,042) (1,877,377)
15,000,000 -
- (5,868,750)
- (200,000)
- (59,061)
10,000,000 -
- (300,000)
(5,220,226) (3,618,991)
19,779,774 (10,048,802)
3,690,506 (1,527,594)
(2,157,570) (629,976)
1,532,936 (2,157,570)
CFO




Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

Revenue
Issued, Share Unappropriated | Total
subscribed premium profit
and paid-up
capital
Rupees in thousand

Balance at 1 July 2013 5,793,849 3,225,770 9,424,002 18,443,621
Profit for the year - - 7,871,737 7,871,737
Other comprehensive income - - (5,192) (5,192)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 7,866,545 7,866,545
Transactions with owners,

recorded directly into equity
Dividend - Final 2013 @ Rs. 2 per share - - (1,158,770) (1,158,770)
Dividend - Interim @ Rs. 2 per share = C (1,158,770) (1,158,770)
Dividend - Interim @ Rs. 2.5 per share - - (1,448,462) (1,448,462)
Total transactions with owners,

recorded directly into equity - - (3,766,002) (3,766,002)
Balance at 30 June 2014 5,793,849 3,225,770 13,524,545 22,544,164
Balance at 1 July 2014 5,793,849 3,225,770 13,524,545 22,544,164
Profit for the year - - 8,667,925 8,667,925
Other comprehensive income - - (6,065) (6,065)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 8,661,860 8,661,860
Transactions with owners,

recorded directly into equity
Dividend - Final 2014 @ Rs. 2.5 per share - - (1,448,462) (1.448,462)
Dividend - Interim 2015 @ Rs. 2.5 per share - - (1,448,462) (1.448,462)
Dividend - Interim 2015 @ Rs. 2.5 per share - - (1,448,462) (1,448,462)
Dividend - Interim 2015 @ Rs. 2.5 per share - - (1,448,462) (1,448,462)
Total transactions with owners,

recorded directly into equity - - (5,793,848) (5,793,848)
Balance at 30 June 2015 5,793,849 3,225,770 16,392,557 25,412,176

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Bestway Cement Limited ("the Company") is a public company incorporated in Pakistan on 22 December 1993 under
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and is listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange Limited since 09 April 2001. The
Company is principally engaged in production and sale of cement. The Company's registered office is situated at
Bestway Building, 19-A, College Road F-7 Markaz, Islamabad. The Company is a subsidiary of Bestway (Holdings)
Limited, which holds 55.32% shares in the Company.

On April 22, 2015, the Company assumed management control of Pakcem Limited (formerly Lafarge Pakistan Cement
Limited) ("the subsidiary company"). Pursuant to Company's successful bid for 75.86% of Lafarge Pakistan's shares
for an enterprise value of USD 329 million in July 2014 and acquisition of another 12.07% shares of the target company
through the public offer process. Accordingly, Pakcem Limited has become a subsidiary of the Company during the
period.

The Company has agreed to acquire 300,002 share representing 50% of the issued share capital in Ecocem Pakistan
(Pvt.) Limited held by Lafarge Industrial Ecology International for a consideration of Rs. 22.4 million. Ecocem is in
the business of sorting, processing and selling solid municipal waste.

The Company is considering acquisition of 14,091,087 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each representing 12.23% in UBL
Insurers Limited (*UIL") currently held by the Abu Dhabi Group. The price is to be negotiated between the Buyer and
the Sellers. Currently, Bestway (Holdings) Limited and United Bank Limited, associated companies of "the Company"
jointly hold 85.60% shares in the Target Company along with management control. The proposed transaction will be
subject to necessary legal formalities.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Separate financial statements

These unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which
investments in subsidiary and associate are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on
the basis of reported results and net assets of the investees. Consolidated financial statements of the Company
are prepared separately.

Consequent to preparation of consolidated financial statements by consolidating the subsidiary company, the
Company has prepared its separate financial statements for the first time for the year ended 30 June 2015 and
also presented corresponding figures for the year ended 30 June 2014. This has resulted in all equity accounted
investments to be carried at cost.

Prior to the year ended 30 June 2015, the Company in its individual financial statements accounted for its
investments in associate using the equity method of accounting. Consequent to the preparation of separate
financial statements as mentioned above, the Company now accounts for those investments at cost as more
fully explained in note 3.10

The results of the Company, based on investments in associate accounted for under the equity method, are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

2.2 Statement of compliance
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standard Board as are notified under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In
case requirements differ, the provisions of or directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall
prevail,

2.3 Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
following:

- investment property has been measured at fair value; and
- liability related to staff retirement benefits are measured at values determined through actuarial valuation.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
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economic environment in which the Company operates. The unconsolidated financial statements are presented
in Pakistani Rupees (PKR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Figures have been
rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements is in conformity with the approved accounting standards
that requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the unconsolidated financial statements
is discussed in the ensuing paragraphs :

2.5.1 Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment on a regular
basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items
of property, plant and equipment's with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment
loss.

2.5.2 Provision for inventory obsolescence and doubtful receivables

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores, spare parts and loose tools and stock in trade on
a regular basis. Provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical
form of related stores, spare parts and loose tools, further carrying amount of stock in trade is adjusted
where the net realisable value is below the cost. Further, the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables, are assessed on a regular basis and if there is any doubt about the realizability of these
receivables, appropriate amount of provision is made.

2.5.3 Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by the taxation
authorities. Instances where the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income tax
department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material
nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

The Company also regularly reviews the trend of proportion of incomes between Presumptive Tax
Regime income and Normal Tax Regime income and the change in proportions, if significant, is accounted
for in the year of change.
2.5.4 Provision of staff retirement gratuity
The Company adopts certain actuarial assumptions as disclosed in note 8.2 to these unconsolidated
financial statements for determination of present value of defined benefit obligations. Any change in
these assumptions in future years might affect the carrying values of the provisions.
2.5.5 Provisions and contingencies

The Company reviews the status of all the legal cases on a regular basis. Based on the expected
outcome and lawyers' judgments, appropriate disclosure or provision is made.

2.5.6 Impairment of assets

In making an estimate of future cash flows from the Company’s assets including investment in associate,
the management considers estimated future cash flows and its ultimate net disposal value.
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2.5.7 Fair value of investment property

The Company regularly reviews the fair value of investment property, the estimate of fair values are
directly linked to market value conditions. Any change in estimate will effect the carrying value of
investment property with corresponding impact on profit and loss account.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2015:

Amendments to IAS 38 Intangible Assets and IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016) introduce severe restrictions on the use of revenue-based
amortization for intangible assets and explicitly state that revenue-based methods of depreciation cannot
be used for property, plant and equipment. The rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based
amortisation methods for intangible assets is inappropriate can be overcome only when revenue and
the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are ‘highly correlated’, or when the
intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue. The amendments are not likely to have an
impact on Company's unconsolidated financial statements.

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated unconsolidated financial statements’ — (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2015) replaces the part of IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate unconsolidated
financial statements’. IFRS 10 introduces a new approach to determining which investees should be
consolidated. The single model to be applied in the control analysis requires that an investor controls
an investee when the investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. IFRS 10 has
made consequential changes to IAS 27 which is now called ‘Separate unconsolidated financial statements’
and will deal with only separate unconsolidated financial statements. Certain further amendments have
been made to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 clarifying the requirements relating to accounting for
investment entities and would be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s unconsolidated financial statements.

IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015) replaces
IAS 31 ‘Interests in Joint Ventures’. Firstly, it carves out, from IAS 31 jointly controlled entities, those
cases in which although there is a separate vehicle, that separation is ineffective in certain ways. These
arrangements are treated similarly to jointly controlled assets/operations under IAS 31 and are now
called joint operations. Secondly, the remainder of IAS 31 jointly controlled entities, now called joint
ventures, are stripped of the free choice of using the equity method or proportionate consolidation; they
must now always use the equity method. IFRS 11 has also made consequential changes in IAS 28
which has now been named ‘Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures’. The amendments requiring
business combination accounting to be applied to acquisitions of interests in a joint operation that
constitutes a business are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
adoption of this standard is not likely to have an impact on Company’s unconsolidated financial statements.

IFRS 12 "Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015) combines the disclosure requirements for entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements (i.e. joint operations or joint ventures), associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities,
into one place. The adoption of this standard is not likely to have an impact on Company’s unconsolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015)
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and sets out disclosure requirements
for fair value measurements. IFRS 13 explains how to measure fair value when it is required by other
IFRSs. It does not introduce new fair value measurements, nor does it eliminate the practicability
exceptions to fair value measurements that currently exist in certain standards. The adoption of this
standard is not likely to have an impact on Company’s unconsolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 27 ‘Separate unconsolidated financial statements’ (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016). The amendments to IAS 27 will allow entities to use the equity
method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate
unconsolidated financial statements. The adoption of the amended standard is not likely to have an
impact on Company’s unconsolidated financial statements.

Agriculture: Bearer Plants [Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41] (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016). Bearer plants are now in the scope of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
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for measurement and disclosure purposes. Therefore, a company can elect to measure bearer plants
at cost. However, the produce growing on bearer plants will continue to be measured at fair value less
costs to sell under IAS 41 Agriculture. A bearer plant is a plant that: is used in the supply of agricultural
produce; is expected to bear produce for more than one period; and has a remote likelihood of being
sold as agricultural produce. Before maturity, bearer plants are accounted for in the same way as self-
constructed items of property, plant and equipment during construction. The adoption of the amended
standard is not likely to have an impact on Company’s unconsolidated financial statements.

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) [effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016]. The main
consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involve a
business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognised when a
transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a
subsidiary. The adoption of these amendments is not likely to have an impact on Company’s unconsolidated
financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 cycles (amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016). The new cycle of improvements contain amendments to the following standards:

- IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. IFRS 5 is amended to clarify
that if an entity changes the method of disposal of an asset (or disposal group) i.e. reclassifies an asset
from held for distribution to owners to held for sale or vice versa without any time lag, then such change
in classification is considered as continuation of the original plan of disposal and if an entity determines
that an asset (or disposal group) no longer meets the criteria to be classified as held for distribution,
then it ceases held for distribution accounting in the same way as it would cease held for sale accounting.

- IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments- Disclosures'. IFRS 7 is amended to clarify when servicing arrangements
are in the scope of its disclosure requirements on continuing involvement in transferred financial assets
in cases when they are derecognized in their entirety. IFRS 7 is also amended to clarify that additional
disclosures required by ‘Disclosures: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments
to IFRS7)’ are not specifically required for inclusion in condensed interim unconsolidated financial
statements for all interim periods.

- IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits'. IAS 19 is amended to clarify that high quality corporate bonds or government
bonds used in determining the discount rate should be issued in the same currency in which the benefits
are to be paid.

- IAS 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting'. IAS 34 is amended to clarify that certain disclosures, if they are
not included in the notes to interim unconsolidated financial statements and disclosed elsewhere should
be cross referred.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these unconsolidated
financial statements.

3.1

Employees' Benefits
Gratuity - Defined benefit plan

The Company maintains an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its eligible employees. Annual provision for gratuity
is made on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Latest valuation
was conducted as at 30 June 2015.

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 7.2 to the unconsolidated unconsolidated
financial statements for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations.

Compensated absences

The Company recognises provision for compensated absences on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related services is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under compensated
absences if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. The compensated absences
are payable to employees at the time of retirement / termination of service. The provision is determined on the
basis of last drawn salary and accumulated leaves balance at the reporting date.
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3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit and loss account
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in comprehensive income or equity, in which case
it is recognized in comprehensive income or equity.

Current

The Company accounts for current taxation on the basis of taxable income at the current rates of taxation after
taking into account tax credits and rebates, if any, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
year in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Deferred

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary difference between
the carrying value of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary difference
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authorities on the same taxable entity, but
the Company intends to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or the tax assets and liabilities
will be realised and settled simultaneously.

The effect on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected to fall under presumptive tax regime is adjusted
in accordance with the requirement of Accounting Technical Release - 27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan. Deferred tax is charged or credited to income.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the differences reverse, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment
of time value of money and risk specific to the liability. The unwinding of discount is recognized as finance cost.

Borrowing cost

Markup, interest and other charges on qualified borrowings are capitalized up to the date when the qualifying
assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Borrowing cost is included in the related property, plant
and equipment acquired / constructed out of the proceeds of such borrowings. All other markup, interest and
related charges are charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible assets

Owned

These are measured at cost, which includes purchase price, import duties, directly attributable costs and related
borrowing costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land and capital work in
progress are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.

Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred whereas
major improvements and modifications are capitalized.

Depreciation is charged to income applying the reducing balance method except leasehold land, buildings and
plant and machinery. Buildings and plant and machinery are depreciated on straight line method. Leasehold
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3.6

3.7

3.8

land is amortized over the remaining period of the lease. Rates of depreciation / estimated useful lives are
mentioned in note 11.1.

Depreciation is charged on prorata basis from the month in which an asset is acquired or capitalized, while no
depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. Days in excess of fifteen days are
considered as full month for the purpose of calculation of depreciation.

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are taken to the profit and loss account.
Leased

Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance lease. Assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated at amounts equal to the lower
of their fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Outstanding obligations under the lease less finance charges
allocated to the future periods are shown as liability. Depreciation on assets held under finance lease is charged
in a manner consistent with that for depreciable assets which are owned by the Company.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the
asset will flow to the enterprise and that the cost of such asset can also be measured reliably. These are stated
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.

Amortization of intangible assets, having finite useful life, is charged by applying straight line method over their
estimated useful lives, so as to write off the cost of assets at amortization rate as mentioned in note 12 to the
unconsolidated financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefit embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit and loss account as incurred.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
for sale in ordinary course of business, used in production or supply of goods or services or for administration
purposes. Investment property is initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair value with any change
therein recognized in profit or loss.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property.

Investment property is stated at its fair value at the balance sheet date. Gain or losses, arising from the change
in the fair value of investment property are recognized in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, its fair value
at the date of reclassification became its cost for subsequent accounting.

Impairment
Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax asset, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of
assets (the “cash-generating unit, or CGU").

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate
asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset
belongs. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss account.
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3.9

3.10

Impairment loss recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Financial assets

Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they
are impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may
include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

All individually significant assets are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant assets found
not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not
yet identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping
together assets with similar risk characteristics.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's
original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account.
Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is
reversed through profit and loss account.

Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction.
All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rate
of exchange ruling on the balance sheet date and exchange differences, if any, are charged to income for the
year.

Investments
Investments in subsidiary

Subsidiary is that enterprise in which the Company directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds
more than 50% of the voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than 50% of its
directors.

Investments in subsidiary is initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of investments is reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exist the
investments recoverable amount is estimated which is higher of its value in use and its fair value less cost to
sell. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal of impairment loss is
recognized in the profit and loss account. .

Investments in associate

Associates are those entities in which the company has significant influence, but not control over the financial
and operating policies. Jointly controlled entities are those entities over whose activities the company has joint
control established by contractual agreement and requiring unanimous consent for strategic financial and
operating decisions.

Investments in associate is initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of investments is reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists the
investments recoverable amount is estimated which is higher of its value in use and its fair value less cost to
sell. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, Impairment losses
are recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal of impairment loss is
recognized in the profit and loss account.
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3.13

3.14

3.15

Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value.

For items which are slow moving and / or identified as surplus to the Company’s requirements, adequate
provision is made for any excess book value over estimated net realizable value. The Company reviews the
carrying amount of stores, spare parts and loose tools on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Stock in trade

Stocks of raw materials, work in process and finished goods are valued at lower of weighted average cost and
net realisable value. Cost of raw material, work in process and finished goods comprises of direct materials,
labor and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value signifies estimated selling price less
estimated cost of completion and estimated cost to sell.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of retums, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognized
when significant risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customers, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of the goods can be estimated reliably, there
is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then the discount is
recognized as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognized.

The timing of transfer of risk and rewards varies depending on the individual's terms of the sale agreements.
For some international shipments, transfer occurs on the loading of goods onto the relevant carrier at the port.

Return on deposit is accounted for on a time proportion basis. Dividend income is recognized when the right
to receive such income is established. Rental income on investment property is recognized when due.

Markup bearing borrowings

Markup bearing borrowings are recognized initially at cost representing the fair value of consideration received
less atributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, markup bearing borrowings are stated at
original cost less subsequent repayments, while the difference between the original recognized amounts (as
reduced by periodic payments) and redemption value is recognized in the profit and loss account over the period
of borrowings on an effective rate basis. The borrowing cost on qualifying asset is included in the cost of related
asset as explained in note 3.4.

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial assets

These are initially recognized on the date that they are originated i.e. trade date which is the date that the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when

the Company transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially

all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in such transferred
financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

The Company classifies non-derivative financial assets as loans and other receivables. Loans and receivables
comprise investments classified as loans and receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables.

Trade debts, other receivables and other financial assets
Trade debts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction

cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method,
less any impairment losses. Known bad debts are written off, when identified.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with maturities of three months or less
from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by
the Company in the management of its short-term commitments.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Company initially recognizes non derivative financial liabilities on the date that they are originated or the
date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company
derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

These financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Non derivative financial liabilities comprise markup bearing borrowings including obligations
under finance lease, bank overdrafts and trade and other payables.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the
Company has a legally enforceable right to setoff the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net
basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.16 Dividend
Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as liability in the period in which it is declared.
3.17 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit and loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit and loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

4. Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

2015 2014 2015 2014
Number of Shares —— —Rupees in thousands

Ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each
514,163,552 514,163,552 issued for cash 5,141,636 5,141,636

Ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each issued
64,038,422 64,038,422 as fully paid bonus share 640,384 640,384

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10
each pursuant to scheme
1,182,944 1,182,944 of amalgamation 11,829 11,829

579,384,918 579,384,918 5,793,849 5,793,849

Authorised share capital

700,000,000 (2014: 700,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 7.000.000 7,000,000

41 Bestway (Holdings) Limited, U.K. is the parent company controlling 319,885,740 i.e. 55.32% (2014: 319,885,740
i.e. 55.32%) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each of the Company and 38,164,582 (2014: 41,470,129) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each and 39,121,271 (2014: 39,121,271) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each are held by nominee directors
and associated companies respectively.
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2015 2014
Note ———Rupees in thousands
5. Long term financing - secured

Syndicate term finance facilities 51 15,000,000 -
15,000,000 -
Current portion of long term financing (1.800,000) -
13,200,000 -

5.1 Syndicate term finance facilities
Allied Bank Limited 5,500,000 -
Habib Bank Limited 5,500,000 -
Soneri Bank Limited 1,500,000 -
Askari Bank Limited 1,000,000 -
MCB Bank Limited 1,500,000 -
15,000,000 -

5.2 This represents term finance from a syndicate of banks with Allied Bank Limited as lead bank. This facility is
repayable in 10 stepped up semi annual instaliments starting from October, 2015. Markup is payable on semi
annual basis at the rate of KIBOR plus 0.50% per annum. This facility is secured by all present and future assets
excluding land and buildings of the Company for an amount of Rs. 33.33 billion and mortgage charge created
by way of deposit of title deeds.

6. Long term musharka - secured

2015 2014

Note = ———Rupees in thousands
Meezan Bank Limited 3,000,000 .
Faysal Bank Limited 3,000,000 2
Bank Alfalah Limited 3,000,000 -
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited 1,000,000 -
6.1 10,000,000 -
Current portion of long term musharka (1,200,000) -
8,800,000 >

6.1  This facility is repayable in 10 stepped up semi annual instaliments starting from October, 2015. Markup is
payable on semi annual basis at the rate of KIBOR plus 0.50% per annum. This facility is secured agaisnt
security as provided in Note 5.2.

7. Deferred liabilities 2015 . 2014
Note = — ———Rupees in thousands
Deferred taxation 7.1 4,406,627 4,579,259
Provision for gratuity 7.2 236,483 199,730
Provision for compensated absences %3 18,737 19,567
4,661,847 4,798,556

7.1 Deferred tax liability is recognised on following
major temporary differences:

Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated depreciation 4,399,531 4,571,911
Accelerated amortization 7,096 7,348

7141 4,406,627 4,579,259
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7.1.1  Movement of deferred tax liability is as follows:

2015 2014
Rupees in thousands

Opening balance 4,579,259 3,295,869
Charge recognised in profit and loss

account for the year (172,632) 1,283,390
Closing balance 4,406,627 4,579,259

7.1.2 Based on the Company's estimate of future export sales, adjust of Rs. 600.90 million (2014: Rs. 1,039
million) has been made in the taxable temporary differences at the year end. This has resulted in
increased after tax profit by Rs. 180.27 million (2014: Rs. 363.53 million) with corresponding decrease
in deferred tax liability by the same amount.

2015 2014
Rupees in thousands

The amount recognised in the balance sheet is as follow:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 236,483 199,730
Net defined benefit liability 236,483 199,730
Balance at 1 July 199,730 164,451

Included in profit and loss account
Current service cost 28,478 23,967
Interest cost 24 814 18,109
53,292 42,076

Included in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement losses

Experience adjusiments 8.370 7,165
Others AR
Benefits paid (24,909) (13,962)
Balance at 30 June 236,483 199,730

Actuarial Assumptions

The following were the principal assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages).

2015 2014
Discount rate 9.75% 13.25%
Future salary growth 8.75% 12.25%
Withdrawal rates Moderate Moderate

Assumption regarding future mortality has been based on published statistics and mortality tables. The montality
rates are based on State Life Insurance Corporation (SLIC) 2001-05 ultimate mortality rate (2014: State Life
Insurance Corporation (SLIC) 2001-05 ultimate mortality rate), rated down by one year.

Sensitivity analysis

Resonably possible changes at the reporting date at one of the relevant acturial assumptions, holding other
assumption constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligations by the amount shown below:
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30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Rupees in thousands

Discount rate (1% movement) (16,207) 18,869 (13,982) 16,955
Future salary growth (1% movement) 19,881 (17,339) 16,955 (14,221)
Future mortality (1 year change) 63 (63) 389 (279)
Withdrawal rate (10% movement) 380 (398) 653 (1,000)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cashflows expected under the plan, it does
provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumption shown.

Expected maturity profile

Following are the undiscounted distribution and timing of benefit payments at year end;

2015 2014
———Rupees in thousands
Year 1 67,977 42,845
Year 2 10,231 30,397
Year 3 15,242 9,608
Year 4 14,431 14,820
Year 5 21,359 14,888
Year 6 to Year 10 71,701 87,405
Year 11 and above 483,785 826,137

Expected gratuity expense for the next financial year is Rs. 50.65 million (2014: Rs. 50.33 million).
Risk associated with defined benefit plan
Longevity Risks

The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan
level over the entire retiree population.

Salary Increase Risk

The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk arises
when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

Withdrawal Risk

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the benefit obligation.
The movement of the liability can go either way.

Historical information

Present value of the defined benefit obligation

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Rupees in thousands

Present value of defined
benefit obligation 236,483 199,730 164,451 125,605 105,421

Net liability at end of the year 236,483 199,730 164,451 125,605 105,421

7.3 Actuarial valuation of compensated absences has not been carried out since the management believes that
the effect of actuarial valuation would not be material.




Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

9.1

9.2

2015 2014
Note ——— Rupees in thousands
8. Trade and other payables

Payable to contractors and suppliers 768,796 1,417,099

Accrued liabilities 8.1 1,855,545 1,893,907

Payable to the Subsidiary Company 8.2 825,000 -

Advances from customers 111,084 90,788

Security deposits 53,240 47,874

Retention money 32,538 15,383

Workers' Profit Participation Fund ‘551,825 695,770

Workers Welfare Fund payable 217,729 105,595

Excise duty payable 116,307 37,189

Advance rent of investment property 7,835 7,486

Other payables 8.3 68,962 67,143

Donation payable to Bestway Foundation 166,401 97,218

Dividend payabie 997,312 423,690

5,772,574 4,899,142

8.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 32.84 million (2014: Rs. 27.46 million) payable to Sui Northern Gas Pipeline
Limited (SNGPL) against gas consumption during the month of June 2015. The Company has issued bank
guarantees in the normal course of business to SNGPL for commercial and industrial use of gas for an amount
of Rs. 1,252.41 million (2014: Rs. 1,252.41 million).

8.2 This represents the amount payable to Pakcem Limited (formerly Lafarge Pakistan Cement Limited) against
purchase of carried forward tax losses under Group relief provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 pursuant
to the decision of Board of directors of the Company and Pakcem Limited (formerly Lafarge Pakistan Cement
Limited) in their meetings held on 29 June 2015 . Subsequent to the period end on 08 September 2015, the
Company has been registered as Group under serial number GR000041 and now is entitied to obtain Group
Designation letter from SECP to avail the benefit of Group Relief under the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. Further
application has been filed with the tax authorities to change the tax year of Packcem to 30 June 2015. The
management of the Company expects that the approvals will have been received prior to filing of tax return for
the Tax year 2015 and accordingly the Company will be able to adjust the tax loss purchased against tax liability
of the Company.

8.3  This includes an amount of Rs. 42 million (2014: Rs. 42 million) on account of provision, recorded on a prudent
basis, which the management feels will ultimately be required to be paid to owners of the land acquired for
hattar plant as ordered by the Honorable Peshawar High Court. However, the Company has filed an appeal
in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan.

9. Short term borrowings - secured
2015 2014
Note —— Rupees in thousands

Running finance from banking companies

Soneri Bank Limited 9.1 350 247,953

Allied Bank Limited 9.2 810,083 1,008,438

Habib Bank Limited 9.3 25,376 451,900

Askari Bank Limited - 165,541

Meezan Bank Limited - 500,000

835,809 2,373,832

This represents the utilized amount of a running finance facility of Rs. 300 million for a period of one year (2014:
Rs. 300 million). Markup is payable on quarterly basis at the rate of three month's KIBOR plus 0.40% (2014:
three months' KIBOR plus 0.60%) per annum. The facility is secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge
on all present and future current assets of the Company for an amount of Rs. 634 million (2014: Rs. 400 million).

This represents the utilized amount of a running finance facility of Rs. 1,150 million for a period of one year
(2014: Rs. 1,150 million). Markup is payable on quarterly basis at the rate of one month KIBOR plus 0.40%
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(2014: one month KIBOR plus 0.40%) per annum. The facility is secured by lien over saving accounts and first
pari passu hypothecation charge on all present and future assets excluding land and buildings of the Company
for an amount of Rs. 1,333.33 million (2014: Rs. 1,333.33 million).

9.3 This represents the utilized amount of running finance facility of Rs. 970 million for a period of one year (2014:
Rs. 970 million). Markup is payable on quarterly basis at the rate of three month's KIBOR plus 0.50% (2014:
three months' KIBOR plus 0.60%) per annum. The facility is secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge
over all present and future movables assets and current assets of the Company for an amount of Rs. 1,294
million (2014: Rs. 1,294 million).

9.4 Unavailed facilities

The Company has running finance facilities and other short term borrowing facilities for an amount of Rs. 8,074
million (2014: Rs. 7,126 million) which the Company has not availed at the year end.

Facilities of letters of guarantee and letters of credit amounting to Rs. 1,646 million (2014: Rs. 309.08 million)
and Rs. 5,920 million (2014: Rs. 5,626.03 million) respectively are available to the Company. Facilities of letters
of guarantee are secured by first pari passu charge on present and future assets of the Company.

10 Contingencies and commitments

2015 2014
Note ——Rupees in thousands
In respect of bank guarantees 10.1.1 32,627 40,457
In respect of letters of credits 546,103 1,024,567

10.1 Contingencies and commitments
10.1.1 All bank guarantees are secured by way of charge over operating fixed assets of the Company.

10.1.2 Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) issued a show cause notice dated 28 October 2008 to 21
cement companies (including the Company) under section 30 of the Competition Ordinance, 2007. On
27 August 2009, CCP imposed a penalty of Rs. 710 million on the Company and MCL. The cement
manufacturers (including the Company) has challenged the CCP order in Honourable High Court and
the Honourable High Court has passed an interim order restraining CCP from taking any adverse action
against these 21 cement companies.

Against the above referred order of CCP dated 27 August 2009 an appeal was also filed as abundant
caution in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan under Section 42 of the Competition Ordinance,
2007. During the year, the case was fixed for hearing on time to time, however because of non availability
of defendant, the hearings of the case were adjourned. These appeals are still pending and management
is confident of a favorable outcome of the case.

10.1.3 Initially DCIR raised assessment against the Company for the tax years 2010 to 2012 for alleged
suppression of production worked backed by using “Standard Gypsum Consumption Formula”. On
appeal by the Company, the CIR(A) vide orders dated 25 July 2013, set aside the assessment for
denovo consideration with directions. The Company has filed an appeal before the Honorable ATIR
against the set-aside order of the CIR(A), which is pending for adjudication.

Onward the DCIR completed the re-assessment assuming production at 98 % of rated capacity, without
confronting to the Company and raised an aggregate demand of Rs. 8,541 million (BCL Rs. 6,982
million and MCL Rs. 1,559 million) for the tax years 2010 to 2012. On appeal by the Company, the
CIR(A) vide order dated 22 May 2014 endorsed the view of the DCIR but reduced assumed production
of the plant to 86.66 % of rated capacity using weighted average capacity utilization of another cement
manufacturer.

On appeal filed by the Company the ATIR has annulled the orders of tax authority. The tax Department
has filed reference before the Honourable Islamabad High Court against the appellate orders of the
ATIR.
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10.1.4 The tax authority conducted audit of sales tax affairs of the Company and consequent to audit proceedings,
the tax authority framed order-in-original No. 01 of 2015 dated 31 August 2015 through which the tax
demand of Rs. 230.91 million was raised. The Company is in process of filing an appeal before the
CIR(A) against the said order of the tax authority.

10.1.5 Based on an audit for the period from July 2009 to June 2010, DCIR vide Order-in-Original No. 23 of
2013 dated 30 April 2013 raised aggregate sales tax demand of Rs. 639.17 million against the Company
mainly on suppression of production. On appeal by the Company, the CIR(A) vide order dated 25 July
2013, set aside the order in original and directed the DCIR for a fresh consideration of the matter. The
Company has filed an appeal before the Honorable ATIR against the order of the CIR(A), which is
pending for adjudication. The management is confident of a favorable outcome of the case.

10.1.6 Sales Tax Department has raised tax demand of Rs. 52.75 million vide order dated 27 March 2010
mainly for misconstructed/ duplicate demand of Sales Tax and Federal Excise Duty on sale of clinker
and rejection of input tax on certain eligible items. On first appeal, the CIR(A) confirmed the order while
in second appeal by the Company the Honorable Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue vide order dated
24 February 2011 has set aside the assessment for denovo consideration, resultantly no demand exists
at the moment. The Company has also filed an appeal before Islamabad High Court against the set
aside order praying for annulment of the assessment.

In re-assessment proceedings the Department again maintained the assessment at a tax demand of
Rs. 52.75 million vide order dated 14 September 2012. On appeal, the CIR(A), vide an order dated 21
November 2012, set aside the assessment for denovo consideration, hence no demand as of today.
10.1.7 There are certain other cases outstanding as on 30 June 2015 other than those disclosed in these
unconsolidated financial statements. The management assess and claim favorable outcome in these
cases and the lawyers have also asserted management claims in respect of favorable outcome.
10.1.8 Income tax related contingencies are disclosed in note 31 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

11. Property, plant and equipment

2015 2014
Note ——Rupees in thousands
Operating fixed assets 114 24,591,328 23,731,903
Capital work in progress 12 67,652 492,464

24,658,980 24,224 367
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11.1.2 Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Description Cost Book Sale  Gain Mode of Sold to
value proceeds disposal
Rupees in thousands
Vehicles
Toyota Corolla YY-128 1,738 1,321 1,691 370 Insurance claim  IGI Insurance Claim
Honda Civic KJ-701 1,197 206 1,050 844 Negotiation Mr. Tahir Shafi Ghuri MAP
Toyota Hiace JY-802 1,993 318 1,260 942 Negotiation Mr. Akhtar Ali Khan
Hyundai Shahzore JK-129 813 110 591 481 Negotiation Mr. Ikhlag Ahmed
Hyundai Shahzore HY-296 724 74 628 554 Negotiation Mr. Ikhlag Ahmed
Suzuki Cultus NE-177 662 165 165 - Negotiation Employee
Suzuki Cultus NB-791 638 151 245 94 Negotiation Employee
Suzuki Alto NK-465 602 172 316 144 Negotiation Employee
Suzuki Alto NK-384 540 132 229 97 Negotiation Employee
Suzuki Alto JX-783 514 76 406 330 Negotiation Employee
Suzuki Alto KC-752 514 78 401 323 Negotiation Employee
Suzuki Alto KC-215 540 130 168 38 Negotiation Employee
Toyota Corolla CV-460 1,887 1,824 1,837 13 Negotiation MAP Rice Mills
Honda City HT-359 837 83 708 625 Negotiation Mr. Sajid Hussain
Honda City KZ-267 913 152 746 594 Negotiation Mr. Masood-ur-Rehman
Suzuki Bolan NG-376 477 106 400 294 Insurance claim Gl Insurance Claim
Toyota Corolla BE-728 1,748 1411 1,650 239 Insurance claim Gl Insurance Claim
Toyota Corolla PY-867 1,474 470 852 382 Negotiation Mr. Zahir M. Abbasi
Toyota Land Cruiser JA 325 5,916 794 2250 1456 Negotiation Mr. Nadir Zafar
Hitachi/O&K Excavators (3) 6,500 4,627 7,762 3,135 Negotiation Haji Rasool Shah & Sons
Komatsu Excavator 27616 1,846 3,238 1,392 Negotiation Haji Rasool Shah & Sons
2015 57,843 14,246 26,593 12,347
2014 50,880 18,518 42,802 24,284
11.1.3 Depreciation charge for the year has been
allocated as follow:
2015 2014
Note ————Rupees in thousands
Cost of sales 25 1,165,814 1,047,644
Administrative expenses 26 9,649 8,151
Distribution cost 27 5818 5,236
1,181,281 1,061,031
11.2 Capital work in progress
Opening balance 492,464 360,533
Additions during the year 11.2.1 1,437,840 1,046,563
1,930,304 1,407,096
Transferred to operating fixed assets: =
Plant and machinery (1.583,559) (910,584)
Buildings on freehold land (279,093) (4,048)
(1,862,652) (914,632)
11.22 67,652 492,464

11.2.1 This includes borrowing cost capitalised amounting to Rs 130.96 million calculated at a rate of 9.66%
per annum (2014: Rs. 38.71 million at 10.33% per annum).
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11.2.2 Break up of capital work in progress is as follows:

2015 2014
Note —— Rupees in thousands
Plant and machinery and other equipment 28,340 477,223
Advances for capital work in progress 39,312 15,241
67,652 492,464
12. Intangible asset - computer softwares
Cost
Opening balance 53,411 53,411
Additions during the year = -
Closing balance 53,411 53,411
Amortization
Opening balance 21,037 15,118
Charge for the year 25 4,856 5,919
Closing balance : 25,893 21,037
Carrying value 27,518 32,374
Amortisation rate 15% 15%
13. Investment property
Opening balance 345,785 347.883
Surplus on remeasurement of investment
property to fair value 131 120 31,791
Transfer to property, plant and equipment 13.2 = (33,889)
Closing balance 345,905 345,785

13.1 The investment property is a portion of head office building held for letting. On 30 June 2015, an independent
exercise was carried out to calculate the fair value of investment property. To assess the land and building
prices, market research was carried out in the area around the plot where the investment property is situated.
Fair value of investment property is based on independent valuer's judgment about average prices prevalent
on the said date and has been prepared on openly available / provided information after making relevant inquiries
from the market. Valuation was carried out by an independent valuer who holds a recognized and relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category on the investment property

being valued.
14. Long term investments
2015 2014
Note = ————Rupees in thousands
Investment in related parties - at cost - quoted
Associated company - United Bank Limited
93,649,694 shares (2014: 93,649,694 shares)
of Rs. 10 each 14.1 1,862,803 1,862,803
Subsidiary company - Pakcem Limited
1,284,343,491 shares (2014: Nil) of Rs. 10 each 14.2 25,941,898 -
27,804,701 1,862,803

14.1 This represents 7.65% (2014: 7.65%) share in the equity of United Bank Limited acquired at an average price
of Rs. 19.89 per share. Market value of investment in UBL as at 30 June 2015 was Rs. 16,006,606 thousand
(2014: Rs. 15,785,592 thousand).

14.2 This represents 88.2% share in the equity of Pakcem Limited (formerly Lafarge Pakistan Cement Limited) (PCL),
a company having its principal place in Islamabad, acquired at an average price of Rs. 20.20 per share during
the year. Market value of investment in PCL as at 30 June 2015 was Rs. 24,993,319 thousand. (2014: Nil).
Management of the Company has carried out an impairment analysis for this investment, based on future
expected cash flows for the next five years and theron cash flows on terminal values. The future cash flows
have been discounted at Weighted Average Cost of Capital of 17%. Based on this analysis management
believes that investment in subsidiary Company is carried at its recoverable amount.
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15. Long term deposits

This includes security deposits amounting to Rs. 70.29 million (2014: Rs. 70.29 million) given for the electricity
connections of the plants.

16. Stores, spare parts and loose tools
2015 2014

Note = ——Rupees in thousands

Stores, spare parts and loose tools 2,935,339 3,174,169
Stores and spare parts in transit 307,139 870,502
3,242,478 4,044,671

17. Stock in trade

Raw and packing material 228,646 231,037
Work in process 1,294,339 1,303,695
Finished stock 17.1 245,503 397,880

1,768,488 1,932,612

17.1  This includes a stock amounting to Rs. 19.9 million (2014: Rs. 4.9 million) which has been dispatched to customer
but risk and rewards are not yet transferred.

18. Trade debts - considered good

18.1.1. This includes Rs. 174.71 million (2014: Rs. 159.01 million) receivable from customers against export
sales.

18.1.2 This includes unsecured receivable of Rs. 65.92 million (2014: Rs. Nil) from the Subsidiary Company
against sale of coal.

19. Advances 2015 2014
Note —— Rupees in thousands
Advances to executives and employees- considered good 3,206 2,666
Advances to suppliers and contractors - considered good 386,502 394,115
Current portion of long term advance 4,003 4,003
.3933,_71 1 400,784

20. Deposits and prepayments

Security deposits 4,626 4,875
Prepayments 7,430 16,643
12,056 21,518

21. Other receivable

This includes unsecured receivable of Rs. 57.53 million (2014: Rs. Nil) from the Subsidiary Company in repsect of

management fee.
22. Due from Government agencies
2015 2014
Note —————Rupees in thousands

Customs duty 221 28.373 28,373
Capital value tax 221 11.729 11,729
Excise duty 22.2 615,146 615,146
Sales tax - net 37.913 385,487

693.161 1,040,735

221 This represents customs duties paid in excess of 5% of the value assessed by the custom authorities for import
of off high way dump trucks and the amount paid as Capital Value Tax (CVT) on this import. The collector of
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customs assessed 30% duty and CVT @ 7.5% of the assessed value on import of off high way dump trucks
and did not allow exemption available to the Company under SRO No. 575(1) 2006 dated 06 June 2006. The
Company deposited these amounts under protest as guarantee for clearance and filed an appeal before
Honourable Sindh High Court. The Honourable High Court granted the leave of appeal and held that exemption
for import of off high way dump trucks is available to the Company under SRO No. 575(1) 2006 dated 06 June
2006, therefore the excess amounts paid should be refunded to the Company. Collector of customs filed an
appeal in Honourable Supreme Court against the order of Honourable High Court, however no stay was granted
against the refund accrued to the Company.

The Company has obtained legal opinion on the basis of which it decided fo account for these as refund in the
books of account of the Company.

The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan in its judgment dated 14 April 2007 in a comparable case for levy
of excise duty, dismissed the appeal filed by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) and upheld the decisions
made by the Honourable High Courts of Peshawar, Sindh and Punjab. [The dispute related to levy of excise
duty on the retail price inclusive of excise duty or retail price excluding excise duty]. The FBR's point of view
was that excise duty be calculated on a declared retail price inclusive of excise duty whereas the concerned
respondents contended that the excise duty would not be included in retail price for calculation of excise duty
payable to the Government. The full bench of Supreme Court upheld the judgments made by High Courts and
dismissed the appeal of FBR. The FBR moved a review petition before Supreme Court of Pakistan which is
pending.

The Company has filed a claim for Rs. 615.15 million (2014: 615.15 million) relating to duty paid during the
period June 1998 to April 1999 which pursuant to the above decision was otherwise not leviable and payable
under the law. Commissioner Appeals rejected the claim of the Company pertaining to BCL of Rs. 211.15
million, and the Company has filed an appeal with Appellate Tribunal against unlawful rejection of refund claims.
A number of hearings were conducted during the year but the case is yet to be discussed. Further on Mustehkam
Cement Limited refund claim (before merger) of Rs. 404 million tax authorities held the proceedings in abeyance
due to awaiting result of litigation on BCL refund claim. The managernent believes that the Company's claim
is valid and the amount is fully recoverable.

23. Bank balances

2015 2014
Note = ——Rupees in thousands
Current accounts 231 97,725 146,326
Deposit accounts 2328233 2,271,020 69,936
2,368,745 216,262

23.1 This includes Rs.53.37 million (2014: Rs. 62.22 million) held in current accounts maintained with United Bank

Limited, a related party.
23.2 Deposit accounts carry interest rates ranging from 1% to 8.6 % (2014: 1% to 10%) per annum. This includes

investment of Rs. 2.2 billion in 15 days term deposit with Allied Bank Limited carrying markup at 7% per annum.
23.3 This includes an amount of US$ 0.384 million (2014: US $ 0.42 million) in US Dollar deposit account.
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24. Turnover - net

25

Gross turnover
- Local
- Export

Government levies
Sales tax
Excise duties

Rebates and discounts

Cost of sales

Raw and packing materials consumed

Fuel and power

Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed
Repairs and maintenance

Salaries, wages and benefits

Support services

Insurance

Equipment rental

Utilities

Travelling, conveyance and subsistence
Communication

Printing and stationery

Entertainment

Depreciation

Amortization

Other manufacturing expenses

Opening work in process
Closing work in process

Cost of goods manufactured
Opening finished stock
Closing finished stock

25.1 Raw and packing materials consumed
Opening balance

Purchases made during the year
Closing balance

2015 2014
Note ~——— Rupees in thousands
34,503,560 32,169,414
4,241,757 5,021,006
38,745,317 37,190,420
(5,498,934) (5.106,100)
(1,612,652) (1,417,846)
(7,111.586) 30,666,474
(1,124,183) (1,715,946)
30,509,548 28,950,528
25.1 2,990,925 2,680,760
11,360,154 11,718,999
976,890 803,265
165,589 91,240
25.2 683,687 584,279
288,091 250,354
29,985 29,767
16,783 17,434
10,026 9,454
54,871 59,227
4,217 3,930
6,027 5,756
6,534 4,268
o 5 e 1,165,814 1,047,644
12.1 4,856 5,919
28,873 18,426
17,793,322 17,330,722
1,303,695 1,470,344
(1,294,339) (1,303,695)
17,802,678 17,497,371
397,880 470,713
(245,503) (397,880)
17,955,055 17,570,204
281,037 282,378
2,988,534 2,629,419
(228,646) (231,037)
2,990,925 2,680,760

25.2 Salaries, wages and benefits include staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 41.51 million (2014: Rs. 30.87

million).
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26.

2015 2014
Note ——Rupees in thousands

Salaries, wages and benefits 26.1 160,216 141,614

Rent, rates and taxes 8,044 1,756

Repairs and maintenance 8,962 6,223

Insurance 1,688 1,690

Utilities 3,931 3,468

Travelling, conveyance and subsistence 19,236 15,617

Communication 4,440 2,346

Printing and stationery 4,058 3,669

Entertainment 5,943 1,166

Advertisements 3,416 862

Donations 26.2 88,656 86,069

Legal and professional charges 30,118 12,925

Fees and subscription 23,736 12,209

Management charges - 550

Auditors' remuneration 26.3 9,646 2,753

Depreciation 111.3 9,649 8,151

Other 3205 1,087

384,994 302,155

26.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 9.35 million (2014: Rs. 5.94
million).

26.2 A provision at 1% (2014: 1%) of the accounting profit after tax for an amount of Rs. 86.69 million has been
made for donation to Bestway Foundation, Bestway Building, 19-A, College Road, F-7 Markaz, Islamabad,
(2014: Rs.85.51 million). The Chief Executive and the following directors are among the trustees of the Foundation:
- Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez - M. Irfan A. Sheikh,

- Zameer Mohammed Choudrey - Arshad Mehmood Chaudhary
Above directors or their spouses do not have a beneficial interest in Bestway Foundation.
26.3 Auditors' remuneration
2015 2014
Note ————Rupees in thousands

Annual audit fee 1,500 1,500
Audit fee for audit of consolidated financial statements 600 -
Fee of half year review 500 500
Statutory certifications 910 75
Taxation services 150 603
Transaction advisory services 5,608 -
Out of pocket expenses 378 75

9,646 2,753

27. Distribution cost

Salaries, wages and benefits 271 54,584 45,780

Support services 1,111 1,153

Rent, rates and taxes 11,009 10,900

Repairs and maintenance 2,719 1,280

Utilities 1,068 850

Travelling, conveyance and subsistence 5,887 6,520

Communication 1,037 1,097

Printing and stationery 1,817 1,627

Entertainment 1,329 1,301

Advertising and promotion 5,126 6,052

Depreciation 13423 5,818 5,236

Fees and subscription 37,804 32,086

Freight and handling - Local 68,532 83,128

- Export 546,450 500,937

Other 2,011 9,027

746,302 706,974

Administrative expenses
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27.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 3.12 million (2014: Rs. 3.14

million).
28. Other expenses
2015 2014
Rupees in thousands
Workers' (Profit) Participation Fund 551,825 495,458
Workers' Welfare Fund 180,440 101,244
732,265 596,702
29. Finance cost
Markup on long term financing 183,169 398,544
Markup on long term musharaka 164,909 21,984
Markup on liability against assets subject to finance lease - 4,230
Markup on short term borrowings - 22,245
Bank charges and commissions 38,604 15,027
386,682 462,030
30. Other income
Income from financial assets
Profit on deposit accounts 65,420 51,794
Exchange gain - net 6.491 1,682
71,911 53,476
Income from non financial assets o
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 12,347 24,284
Dividend income from United Bank Limited (Associate) 1,123,797 983,322
Rental income from investment property 26,705 24,639
Gain on remeasurement of investment property to fair value 120 31,791
Management fee from related party 58,734 1,200
Other 2,971 2,981
1,224,674 1,068,217
1 .296,5185 1,121,693
31. Taxation
Current 3,105,542 1,279,029
Deferred (172,632) 1,283,390
2,932,510 2,562,419
31.1 Numerical reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate is as
follows:
2015 2014
Rupees in thousands
Accounting profit 11,600,835 10,434,156
Tax on accounting profit at applicable rate of 33% (2014: 34%) 3,828,276 3,778,435
Tax effect of low rates on certain income (258,474) (570,978)
Minimum tax N (407,980)
Tax effect of permanent difference (303,030) (63,418)
Tax effect of income taxable under final tax regime (348,932) (391,923)
Tax rate to 30% for deferred taxation and change in
proportion of locan and export sales (251,044) 218,293
Tax effect of super tax 266,114 -

2,932,910 2,562,419
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31.2 The assessment for the Assessment Year 2000-2001 through 2002-2003 was finalized by the tax authorities
mainly by curtailing business expenditure claimed by the Company and charging surcharge on minimum tax.
The appeals for Assessment Year 2000-2001 were decided against the Company by the Appellant Tribunal
Inland Revenue [ATIR] against which the Company filed reference with the Islamabad High Court which is
pending adjudication. The appeal filed with the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the CIR(A)] for the
Assessment Year 2001-2002 was decided against the Company and for the Assessment Year 2002-2003
certain issues were decided in favour of the Company. Against these orders the Company is in appeal with the
ATIR which are pending adjudication.

- The assessment of the Company for the Tax Years 2003 through 2014 stood finalized under the self assessment
scheme envisaged under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 [the Ordinance].

= The tax authority’s leveid tax of Rs. 99.08 million under section 161 of the Ordinance along with default surcharge
of Rs.124.93 million for Tax year 2005 by rejecting the legal ground of time limitation raised by the Company.
On Company's appeal the CIR(A) passed an order by setting aside the assessment order which was agitated
by the Company before the ATIR which in pending for adjudication. The ATIR stayed the re-assessment
proceedings till disposal of appeal by the ATIR.

- The tax authorities initiated audit proceedings for the Tax Years 2006 through 2008. The audit proceedings for
the Tax Years 2006 and 2007 have been concluded, while the audit proceedings for the Tax Year 2008 are
still pending.

The tax authorities amended the assessment of the Company upon conclusion of audit proceeding of tax year
2006 thereby, disallowing the finance cost attributable to funds utilized for acquiring the share of Mustehkam
Cement Limited, deduction claimed on account of donations paid to Bestway Foundation, and exemption claimed
by Company on interest derived from US dollars accounts. The Company being aggrieved with the amended
assessment order filed a rectification application before the tax authorities and also preferred an appeal with
the CIR(A), who has annulled the order of the tax authorities against which that the tax department has filed
an appeal before the ATIR, which has annulled the amended assessment order.

The tax authority amended assessment of the Company for the tax year 2007 charging tax of Rs. 29.26 million
by making various disallowances and levying tax on property income and dividend income under the presumptive
mode of taxation [PTR]. CIR (A) annulled the order of the tax authorities on all the issues except for upholding
the taxation of property income and dividend income under PTR and disallowance of deduction claimed on
account of donations paid during the year. The Company as well as the tax authorities have filed cross appeals
before the ATIR which are pending for adjudication.

- Income tax assessments of the Company for the Tax Years 2010 to 2012 were amended on alleged concealment
of sales by working back production taking gypsum consumed as five per cent of cement produced and raising
tax demand of Rs. 16,974 million (BCL Rs. 14,879 million and MCL Rs. 2,095 million). On appeal by the
Company the CIR (A) cancelled the assessments for the tax year 201 0 and 2011 and set aside the assessment
for the tax year 2012 for denovo consideration. Being not satisfied with the order of the CIR(A), the Company
has filed second appeal before the ATIR for tax year 2012 in both BCL and MCL cases.

The DCIR has again taken up the same issues through notice dated 12 November 2013 for all the years under
consideration. On detailed reply by the Company the DCIR changed the dimension of the case to under utilization
of installed capacity and confronted the Company to assess the sales by assuming 98% capacity utilization.
The amended assessment in BCL for the Tax Year 2010 and 2011 has been made at a demand of Rs. 2,476
million against which, the Company has filed appeals before the CIR(A), which is subjudice till to-date. However,
no order has been passed for tax year 2012 in BCL case and for tax year 2010 to 2012 in MCL cases.

The following tax contingencies stand transferred to the Company from Mustehkam Cement Limited under the
Scheme of amalgamation:

- The tax authority has leveid tax of Rs. 9.59 million under section 161 of the Ordinance along with default
surcharge of Rs. 14.76 million for tax year 2007 by rejecting the legal ground of time limitation raised by the
Company. On Company's appeal the CIR(A) passed an order setting aside the assessment order which has
been agitated by the Company before the ATIR which is pending for adjudication.

- For the Assessment Year 1998-99, the Taxation Officer charged additional tax amounting to Rs. 10.39 million
in terms of section 87 of the repealed Income Tax Ordinance, 1979 for non-payment of advance tax. At that
time, no appeal was filed with the CIR(A) against the impugned order on instructions of the Government of
Pakistan [GoP] as MCL was a State owned Enterprise then, and GoP insisted to resolve the disputes with the
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Federal Board of Revenue through inter-ministerial consultations. After Company’s privatization, it pursued it's
case before the appellate authorities and accordingly filed an appeal with the CIR (A) with the request for
condonation of delay in time for filing of appeal within the prescribed time. This request for condonation of delay
was not accepted. MCL filed appeal with the ATIR where the request for condonation in filling of appeal was
also not entertained. Accordingly, MCL filed a reference with the High Court, which we understand is subjudice
till to-date.

Tha management of the Company is confident of the favourable outcome of the appeals filed by it and accordingly
no provision has been recognized in these financial statements in respect of tax demand raised by the tax
authorities through amendments/rectifications of assessments.

31.3 The Finance Act, 2015 introduced a new tax under Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 on every
public company other than a scheduled bank or modaraba, that derives profits for tax year and does not distribute
cash dividend within six months of the end of said tax year or distribute dividends to such an extent that its
reserves, after such distribution, are in excess of 100% of its paid up capital. However, this tax on undistributed
reserves is not applicable to a public company which distributes profit equal to either 40 percent of its after tax
profits or 50% of its paid up capital, whichever is less, within six months of the end of the tax year.

The Company has during the year distributed sufficient interim dividends for the year ended 30 June 2015,
which complies with the above stated requirements. Accordingly, no provision for tax on undistributed reserves
has been recognized in these financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015.

32. Remuneration of the chief executive, directors and executives

The aggregate amounts charged in the unconsolidated financial statements for the year with respect to remuneration,
including benefits and perquisites, were as follows:

2015 2014
Rupees in thousands
Chief Executive

Managerial remunertaion and allowances 24,000 24,000
Bonus = ,
Provision for gratuity = E
Compensated absences -

24,000 24,000

Number of person 1 1
Directors, including Chairman
Managerial remunertaion and allowances 54,989 60,010
Bonus 3,064 6,002
Provision for gratuity 1.968 2,394
Compensated absences 1.626 4,086
61.647 72,492
Number of persons 5 5
Executives
Managerial remunertaion and allowances 215,955 167,202
Bonus 45,622 29,245
Provision for gratuity 24101 9,748
Compensated absences 13,451 9,154
299,129 215,349
Number of persons 129 106

32.1 The directors and eligible executives excluding chairman and chief executive are also provided with vehicle
and medical insurance facility as per their entitied limits.
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33. Transactions and balances with related parties

The Company is a subsidiary of Bestway (Holdings) Limited, UK (“the parent company") therefore all subsidiaries and
associated undertakings of the Parent Company are related parties of the Company. Other related parties comprise
of, subsidiary company, directors, key management personnel, entities with common directorships and entities over
which the directors are able to exercise influence. Balances with related parties are shown in the notes 4, 8.2, 14,
17,21 and 23.1 and transactions with related parties are disclosed in notes 11.1.2, 26.2 and 32 to the unconsolidated
financial statements. Transactions with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in these unconsolidated
financial statements are as follows:

2015 2014
Note —— Rupees in thousands
Transactions and balances with parent company
Management charges = 550
Dividend paid 2,334,226 656,068
Payable balance at year end - unsecured 965,749 421,003
Transactions with subsidiary company
Sale of coal 75,289 -
Tansfer of store items 5,312 -
Management fee 57,534 -
Purchase of tax losses 825,000 -
Transactions with associated undertakings
under common directorship
Management fee 1,200 1,200
Service / bank charges 7.119 6,097
Donations 87.407 85,507
Dividend received 1,123,797 983,322
Sale of cement 5,704 5,796
Utility expense paid 54 59
Transactions and balances with key management
personnel
Remuneration, allowances and benefits 33.1 727,042 534,416
Advances given during the year - 1,082
Repayments 1,379 2,069
Balance of advances at the year end - unsecured - 1.379
33.1 Remuneration, allowances and benefits
Dividend paid 342,267 222,574
Managerial remuneration and allowances 294,944 251,212
Bonus 48,685 35,247
Provision for gratuity 26,069 12,143
Provision for compensated absences 15,077 13,240
727,042 534,416

34. Financial instruments
The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.
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The Company'’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors of the Company through its audit committee of the Company oversees how management
monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of
the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its
oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board.

34.1 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument

fails to meet its contractual obligations. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit
exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2015 2014
Rupees in thousands
Long term deposits 90,073 90,323
Long term advances 8,006 12,009
Trade debts 746,333 571,981
Advances 3,206 2,666
Deposits 4,626 4,875
Interest accrued 3,150 704
Other receivables 80,506 1,820
Bank balances 2,368,745 216,262
3,304,645 900,640
The maximum exposure to the credit risk for trade debts
at reporting date by geographical region is:
Domestic 571,629 412,971
Middle east and African countries 84,561 =
Asia - other than domestic 90,143 159,010
746,333 571,981
The maximum exposure to the credit risk for trade debts at
reporting date by counter party is:
End user customers 18,310 14,393
Dealers 662,100 557,588
Subsidiary company 65,923 -
746,333 571,981

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the reporting date are with dealers and represents
debtors within the country. Included in these an amount of Rs.53.90 million (2014: Rs. 79.05 million) secured
against the letter of credits.

The Company's most significant domestic customer is a dealer from whom Rs. 37.49 million (2014: Rs. 35.90
million) is outstanding at the year end.

The Company has placed funds in financial institutions with high credit ratings. The Company assesses the
credit quality of the counter parties as satisfactory. The Company does not hold any collateral as security against
any of its financial assets except as mentioned above.




Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

343

Impairment losses

The aging of trade debis
at the reporting date is:
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
2015 2015 2014 2014
Rupees in thousands
Past due 1-30 days 739,463 - 558,863 -
Past due 31-60 days 98 - 601 -
Past due 61-90 days - - 6,566 -
Over 90 days 6,772 : 5,951 s
746,333 - 571.981 -

There is no movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade debts during the year.

Based on past experience, the management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
trade debts. The allowance accounts in respect of trade debts are used to record impairment losses uniess the
Company is satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is possible. The amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against the financial asset directly.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial
liabilities, including expected interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

Carrying Contractual Six months Sixtotwelve Onetotwo Twotofive  Afterfive
amount cash flows or less months years years years

2015 Rupees in thousands

Financial liabilities _

Long term financing 15,000,000 18703767 1,528,718 1490995 4334739 11,349,315 -
Long term musharaka 10,000,000 12,469,177 1,019,145 993996 2,889,826 7,566,210 -
Markup accrued 416,546 416,546 416,546 - 2 : -

Trade and other payables 3,833,578 3833578 3,833,578 - - - ¥
Short term borrowings 835,809 835,809 835,809 - - -

30085935 36258877 763379 24849091 7024566 1891552 :

2014

Financial liabilities

Markup accrued 12,324 12,324 12,324 - - - -
Trade and other payables 3,962,314 3962,314 3,962,314 - - - -
Short term borrowings 2,373,832 2373832 2,373,832 - - - -

6,348,470 6,348,470 6,348,470 g s = -

34.2.1 The contractual cash flow relating to long and short term borrowings, murabaha and musharaka have
been determined on the basis of expected markup rates.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market
sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. The Company
is exposed to currency risk and interest rates only.
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34.3.1

3432

Currency risk
2015 2014

US Dollars in thousand
Exposure to currency risk

Trade debts 1,716 1,605
Bank balances 384 417
Trade creditors - (5,665)
Net exposure 2,100 (3.643)

The following significant exchange
rates applied during the year

2015 2014 2015 2014
Average rates Reporting date
spot rates
Rupees / Dollar 101.65 99.05 101.79 98.75

Sensitivity analysis

A five percent strengthening of the PKR against US Dollar at 30 June would have increased profit and
loss account by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
markup rates, remain constant. This analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

Profit or loss

Rupees in
thousand
30 June 2015
Effect in US Dollar - gain (10,688)
(10,688)
30 June 2014
Effect in US Dollar - gain 17,987
17,987

A five percent weakening of the PKR against US Dollar at 30 June would have had the equal but opposite
effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market markup rates. Majority of the markup rate exposure arises from
short and long term borrowings from banks and short term deposits with banks. At the balance sheet
date the markup rate profile of the Company's markup bearing financial instruments is:

Carrying Amount
2015 2014

Fixed rate instruments Rupees in thousands

Financial assets 2,271,020 81,945

Variable rate instruments : i
Financial liabilities 25,835,309 2,373,832

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in markup rates throughout the year would have increased / (decreased)

profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.
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Profit or Loss
100 basis 100 basis
points decrease points increase

Rupees in thousands
Cash flow sensitivity (net) Hee

Variable rate instruments 55,738 (55,738)
30 June 2015 55,738 (55,738)
Variable rate instruments 45,079 (45,079)
30 June 2014 45,079 (45.,079)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying value of financial assets and liabilities reflected in unconsolidated unconsolidated financial
statements approximate their respective fair values.

34.4 Fair value versus carrying amounts

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet,
are as follows:

2015 2014
Assets carried at amortized cost Carrying value  Fair value Carrying value  Fair value

Rupees in thousands

Long term advances 8,006 8,006 12,009 12,009
Long term deposits 90,073 90.073 90,323 90,323
Trade debts 746,333 746,333 571,981 571,981
Advances 3,206 3,206 2,666 2,666
Deposits 4,626 4,626 4,875 4,875
Interest accrued 3,150 3,150 704 704
Other receivables 80,506 80,506 1,820 1,820
Bank balances 2,368,745 2,368,745 216,262 216,262
3,304,645 3,304,645 900,640 900,640
Liabilities carried at amortized cost
Long term financing 15,000,000 15,000,000 - 5
Long term musharaka - secured 10,000,000 10,000,000 - -
Trade and other payables 4,767,794 4,767,794 3,962,314 3,962,314
Markup accrued 416,546 416,546 12,324 12,324
Short term borrowings 835,809 835,809 2,373,832 2,373,832
31,020,149 31,020,149 6,348,470 6,348,470

34.5 Determination of fair values
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or
disclosure purposes based on the following methods.
Non - derivative financial assets

The fair value of non-derivative financial assets is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted
at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for disclosure purposes.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.




Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

34.6 Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which
the Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors
also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. There were no changes to the Company's approach
to capital management during the year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

35. Earnings per share (basic and diluted) 2015 2014
Profit for the year (Rupees in thousands) 8,667,925 7,871,737
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue (Number) 579,384,918 579,384,918
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 14.96 13.59

There is no dilution effect on earnings per share of the Company.

36. Cash and cash equivalents 2015 2014
Rupees in thousands

Bank balances 2,368.745 216,262
Short term running finances (835,809) (2,373,832)
1,532,936 (2,157,570)

37. Plants capacity and production of clinker

Metric Tonnes Metric Tonnes

Available capacity - Hattar 1,170,000 1,170,000
- Faroogia 1,109,700 1,109,700

- Chakwal 3,420,000 3,420,000

Actual production - Hattar 982,588 952,146
- Faroogia 802,324 758,942

- Chakwal 2,258,722 2,157,937

During the year the actual production from Hattar remained limited due to planned shut down for the maintenance
work at cement mill to maintain its efficiency level.

38. General
38.1 Number of persons employed 2015 2014
Employees at year end (Number) 2,081 1,705
Average employees during the year (Number) 2,049 1,916

38.2 Post Balance Sheet Events

38.2.1 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 12 September, 2015 has proposed a final dividend of
Rs. 2.5 per share.

38.2.2 These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company in their meeting held on 12 September, 2015.

— i
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Key operating and financial data for six years

[ 2015 [ 2014 2013 | 2012 | 2011 2010
Operating Results Rupees in millions
Turnover (net) 30,510 28,951 24,074 17,789 13,332 13,333
Cost of sales 17,955 17,570 14,104 12,093 10,419 11,564
Gross profit 12,554 11,380 9,970 5,696 2,914 1,769
Operating profit 11,423 10,371 8,577 5,152 2,405 571
Financial charges 387 462 1,009 1,916 2,489 2,223
Profit/(loss) before taxation 11,601 10,434 8,135 3,934 424 (1,412)
Profit/(loss) after taxation 8,668 7,872 4,399 3,061 179 (1,209)
Balance Sheet Rupees in millions
Shareholders' funds 25,412 22,544 18,444 14,032 10,972 7,006
Operating fixed assets 24,687 24,256 23,508 15,849 16,459 16,896
Long term financing 22,000 - 5,116 5,574 8,221 11,571
Liability subject to finance lease - - - 57 110 154
Net current (liabilities)/ assets (855) 785 1,222 (2,917) (4,526) (4,310)
Significant Financial Ratios Percentages
Gross profit ratio 4115 39.31 41.41 32.02 21.86 13.27
Net profit/(loss) ratio 28.41 27.19 18.27 17.21 1.34 (9.07)
Interest coverage ratio 30.98 23.58 9.06 3.05 =] 7 0.36
Return on equity 34.11 34.92 23.85 21.81 1.63 (17.26)
Earnings/(loss) per share 14.96 13.79 7.59 5.29 0.57 (3.95)
Dividend 100.00 65.00 20.00 - - -

In thousand metric tonnes
Despatches of cement 4,424 4,372 3,977 3,270 3,208 4,253
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board of Directors take pleasure in presenting their report together along with audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June, 2015.

Assumption of Management Control

Following the acquisition of majority shares in Lafarge Pakistan Cement Limited (now known as Pakcem Limited), Bestway
formally assumed management control of the company on 22 April, 2015. The Board of Directors and management of your
Company is excited about the addition of Pakcem to Bestway’s portfolio and committed to adding efficiencies and
synergies where possible resulting in better returns for all stakeholders.

Subsequently, Bestway Cement Limited has become the Holding Company and Pakcem, its subsidiary. The financial year
has been changed from Jan-Dec to Jul-Jun and the financial information below represents consolidated accounts for one
year of Bestway Cement and three-months period of Pakcem from 22 April, 2015 to 30 June, 2015.

Overview of the Economy

The construction sector registered a growth of 7.0% against a growth of 7.2% last year. Acceleration in the construction
ctivity in the country primarily resulted from execution of various infrastructure projects and increased investment in small

le construction.

ortage remained an impediment to economic growth, while interest rates and inflation witnessed a decreasing
inflation registering its all-time low since 2003.

estic demand grew by 8% from 26.1 million tonnes to 28.2 million tonnes. Exports on the other hand, registered a
ecline of 12% from 8.1 million tonnes to 7.2 million tonnes mainly due to slower demand and competitive prices over the
corresponding period last year.

Qverall industry dispatches slightly increased from 34.2 million tonnes to 35.4 million tonnes during the reporting period.

Production and Sales Review

Consolidated Production and Sales

30 June 2015 30 June 2014 Increase Percentage
Tonnes Tonnes Tonnes Increase
Clinker production 4,294,735 3,869,025 425,710 11%
Cement production 4,776,382 4,368,750 407,632 9%
Cement & Xtreme 4,853,272 4,371,841 481,371 11%
Bond Sales

*Figures for the 2015 comprise of full year for Bestway and two months & nine days for Pakcem Limited (formerly Lafarge
Pakistan Limited). ;

“Your Company persevered not only in successfully increasing its market share in the north zone from 17% to 21 3%, but
‘has become the largest cement producer in the country. Despite competition in international markets, Bestway continued
to be one of the largest exporters of cement to Afghanistan and India.

Operating Highlights .

The year under review proved to be another year of fierce competition for cement producers. The c:oﬁw corded
consolidated sales of Rs 41.5 billion. The Company recorded a consolidated net turnover of Rs32.7 billion and a gross
profit of Rs. 13.3 billion. P
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AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated statement of financial positio
of Bestway Cement Limited and its subsidiary company as at 30 June 2015 and the related consolidated profit and loss
account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and i
consolidated cash flow statement together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended. We have also b
expressed separate opinion on the financial statements of Bestway Cement Limited and its subsidiary company. These
financial statements are responsibility of the Holding Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these financial statements based on our audit.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and accordingly included such tests
of accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of Bestway Cement Limited and
its subsidiary company as at 30 June 2015 and the results of their operations for the year then ended.

g LY k5L,

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Syed Balhtiyar Kazmi
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GREENER EVERYDAY

After the historical inauguration of two eco-friendly 13.5MW waste heat recovery
power plants by Pakistan’s No.1 cement group, Bestway Cement & Pakcem are
proud to announce a much smaller carbon footprint.

BUILDING ON STRENGTH




Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 30 June, 2015

2015 2014
Note —————Rupees in thousands
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 4 5,793,849 5,793,849
Share premium 3,225,770 3,225,770
Exchange translation reserve 1,111,398 1,069,489
Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investment 1,635,266 202,138
Unappropriated profit 22,544 691 18,283,450
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 34,310,974 28,574,696
Non-controlling interests 2,024,419 -
Total equity 36,335,393 28,574,696
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing 5 14,498,584 -
Long term musharaka 6 8,800,000 -
Long term advance 1,996 5,988
Deferred liabilities 7 6,124,287 5,349,783
29,424 867 5,355,771
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 8 6,131,988 4,899,142
Markup accrued 437,229 12,324
Short term borrowings 9 2,052,862 2,373,832
Current portion of long term financing 5 2,675,000 =
Current portion of long term musharaka 6 1,200,000 -
Provision for taxation - net - 160,738
12,497,079 7,446,036
78,257,339 41,376,503

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 10

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 30 June, 2015

2015 2014
Note = ——————Rupees in thousands

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 11 43,448,134 24,224 368
Intangible assets and goodwill 12 11,446,629 32,374
Investment property 13 345,905 345,785
Long term investment 14 10,983,221 8,444,561
Long term advances 14,333 8,006
Long term deposits 15 133,482 90,323

66,371,704 33,145,417
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and lcose tools 16 4,136,001 4,044,671
Stock in trade 17 2,718,225 1,932,612
Trade debts - considered good 18 862,701 571,981
Advances 19 443,745 400,784
Deposits and prepayments 20 65,731 21,518
Other receivables 21 135,856 2,523
Advance tax - net 308,890 :
Due from Government agencies 22 726,554 1,040,735
Cash and bank balances 23 2,487,932 216,262

11,885,635 8,231,086

78,257,339 41,376,503
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

Turnover - net
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Distribution cost

Other expenses
Finance cost

Other income

Share of profit of associated company
Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Note

24
25

26
27
28
29
30

31

2015 2014
Rupees in thousands
32,693,050 28,950,528
19,434,878 17,570,204
13,258,172 11,380,324
441,092 302,155
790,141 706,974
766,598 596,702
456,928 462,030
(116,669) (138,371)
2,338,090 1,929,490
1,947,751 1,662,211
12,867,833 11,113,045
(2,799,452) (2,562,419)
10,068,381 8,550,626
9,988,764 8,550,626
79,617 -
10,068,381 8,550,626
DIRECTORS|CFO




Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

2015 2014
Rupees in thousands

Profit for the year 10,068,381 8,550,626

ltems that will never be reclassified to profit or loss

Experience adjustment on defined benefit liability (8.370) (7,165)
Related tax effect 2,305 1,973
(6,065) (5,192)
Experience adjustment on defined benefit liability of associates 80,433 -
Related tax effect (8,043) &
72,390 -

ltems that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Company's' share of associate's

Foreign operations — foreign currency translation differences 41,909 26,402

Available-for-sale financial assets — net change in fair value 1,592,365 (195,928)
Cash flow hedges — effective portion of changes in fair value - 1,219
Related tax effects (159,237) 19,471

1,475,037 (148,836)

Other comprehensive income, net of tax 1,541,362 (154,028)
Total comprehensive income for the year 11,609,743 8,396,598

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Company 11,530,126 8,396,598
Non-controlling interests 79,617 -
11,609,743 8,396,598

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets

Depreciation

Amortization

Rental income from investment property

Profit on deposit accounts

Gain on remeasurement of investment property to fair value
Finance cost

Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax
Provision for staff retirement benefits

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Advances
Deposits and prepayments
Other receivables
Due from Government agencies

Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid
Staff retirement benefits paid
Income tax paid during the year

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions in property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets

Rent received from investment property

Decrease in long term advance

Cash paid on acquisition of the Subsidiary Company
Dividend received from associate

Profit on deposit accounts received

Decrease/ (increase) to long term deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term financing

Repayment of long term financing

Long term shirkat-ul-melk - repayments

Liability against asset subject to finance lease - repayments
Proceeds from long term musharika

Repayment of long term musharika

Dividend paid

Net cash generated/ (used) in financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Short term borrowing acquired as part of business combination

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Note

36

2015

2014

Rupees in thousands

12,867,833 11,113,045
(12,347) (24,284)
1,325,784 1,061,031
5,397 5,919
(26,705) (24,639)
(66,553) (51,794)
(120) (31,791)
456,928 462,030
(1,947,751) (1,662,211)
53,292 38,752
(212,075) (226,987)
12,655,758 10,886,058
822,895 (327,402)
253,293 290,823
(164,133) (283,309)
48,098 (186,741)
(15,075) 43,080
(28,798) (499)
314,181 (111,104)
(1,918,039) 329,734
(687,578) (245,418)
11,968,180 10,640,640
(249,363) (518,533)
(25,739) (13,962)
(1,976,577) (694,882)
(2.251,679) (1,227,377)
9,716,501 9,413,263
(1,476,026) (2,008,300)
26,593 42,802
27,054 30,945
_ 11 4,003
(25,806,342) .
1,123,798 983,322
64,528 51,230
42,240 (57)
(25,998,144) (894,055)
15,000,000 -
(437,500) (5,868,750)

- (200,000)

- (59,061)
10,000,000 .

: (300,000)
(5,172,357) (3,618,991)
19,390,143 (10,046,802)

3,108,500 (1,527,594)
(2,157,570) (629,976)
(515,860) -

435,070 (2,157,570)
DIRECTORE|CFO




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

[ Equity attributable to owners of the Company 4[
Capital Reserves “;"em"n“,e 5
Issued, Share Exchange Cashflow  Surplus/ Unappropriated Non- Total
subscribed  premium  translation hedge (deficit) on profit controlling
and paid up reserve reserve -  revaluation interests
share capital netoftax of available
for sale
investment -
net of tax
Rupees in thousand
Balance at 1 July 2013 5793849 3225770 1,043,087 (1,097) 378473 13,504,018 - 23,944,100
Praofit for the year - * - - - 8,550,626 8,550,626
QOther comprehensive income - - 26,402 1,097 (176,335) (5,192) (154,028)
Total comprehensive
income for the year ” - 26,402 1,097  (176,335) 8,545,434 - 8,396,598
Transactions with
owners, recorded
directly into equity
Dividend - Final 2013
@ Rs. 2 per share - - - - - (1,158,770) - (1,158,770)
Dividend - Interim
@ Rs. 2 per share - - . - - (1,158,770) - (1,158,770)
Dividend - Interim
@ Rs. 2.5 per share - - = - - (1,448,462) - (1,448,462)
Total transactions with
owners, recorded
directly into equity - - - . . (3.766,002) - (3,766.002)
Balance at 30 June 2014 5793849 3225770 1,069,489 - 202,138 18,283,450 - 28,574,696
Balance at 1 July 2014 5,793,849 3225770 1,069,489 - 202,138 18,283,450 - 28,574,696
Profit for the year - - - : - 9,988,764 79,617 || 10,068,381
Other comprehensive income - - 41,909 - 1,433,128 66,325 - 1,541,362
Total comprehensive
income for the year 7 £ 41,909 = 1,433,128 10,055,089 79617 11,609,743
Transactions with
owners, recorded
directly into equity
Dividend - Final 2014
@ Rs. 2.5 per share - - - - - (1,448.462) - (1,448,462)
Dividend - Interim 2015
@ Rs. 2.5 per share - = = - - (1,448,462) - (1,448,462)
Dividend - Interim 2015
@ Rs. 2.5 per share - - - - - (1,448,462) - (1,448.462)
Dividend - Interim 2015
@ Rs. 2.5 per share - - - - - (1,448.462) - (1,448,462)
Total transactions with
owners, recorded
directly into equity - E - - - (5,793,848) - (5,793.848)
Changes in ownership
interests
Acquisition of
subsidiary with NCI
_ 1944802 1,944,802
Balance at 30 June 2015 5793849 3225770 1,111,398 - 1635266 22544691 2024419 36335393

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Bestway Cement Limited (“the Parent Company”) is a public company incorporated in Pakistan on 22 December 1993
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and is listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange Limited si nce 09 April 2001.
The Company's registered office is at Bestway Building, 19-A, College Road F-7 Markaz, Islamabad. The Group is
primarily involved in manufacturing and sale of cement.

These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiary (collectively the ‘Group’ and
individually ‘Group companies’)

Subsidiary company

On 22 April 2015, the Parent Company assumed management control of Pakcem Limited (formerly Lafarge Pakistan
Cement Limited) ("the subsidiary company"). Pursuant to the Parent Company’s successful bid for 75.86% of Lafarge
Pakistan’s shares for an enterprise value of USD 329 million in July 2014 and acquisition of another 12.07% shares
of the target company through the public offer process. Accordingly, Pakcem Limited has become a subsidiary of the
Company during the period.

Other significant decisions

The Company has agreed to acquire 300,002 shares representing 50% of the issued share capital in Ecocem Pakistan
(Pvt.) Limited held by Lafarge Industrial Ecology International for a consideration of Rs. 22.4 million. Ecocem is in
the business of sorting, processing and selling solid municipal waste. Share purchase agreement was entered before
year end, however management expects to materalise transaction after year end.

The Company is considering acquisition of 14,091,087 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each representing 12.23% in UBL
Insurers Limited (“UIL") currently held by the Abu Dhabi Group. The price is to be negotiated between the Buyer and
the Sellers. Currently, Bestway (Holdings) Limited and United Bank Limited, associated companies of “the Company"
jointly hold 85.60% shares in the Target Company along with management control. The proposed transaction will be
subject to necessary legal formalities.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Consolidated financial statements

Pursuant to the acquisition of the Subsidiary Company Bestway Cement Limited has prepared consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2015.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the parent company and its 88.2%
owned subsidiary company Pakcem Limited (formerly know as Lafarge Pakistan Cement Limited.

2.2 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standard Board as are notified under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In
case requirements differ, the provisions of or directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall
prevail.

The applicable framework for banks also includes the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the provisions
of and directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan.

2.3 Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:

- investment property has been measured at fair value; and
- liability related to staff retirement benefits are measured at values determined through actuarial valuation.
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Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Pakistani Rupees (PKR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Figures have been
rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements is in conformity with the approved accounting standards
that requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements
is discussed in the ensuing paragraphs :

2.5.1 Property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews the useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment on a regular
basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items
of property, plant and equipment’s with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment
loss.

2.5.2 Provision for inventory obsolescence and doubtful receivables

The Group reviews the carrying amount of stores, spare parts and loose tools and stock in trade on a
regular basis. Provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical
form of related stores, spare parts and loose tools, further carrying amount of stock in trade is adjusted
where the net realisable value is below the cost. Further, the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables, are assessed on a regular basis and if there is any doubt about the realizability of these
receivables, appropriate amount of provision is made.

2.5.3 Taxation

The Group takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by the faxation authorities.
Instances where the Group's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the
assessment stage and where the Group considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance
with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

The Group also regularly reviews the trend of proportion of incomes between Presumptive Tax Regime
income and Normal Tax Regime income and the change in proportions, if significant, is accounted for
in the year of change.

2.5.4 Provision of staff retirement gratuity
The Group adopts certain actuarial assumptions as disclosed in note 8.2 to these consolidated financial

statements for determination of present value of defined benefit obligations. Any change in these
assumptions in future years might affect the carrying values of the provisions.
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2.5.5 Provisions and contingencies

The Group reviews the status of all the legal cases on a regular basis. Based on the expected outcome
and lawyers' judgments, appropriate disclosure or provision is made.

2.5.6 Impairment of assets

In making an estimate of future cash flows from the Group's assets including investment in associate,
the management considers estimated future cash flows and its ultimate net disposal value.

2.5.7 Fair value of net assets of the Subsidiary

Fair value measured on provisional basis as explained in note 35, the fair value of net assets acquired
for the Subsidiary Company has been determined on provisional basis.

2.5.8 Fair value of investment property

The Parent Company regularly reviews the fair value of investment property, the estimate of fair values
are directly linked to market value conditions. Any change in estimate will effect the carrying value of
investment property with corresponding impact on profit and loss account.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2015:

Amendments to IAS 38 Intangible Assets and IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016) introduce severe restrictions on the use of revenue-based amortization
for intangible assets and explicitly state that revenue-based methods of depreciation cannot be used for property,
plant and equipment. The rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based amortisation methods for
intangible assets is inappropriate can be overcome only when revenue and the consumption of the economic
benefits of the intangible asset are ‘highly correlated’, or when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’ — (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015) replaces the part of IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate consolidated financial statements’. IFRS 10
introduces a new approach to determining which investees should be consolidated. The single model to be
applied in the control analysis requires that an investor controls an investee when the investor is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. IFRS 10 has made consequential changes to IAS 27 which is now called
‘Separate consolidated financial statements’ and will deal with only separate consolidated financial statements.
Certain further amendments have been made to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 clarifying the requirements
relating to accounting for investment entities and would be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015) replaces IAS
31 ‘Interests in Joint Ventures'. Firstly, it carves out, from IAS 31 jointly controlled entities, those cases in which
although there is a separate vehicle, that separation is ineffective in certain ways. These arrangements are
treated similarly to jointly controlled assets/operations under IAS 31 and are now called joint operations. Secondly,
the remainder of IAS 31 jointly controlled entities, now called joint ventures, are stripped of the free choice of
using the equity method or proportionate consolidation; they must now always use the equity method. IFRS 11
has also made consequential changes in IAS 28 which has now been named ‘Investment in Associates and
Joint Ventures’. The amendments requiring business combination accounting to be applied to acquisitions of
interests in a joint operation that constitutes a business are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. The adoption of this standard is not likely to have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015) combines the disclosure requirements for entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements
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(i.e. joint operations or joint ventures), associates and/or consolidated structured entities, into one place. The
adoption of this standard is not likely to have an impact on the consolidated financial statements, except for
certain additional disclosures.

- IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement' effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015) defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and sets out disclosure requirements for fair value
measurements. IFRS 13 explains how to measure fair value when it is required by other IFRSs. It does not
introduce new fair value measurements, nor does it eliminate the practicability exceptions to fair value
measurements that currently exist in certain standards. The Group is assessing the impact of this standard on
the consolidated financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 27 ‘Separate consolidated financial statements’ (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016). The amendments to IAS 27 will allow entities to use the equity method to account for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate consolidated financial statements.
The adoption of the amended standard is not likely to have an impact on the consolidated financial statements.

- Agriculture: Bearer Plants [Amendments fo IAS 16 and IAS 41] (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016). Bearer plants are now in the scope of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment for
measurement and disclosure purposes. Therefore, an entity can elect to measure bearer plants at cost. However,
the produce growing on bearer plants will continue to be measured at fair value less costs to sell under IAS 41
Agriculture. A bearer plant is a plant that: is used in the supply of agricultural produce; is expected to bear
produce for more than one period; and has a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce. Before
maturity, bearer plants are accounted for in the same way as self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment during construction. The adoption of the amended standard is not likely to have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS
10 and IAS 28) [effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016]. The main consequence of
the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involve a business (whether it is
housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. The adoption of these amendments
is not likely to have an impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 cycles (amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016). The new cycle of improvements contain amendments to the following standards, however these
are not likely to have an impact on the consolidated financial statements;

- IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. IFRS 5 is amended to clarify that if an
entity changes the method of disposal of an asset (or disposal group) i.e. reclassifies an asset from held for
distribution to owners to held for sale or vice versa without any time lag, then such change in classification is
considered as continuation of the original plan of disposal and if an entity determines that an asset (or disposal
group) no longer meets the criteria to be classified as held for distribution, then it ceases held for distribution
accounting in the same way as it would cease held for sale accounting.

- IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments- Disclosures’. IFRS 7 is amended to clarify when servicing arrangements are in
the scope of its disclosure requirements on continuing involvement in transferred financial assets in cases when
they are derecognized in their entirety. IFRS 7 is also amended to clarify that additional disclosures required
by ‘Disclosures: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS7)’ are not specifically
required for inclusion in condensed interim consolidated financial statements for all interim periods.

- IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits'. IAS 19 is amended to clarify that high quality corporate bonds or government bonds
used in determining the discount rate should be issued in the same currency in which the benefits are to be
paid.

- IAS 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting'. IAS 34 is amended to clarify that certain disclosures, if they are not included
in the notes to interim consolidated financial statements and disclosed elsewhere should be cross referred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Basis of consolidation
Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the
Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable
net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Transaction costs are expensed
as incurred.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settiement of pre-existing relationships.
Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent
consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured
and settliement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiary

Subsidiary is that enterprise in which the Company directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more
than 50% of the voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than 50% of its directors.

Non-controlling interests (NCI)
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and
any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Interests in equity-accounted investees
The Group's interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control over the financial and
operating policies. Jointly controlled entities are those entities over whose activities the company has joint control
established by contractual agreement and requiring unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating
decisions.

Interests in associates and the joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially
recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial
statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of equity accounted
investees, until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are
eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee Unrealised losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Employees’ Benefits
Gratuity - Defined benefit plan

The Parent Company maintains an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its eligible employees. Annual provision
for gratuity is made on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Latest valuation was conducted as at 30 June 2015.

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 7.2 to the consolidated financial statements
for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations.

Compensated absences

The Parent Company recognises provision for compensated absences on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related services is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under
compensated absences if the Parent Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. The
compensated absences are payable to employees at the time of retirement / termination of service. The provision
is determined on the basis of last drawn salary and accumulated leaves balance at the reporting date.

Defined contribution plan

The Subsidiary Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all its employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made to the fund by the Subsidiary Company and the employees, at the rate of 10% of the
employee's basic salary. The Subsidiary Company's contribution to the provident fund is recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income, as incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit and loss account
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in comprehensive income or equity, in which case
it is recognized in comprehensive income or equity.

Current

The Company accounts for current taxation on the basis of taxable income at the current rates of taxation after
taking into account tax credits and rebates, if any, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
year in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Deferred

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary difference between
the carrying value of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary difference
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authorities on the same taxable entity, but
the Group intends to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or the tax assets and liabilities will
be realised and settled simultaneously.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

Temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting not taxable profit or loss;
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3.6

3.7

Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates to the extent the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future; and

Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

The effect on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected to fall under presumptive tax regime is adjusted
in accordance with the requirement of Accounting Technical Release - 27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan. Deferred tax is charged or credited to income.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the differences reverse, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre tax discount rate that reflects current markat assessment of time value of
money and risk specific to the liability. The unwinding of discount is recognized as finance cost.

Borrowing cost

Markup, interest and other charges on borrowings used for acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized up to the date when the qualifying assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Borrowing
cost is included in the related property, plant and equipment acquired / constructed out of the proceeds of such
borrowings. All other markup, interest and related charges are charged to the profit and loss account in the
period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible assets

Owned

These are measured at cost, which includes purchase price, import duties, directly attributable costs and related
borrowing costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land and capital work in

progress are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.

Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred whereas
major improvements and modifications are capitalized.

Depreciation is charged to income applying the reducing balance method except leasehold land, buildings and
plant and machinery. Buildings and plant and machinery are depreciated on straight line method. Leasehold
land is amortized over the remaining period of the lease. Rates of depreciation / estimated useful lives are
mentioned in note 11.1.

Depreciation is charged on prorata basis from the month in which an asset is acquired or capitalized, while no
depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. Days in excess of fifteen days are
considered as full month for the purpose of calculation of depreciation.

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are taken to the profit and loss account.
Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the

asset will flow to the enterprise and that the cost of such asset can also be measured reliably. These are stated
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
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Amortization of intangible assets, having finite useful life, is charged by applying straight line method over their
estimated useful lives, so as to write off the cost of assets at amortization rate as mentioned in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefit embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit and loss account as incurred.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
for sale in ordinary course of business, used in production or supply of goods or services or for administration
purposes. Investment property is initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair value with any change
therein recognized in profit and loss account.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property.

Investment property is stated at its fair value at the balance sheet date. Gain or losses, arising from the change
in the fair value of investment property are recognized in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, its fair value
at the date of reclassification became its cost for subsequent accounting.

Impairment

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax asset, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs 10 sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of
assets (the “cash-generating unit, or CGU").

The Group's corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate
asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset
belongs. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss account.

Impairment loss recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Financial assets

Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they
are impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may
include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

All individually significant assets are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant assets found
not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not
yet identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping
together assets with similar risk characteristics.
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An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's
original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account.
Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed
through profit and loss account.

Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction.
All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rate
of exchange ruling on the balance sheet date and exchange differences, if any. are charged to income for the
year.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition,
are translated to Pak Rupees at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated to Pak Rupees at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income, and presented in the foreign
currency translation reserve in equity. When a foreign operation is disposed off in its entirety or partially such
that control, significant influence is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign
operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the group disposes of only
part of its investment in an associate that includes a foreign operation while retaining significant influence, the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value.

For items which are slow moving and / or identified as surplus to the Group's requirements, adequate provision
is made for any excess book value over estimated net realizable value. The Group reviews the carrying amount
of stores, spare parts and loose tools on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Stock in trade

Stocks of raw materials, work in process and finished goods are valued at lower of weighted average cost and
net realisable value. Cost of raw material, work in process and finished goods comprises of direct materials,
labor and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value signifies estimated selling price less
estimated cost of completion and estimated cost to sell.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognized when
significant risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customers, recovery of the consideration
is probable, the associated costs and possible return of the goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing
management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. If it is probable
that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then the discount is recognized as a
reduction of revenue as the sales are recognized.

The timing of fransfer of risk and rewards varies depending on the individual's terms of the sale agreements.
For some international shipments, transfer occurs on the loading of goods onto the relevant carrier at the port.
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Return on deposit is accounted for on a time proportion basis. Dividend income is recognized when the right
to receive such income is established. Rental income on investment property is recognized when due.

Markup bearing borrowings

Markup bearing borrowings are recognized initially at cost representing the fair value of consideration received
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, markup bearing borrowings are stated at
original cost less subsequent repayments, while the difference between the original recognized amounts (as
reduced by periodic payments) and redemption value is recognized in the profit and loss account over the period
of borrowings on an effective rate basis. The borrowing cost on qualifying asset is included in the cost of related
asset as explained in note 3.6.

Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial assets

These are initially recognized on the date that they are originated i.e. trade date which is the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
the Company transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in such transferred
financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets as loans and other receivables. Loans and receivables
comprise investments classified as loans and receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables.

Trade debts, other receivables and other financial assets

Trade debts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method,
less any impairment losses. Known bad debts are written off, when identified.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with maturities of three months or less
from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by
the Group in the management of its short-term commitments.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognizes non derivative financial liabilities on the date that they are originated or the date
that the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group derecognizes a
financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

These financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Non derivative financial liabilities comprise markup bearing borrowings including obligations
under finance lease, bank overdrafts and trade and other payables.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the

Group has a legally enforceable right to setoff the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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3.16 Dividend

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as liability in the period in which it is declared.

2015 2014 2015 2014
Number of Shares — —Rupees in thousands
Ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each
514,163,552 514,163,552 issued for cash 5,141,636 5,141,636

Ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each issued
64,038,422 64,038,422 as fully paid bonus share 640,384 640,384

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10
each pursuant to scheme
1,182,944 1,182,944 of amalgamation 11,829 11,829

579,384,918 579,384,918 5,793,849 5,793,849

Authorised share capital

700,000,000 (2014: 700,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 7,000,000 7,000,000

41 Bestway (Holdings) Limited, U.K. is the parent company controlling 319,885,740 i.e. 55.32% (2014: 319,885,740
i.e. 55.32%) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each of the Company and 38,164,582 (2014: 41,470,129) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each and 89,121,271 (2014: 39,121,271) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each are held by nominee directors
and associated companies respectively.

: 2015 2014
5. Long term financing - secured Note Rupees in thousands
Syndicate term finance facilities

Obtained by the Parent Company 51&5.2 15,000,000 -
Obtained by the Subsidiary Company 5.3 2,173,584 -
Current portion of long term financing (2,675,000) -
14,498,584 =

5.1 Syndicate term finance facilities
Allied Bank Limited 5,500,000 =
Habib Bank Limited 5,500,000 -
Soneri Bank Limited 1,500,000 -
Askari Bank Limited 1,000,000 =
MCB Bank Limited 1,500,000 =
15,000,000 >

5.2 This represents term finance from a syndicate of banks with Allied Bank Limited as lead bank. This facility is
repayable in 10 stepped up semi annual installments starting from October, 2015, Markup is payable on semi
annual basis at the rate of KIBOR plus 0.50% per annum. This facility along with the facility disclosed in note
6 is secured against all present and future assets excluding land and buildings of the Company for an amount
of Rs. 33.33 billion and mortgage charge created by way of deposit of title deeds.

5.3 This represents term finance from a syndicate of banks with MCB Bank Limited as lead bank. This facility is
repayable in 5 equal semi annual installments. This facility carried markup ranging between 6 months KIBOR
plus 225 and 115 basis points with an effective rate of six months KIBOR plus 40 basis points at the period end..
This facility is secured against asset of the Subsidiary Company upt to an amount of Rs. 5,333 million.
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2015 2014
Note = —— Rupees in thousands
6. Long term musharka - secured

Meezan Bank Limited 3,000,000 -
Faysal Bank Limited 3,000,000 -
Bank Alfalah Limited 3.000,000 -
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited 1,000,000 -
6.1 10,000,000 -
Current portion of long term musharka (1,200,000) -
8,800,000 -

6.1 This facility is repayable in 10 stepped up semi annual installments starting from October, 2015 and is from a
syndicate of banks. Markup is payable on semi annual basis at the rate of KIBOR plus 0.50% per annum. This
facility is secured against security as provided in Note 5.2 above.

2015 2014
Note —— Rupees in thousands
7. Deferred liabilities
Deferred taxation izl 5,869.067 5,130,486
Provision for gratuity 72 236,483 199,730
Provision for compensated absences 7.3 18,737 19,567
6,124,287 5,349,783
7.1 Deferred tax liability is recognised
on following major temporary differences:
Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated depreciation 8,445,892 4,571,911
Accelerated amortization 7,096 7,348
Surplus of revaluation of available for
sale investments 181,696 22,460
Share of profit of associated company 611,163 528,767
Other differences related to associate's OClI 8,043 “
Deductible temporary differences
Tax losses (3,003,730) -
Tax credits (380,250) -
Other temporary differences (843)
714 5,869,067 5,130,486
7.1.1  Movement of deferred tax liability
is as follows:
Opening balance 5,130,486 3,866,567
Deferred tax recogised through
business combination 116,516 -
Credit/(charge) recognised in profit and
loss account for the year (370,214) 1,283,390
Adjustment of group relief 732 825,000 =
Charge recognised through other
comprehensive income 167,280 (19,471)
Closing balance 5,869,068 5,130,486

7.4.2 Based on the Group's estimate of future export sales, adjustment of Rs. 1,927 million (2014: Rs. 1,039
million) has been made in the taxable temporary differences at the year end. This has resulted in
increased after tax profit by Rs. 578.11 million (2014: Rs. 363.53 million) with corresponding decrease
in deferred tax liability by the same amount.
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7.1.3  This represents the purchase of carried forward tax losses under Group relief provisions of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 pursuant to the decision of Board of directors of the Parent Company and the
Subsidiary Company in their meetings held on 29 June 2015 . Subsequent to the period end on 08
September 2015, the Parent Company has been registered as Group under serial number GR000041
and now is entitled to obtain Group Designation letter from SECP to avail the benefit of Group Relief
under the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. Further application has been filed with the tax authorities to
change the tax year of the Subsidiary to 30 June 2015. The management of the Parent Company expects
that the approvals will have been received prior to filing of tax return for the Tax year 2015 and accordingly
the Parent Company will be able to adjust the tax loss purchased against tax liability of the Parent
Company.

7.2 The amount recognised in the balance sheet is as follow:

2015 2014
Rupees in thousands
Present value of defined benefit obligation 236,483 199,730
Net defined benefit liability 236,483 199,730
Balance at 1 July 199,730 164,451
Included in profit and loss account
Current service cost 28,478 23,967
Interest cost 24,814 18,109
53,292 42,076

Included in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement losses

Experience adjustments 8,370 7,165
Others
Benefits paid (24.909) (13,962)
Balance at 30 June 236,483 199,730

Actuarial Assumptions

The following were the principal assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages).

2015 2014
Discount rate 9.75% 13.25%
Future salary growth 8.75% 12.25%
Withdrawal rates Moderate Moderate

Assumption regarding future mortality has been based on published statistics and mortality tables. The mortality
rates are based on State Life Insurance Corporation (SLIC) 2001-05 ultimate mortality rate (2014: State Life
Insurance Corporation (SLIC) 2001-05 ultimate mortality rate), rated down by one year.

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date at one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumption constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligations by the amount shown below;

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Rupees in thousands
Discount rate (1% movement) (16,207) 18,869 (13,982) 16,955
Future salary growth (1% movement) 19,881 (17.339) 16,955 (14,221)
Future mortality (1 year change) 63 (63) 389 (279)

Withdrawal rate (10% movement) 380 (398) 653 (1,000)
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Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does
provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumption shown.

Expected maturity profile

Following are the expected distribution and timing of benefit payments at year end;

2015 2014
Rupees in thousands

Year 1 67,977 42 845
Year 2 10,231 30,397
Year 3 15,242 9,608
Year 4 14,431 14,820
Year 5 21,358 14,888
Year 6 to Year 10 71,701 87,405
Year 11 and above 483,785 826,137

Expected gratuity expense for the next financial year is Rs. 50.65 million (2014: Rs. 50.33 million).
Risk associated with defined benefit plan
Longevity Risks

The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan
level over the entire retiree population.

Salary Increase Risk

The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk arises
when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

Withdrawai Risk

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the benefit obligation.
The movement of the liability can go either way.

Historical information

Present value of the defined benefit obligation

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Rupees in thousands

Present value of defined N
benefit obligation 236,483 199,730 164,451 125,605 105,421

Net liability at end of the year 236,483 : 199,730 164,451 125,605 105,421

7.3 Actuarial valuation of compensated absences has not been carried out since the management believes that the
effect of actuarial valuation would not be material.
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2015 2014
Note ——Rupees in thousands
8. Trade and other payables

Payable to contractors and suppliers 1,157,335 1,417,099

Accrued liabilities 8.1 2,257,410 1,893,907

Advances from customers 167,393 90,788

Security deposits 80,661 47,874

Retention money 50,664 15,383

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 594,979 695,770

Workers Welfare Fund payable 312,966 105,595

Excise duty payable 187,655 37,189

Advance rent of investment property 7,835 7,486

Other payables 8.2 103,508 67,143

Donation payable to Bestway Foundation 166,401 97,218

Dividend payable 1,045,181 423,690

6,131,988 4,899,142

8.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 32.84 million (2014: Rs. 27.46 million) payable to Sui Northern Gas Pipeline
Limited (SNGPL) against gas consumption during the month of June 2015 by the Parent Company. The Parent
Company has issued bank guarantees in the normal course of business to SNGPL for commercial and industrial
use of gas for an amount of Rs. 1,252.41 million (2014: Rs. 1,252.41 million).

8.2 This includes an amount of Rs. 42 million (2014: Rs. 42 million) on account of provision, recorded on a prudent
basis, which the management feels will ultimately be required to be paid to owners of the land acquired for hattar
plant as ordered by the Honorable Peshawar High Court. However, the Parent Company has filed an appeal
in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan.

Short term borrowings - secured

Running finance from banking companies 2015 2014

Note —— Rupees in thousands

Availed by the Parent Company

Soneri Bank Limited 9.1 - 350 247,953
Allied Bank Limited 9.2 810,083 1,008,438
Habib Bank Limited 9.3 25,376 451,900
Askari Bank Limited - 165,541
Meezan Bank Limited - 500,000
Availed by the Subsidiary Company _
Running finance facilities 9.4 1,217,053 -
2,052,862 2,373,832
9.1  This represents the utilized amount of a running finance facility of Rs. 300 million for a period of one year (2014:

9.2

9.3

Rs. 300 million). Markup is payable on quarterly basis at the rate of three month's KIBOR plus 0.40% (2014:
three months' KIBOR plus 0.60%) per annum. The facility is secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge
on all present and future current assets of the Parent Company for an amount of Rs. 634 million (2014: Rs. 400
million).

This represents the utilized amount of a running finance facility of Rs. 1,150 million for a period of one year
(2014: Rs. 1,150 million). Markup is payable on quarterly basis at the rate of cne month KIBOR plus 0.40%
(2014: one month KIBOR plus 0.40%) per annum. The facility is secured by lien over saving accounts and first
pari passu hypothecation charge on all present and future assets excluding land and buildings of the Parent
Company for an amount of Rs. 1,333.33 million (2014: Rs. 1,333.33 million).

This represents the utilized amount of running finance facility of Rs. 970 million for a period of one year (2014:
Rs. 970 million). Markup is payable on quarterly basis at the rate of three month's KIBOR plus 0.50% (2014:
three months' KIBOR plus 0.60%) per annum. The facility is secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge
over all present and future movables assets and current assets of the Company for an amount of Rs. 1,294
million (2014: Rs. 1,294 million).
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10.

9.4

9.5

This represents utilised portion of short-term running finance facilities from various commercial banks with an
aggregate sanctioned limit of Rs. 2,500 million (2014: Rs. 2,500 million). Mark-up is payable on a quarterly basis
in arrears, at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 0.50% to 1.5% (2014: 3 months KIBOR + 0.50% to 1.25%) per
annum. These facilities are secured against all present and future assets of the Company excluding land,
building, cash and cash equivalents.

Unavailed facilities

The Group has running finance facilities and other short term borrowing facilities for an amount of Rs. 9,357
million (2014: Rs. 7,126 million) which the Group has not availed at the year end.

Facilities of letters of guarantee and letters of credit amounting to Rs. 1,646 million (2014: Rs. 309.08 million)
and Rs. 5,920 million (2014: Rs. 5,626.03 million) respectively are available to the Company. Facilities of letters
of guarantee are secured by first pari passu charge on present and future assets of the Group.

Contingencies and commitments

10.1 Contingencies and commitments

of the Parent Company 2015 2014
Note —————Rupees in thousands
In respect of bank guarantees of the
Parent Company 1031 § _ 32,627 40,457
In respect of letters of credits of the 5
Parent Company 546,103 1,024,567

10.1.1 All bank guarantees are secured by way of charge over operating fixed assets of the Parent Company.

10.1.2 Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) issued a show cause notice dated 28 October 2008 to 21
cement companies (including the Parent Company) under section 30 of the Competition Ordinance,
2007. On 27 August 2009, CCP imposed a penalty of Rs. 710 million on the Parent Company and MCL.
The cement manufacturers (including the Parent Company) has challenged the CCP order in Honourable
High Court and the Honourable High Court has passed an interim order restraining CCP from taking
any adverse action against these 21 cement companies.

Against the above referred order of CCP dated 27 August 2009 an appeal was also filed as abundant
caution in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan under Section 42 of the Competition Ordinance,
2007. During the year, the case was fixed for hearing on time to time, however because of non availability
of defendant, the hearings of the case were adjourned. These appeals are still pending and management
is confident of a favorable outcome of the case.

10.1.3 Initially DCIR raised assessment against the Parent Company for the tax years 2010 to 2012 for alleged
suppression of production worked backed by using “Standard Gypsum Consumption Formula”. On
appeal by the Parent Company, the CIR(A) vide orders dated 25 July 2013, set aside the assessment
for denovo consideration with directions. the Parent Company has filed an appeal before the Honorable
ATIR against the set-aside order of the CIR(A), which is pending for adjudication.

Onward the DCIR completed the re-assessment assuming production at 98 % of rated capacity, without
confronting to the Parent Company and raised an aggregate demand of Rs. 8,541 million (BCL Rs.
6,982 million and MCL Rs. 1,559 million) for the tax years 2010 to 2012. On appeal by the Parent
Company, the CIR(A) vide order dated 22 May 2014 endorsed the view of the DCIR but reduced assumed
production of the plant to 86.66 % of rated capacity using weighted average capacity utilization of another
cement manufacturer.

On appeal filed by the Parent Company the ATIR has annulled the orders of tax authority. The tax
Department has filed reference before the Honourable Islamabad High Court against the appellate orders
of the ATIR.
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10.1.4 The tax authority conducted audit of sales tax affairs of the Parent Company and consequent to audit

10.1.5

10.1.6

10.1.7

proceedings, the tax authority framed order-in-original No. 01 of 2015 dated 31 August 2015 through
which the tax demand of Rs. 230.91 million was raised. the Parent Company is in process of filing an
appeal before the CIR(A) against the said order of the tax authority.

Based on an audit for the period from July 2009 to June 2010, DCIR vide Order-in-Original No. 23 of
2013 dated 30 April 2013 raised aggregate sales tax demand of Rs. 639.17 million against the Parent
Company mainly on suppression of production. On appeal by the Parent Company, the CIR(A) vide
order dated 25 July 2013, set aside the order in original and directed the DCIR for a fresh consideration
of the matter. the Parent Company has filed an appeal before the Honorable ATIR against the order of
the CIR(A), which is pending for adjudication. The management is confident of a favorable outcome of
the case.

Sales Tax Department has raised tax demand of Rs. 52.75 million vide order dated 27 March 2010
mainly for misconstrued/ duplicate demand of Sales Tax and Federal Excise Duty on sale of clinker and
rejection of input tax on certain eligible items. On first appeal, the CIR(A) confirmed the order while in
second appeal by the Parent Company the Honorable Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue vide order
dated 24 February 2011 has set aside the assessment for denovo consideration, resultantly no demand
exists at the moment. the Parent Company has also filed an appeal before Islamabad High Court against
the set aside order praying for annulment of the assessment.

In re-assessment proceedings the Department again maintained the assessment at a tax demand of
Rs. 52.75 million vide order dated 14 September 2012. On appeal, the CIR(A), vide an order dated 21
November 2012, set aside the assessment for denovo consideration, hence no demand exists as of
today.

There are certain other cases outstanding as on 30 June 2015 other than those disclosed in these
consolidated financial statements. The management assess and claim favorable outcome in these cases
and the lawyers have also asserted management claims in respect of favorable outcome.

10.2 Contingencies and commitments of the Subsidiary Company

10.2.1

10.2.2

10.2.3

The Subsidiary Company has issued post dated cheques, aggregating to Rs. 4.07 million (2014: Rs.
4.07 million) in favor of the Collector of Customs against the import duty payable on polypropylene sacks.

The Subsidiary Company has issued i) a bank guarantee of Rs. 146 million (2014: Rs. 146 million) in
favor of Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited, in lieu of security deposits against supply of natural gas
to its cement manufacturing plant in Chakwal ; ii) a bank guarantee of Rs. 104.84 million (2014: Rs.
104.84 million) to Controller Military Accounts, Defense Purchase, Rawalpindi, against cement dispatches
; and iii) a bank guarantee of Rs. 1.02 million (2014: Rs. 0.97 million) to Bureau of Indian Standards,
against exports to India.

In 1998, a demand was raised by the Revenue Authority, District Chakwal, Punjab, in respect of a
shortfall in stamp duty and penalty thereon, amounting to Rs. 44.93 million and Rs. 224.66 million,
respectively, in respect of land mortgaged by the Subsidiary Company against long-term foreign currency
financing. During the course of appellate procedures, the Chief Revenue Authority, Board of Revenue,
Punjab, reiterated the demand.

The Subsidiary Company challenged the demand by filing a revision petition with the Honorable Lahore
High Court, which was dismissed by the Honorable Lahore High Court in April 2008. the Subsidiary
Company filed an appeal with the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan against the aforementioned
decision of the Honorable Lahore High Court. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan accepted the
Subsidiary Company's plea and remanded the case back to the Honorable Lahore High Court, vide its
order dated 19 June 2009.

The Honorable Lahore High Court, through its order dated 13 November, 2013, decided the matter
against the Subsidiary Company and directed the Revenue Authority, District Chakwal, Punjab, to recover
the defaulted amount of stamp duty, of Rs. 44.93 million, with a penalty equal to five times the amount
of the default from the Subsidiary Company. Pursuant to the High Court's judgment, the Revenue Officer
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10.2.4

10.2.5

10.2.6

served a demand notice of the said amount to the Subsidiary Company, under Section 81 of the Land
Revenue Act, 1967, on 24 December, 2013. the Subsidiary Company has filed an appeal in the Honorable
Supreme Court of Pakistan against the decision of the Honorable High Court. The Honorable Supreme
Court of Pakistan has granted leave to appeal which was filed.

The legal counsel of the Subsidiary Company is of the view that the maximum exposure to the Subsidiary
Company is to the extent of the amount of the principal shortfall in stamp duty, of Rs. 44.93 million, and
that the penalty of Rs. 224.66 million is expected to be waived off by the Honorable Supreme Court of
Pakistan, based on earlier decisions in cases of a similar nature and substance. Accordingly, on the
basis of the advice of its legal counsel, the Subsidiary Company has recorded a provision of Rs. 44.93
million in these consolidated financial statements, being the principal amount of the shortfall in stamp
duty, with no provision for the above referred penalty, pending a final decision in this matter.

In August 2008, the Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) issued an order against 21 cement
manufacturers, including the Subsidiary Company, whereby it alleged that the Subsidiary Company was
involved in forming a cartel with other cement manufacturers to control the local cement market, and
imposed a fine of Rs. 405 million on the Subsidiary Company. the Subsidiary Company filed appeals
before the Honorable Lahore High Court and the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, against the
decision of the CCP. The Honorable Lahore High Court has passed an interim order restraining the CCP
from taking any adverse action against the 21 cement manufacturers. Pending the outcome of the
appeals, no provision has been made against the above referred fine in these consolidated financial
statements, as the management and its legal counsel are confident that the matter will ultimately be
decided in favor of the Subsidiary Company.

In 2002, State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan (an initial shareholder of the Subsidiary Company)
filed two suits with the Honorable Sindh High Court against Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Jaweed (the then
Chairman of the Chakwal Group - the previous parent of the Subsidiary Company), for recovery of an
aggregate amount of Rs. 461 million plus interest/markup, (at the rates ranging from 16% to 20%), on
account of agreements of sale and repurchase of shares, executed at various times in August 1995,
between State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan and the then Chairman of the Chakwal Group.
During the year 2014, the Subsidiary Company received a letter from Chakwal Group stating that the
Subsidiary Company is also a party to the case and can be held liable to pay the damages by the
Honorable Sindh High Court. The legal advisor of the Subsidiary Company is of the opinion that the
Subsidiary Company can be extricated from the case, provided that it can be shown to the Court that
the then Chairman of the Chakwal Group was not authorised to act in this regard on behalf of the
Subsidiary Company. No provision has been made against the aforementioned case in these consolidated
financial statements, as the management and its legal counsel are confident that the matter will ultimately
be decided in favor of the Subsidiary Company.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), vide a demand notice dated 25 October, 2011,
raised an aggregate sales tax demand of Rs. 690 million against the Subsidiary Company, in pursuance
of an audit conducted for the period from January 2007 to December 2007. the Subsidiary Company
filed an appeal against the said order before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A). The
CIR(A) endorsed the view of the DCIR, but reduced the demand of sales tax, Federal Excise Duty and
default surcharge to Rs. 489 million. the Subsidiary Company filed an appeal before the Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of the CIR(A). The ATIR, vide its order dated 30
March, 2012, set aside the orders of the CIR(A) and directed the DCIR for a fresh consideration of the
matter. the Subsidiary Company then filed an appeal before the Honorable Islamabad High Court against
the order of the ATIR. In the meanwhile, in the re-assessment, as directed by the ATIR, the DCIR vide
its order dated 31 October, 2012 repeated its earlier action and raised a demand of Rs. 489 million. the
Subsidiary Company has filed an appeal before the CIR(A) against the aforementioned order of the
DCIR. The CIR(A) vide its order dated 20 December, 2012 remanded back the order of the DCIR.

The Subsidiary Company has filed an appeal before the ATIR, against the order of the CIR(A), which

is pending a decision. Further, as directed by the CIR(A), the matter is also pending for adjudication with
the DCIR. Pending the outcome of the appeals, no provision has been made in these consolidated
financial statements for the demand raised by the taxation authorities, as management and its legal
counsel are confident that the matter will ultimately be decided in the favour of the Subsidiary Company.
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10.2.7 The DCIR, vide a demand notice dated 6 January, 2014, raised an aggregate sales tax demand of Rs.

10.2.8

10.2.9

297.9 million by alleging that the Subsidiary Company has made a shortfall in payment of sales tax,
owing to an unlawful adjustment of input tax credit and suppression of the output tax, for the period from
July 2010 to June 2011. the Subsidiary Company filed an appeal before the CIR(A) against the order
of the DCIR. In 2014, the CIR(A) directed the taxation officer to re-examine the matter and pending the
outcome of the matter, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements for the
demand raised by the taxation authorities, as management is confident that the matter will ultimately
be decided in favour of the Subsidiary Company.

The Sind Revenue Board (SRB) authorities after having audit of consolidated financial statements of
the Subsidiary Company for the year 2012 & 2013 has demanded sales tax on the royalty and technical
assistance fee on account of franchise services received by the Subsidiary Company from then ultimate
parent company. Being aggrieved to the notice, company filed petition in Honorable Sind High Court
against unwarranted demand and inquiry initiated by the SRB. The Honorable Sind High Court granted
an interim order in faver of the Subsidiary Company. Pending the outcome of plaint, no provision has
been made in these consolidated financial statements, as the management and its legal counsel are
confident that the matter will uitimately be decided in favor of the Subsidiary Company.

The assessing officer vide Order in Original No. 27/70 dated 01 July 2015, in the matter of alleged
excess input tax claim has raised demand of Rs. 1.43 million. The DCIR has also raised the tax demand
of Rs. 12.02 million with respect to input tax on purchases alleged to have been made from black listed
/ suspended / blocked / inactive suppliers. The demand of Rs. 1.86 million raised on account of sales
tax not withheld on taxable purchased. Company filed an appeal with CIA(A). A stay in demand has
been granted by IHC. The legal counsel understands that in view of FBR's General Order on this matter
and judicial pronouncements in parallel cases, the Subsidiary Company has a fairly strong case before
the appellate authorities.

The assessing officer vide Order in original No. 26/70 dated 30 June 2015 whereby demand of Rs. 18.07
million has been raised against the Subsidiary Company on account of Federal Excise duty [FED]
allegedly not paid on fee for technical services and royalty paid to the previously Holding company during
July 12 to June 13. the Subsidiary Company is of the view that the taxation officer has incorrectly worked
out the demand and has filed a rectification application as well as appeal to CIR(A). A stay in demand
has been granted by IHC. The legal counsel is of the opinion that the Subsidiary Company has a fairly
strong case before the appellate authorities and favorable outcome is expected.

The DCIR issued a show cause notice to the Subsidiary Company, on account of alleged non payment
of FED on Industrial Franchise Fee amounting to Rs. 26.089 million, for the period from January 2011
to December 2011. the Subsidiary Company filed a reply to the show cause; however, the DCIR, vide
its order dated 23 September, 2013, asserted that the Subsidiary Company has made a partial payment
of FED amounting to Rs. 16.418 million and raised a demand for the balance amount of Rs. 9.671
million. the Subsidiary Company filed an appeal against the order of the DCIR before the CIR(A). The
CIR(A), vide its order dated 16 December, 2013, has vacated the demand of Rs. 9.671 million, with an
observation, that the DCIR may take action against the Subsidiary Company on account of the late
payment of FED. the Subsidiary Company has filed an appeal against the above mentioned observation
of the CIR(A), before the ATIR. Further the tax department, also being aggrieved by the order of the
CIR(A), has filed an appeal before the ATIR. Currently, both the appeals are pending decision with the
ATIR. Pending the outcome of the appeals, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial
statements for any amounts, as management is confident that the matter will ultimately be decided in
the favour of the Subsidiary Company.

10.2.10 Certain other cases against the Subsidiary Company are pending in different courts of law. However,

the management is of the view that the outcome of these cases is expected to be favourable and a
liability, if any, arising on the settlement of these cases is not likely fo be material. Accordingly, no
provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements in this regard.
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2015 2014
Rupees in thousands

10211 Commitments of the Subsidiary Company

Qutstanding letters of credit 242,840 -
Commitments against capital work-in-progress 1_5_,:151 -
Rentals for use of land 131,862 -

Commitments against Minimum advance rent to Saba
Generation Company (Private) Limited 228,902 -

Commitments against operating lease facilities acquired
from Meezan Bank Limited

- Vehicles 19,467 -

- Laptops 806 -
The amount of future payments under operating

leases and the period in which these leases and 58,499 -

payments will become due are as follows: 141,749 e

200,248 =

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

Subsequent to the financial period, on 20 August 2015, the Subsidiary Company entered into a contract
of Rs. 788 million with Shanghai Triumph Energy Conservation Engineering Co. Ltd for supply of
equipment for waste heat to energy power generation plant having capacity of 12MW. The contract is
effective from 4 September 2015.

10.1.8 Income tax related contingencies are disclosed in note 32 to these consolidated financial statements.

11. Property, plant and equipment

2015 2014
Note = ————Rupees in thousands
Operating fixed assets 1141 43,334,193 23,731,904
Capital work in progress g £ B 113,941 492 464

43,448,134 24,224,368
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11.1.2 Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Book Sale Gain
value proceeds

Description Cost

Mode of
disposal

Sold to

Rupees in thousands
Vehicles

Toyota Corolla YY-128 1,738 1,321 1,691 370

Insurance claim

1GI Insurance Claim

Honda Civic KJ-701 1,187 206 1,050 844 Negotiation Mr. Tahir Shafi Ghuri MAP
Toyota Hiace JY-802 1,993 318 1,260 942 Negotiation Mr. Akhtar Ali Khan
Hyundai Shahzore JK-129 813 110 591 481 Negotiation Mr. Ikhlag Ahmed
Hyundai Shahzore HY-296 724 74 628 554 Negotiation Mr. Ikhlag Ahmed
Suzuki Cultus NE-177 662 165 165 - Negotiation Employee

Suzuki Cultus NB-791 638 151 245 94 Negotiation Employee

Suzuki Alto NK-465 602 172 316 144 Negotiation Employee

Suzuki Alto NK-384 540 132 229 97 Negotiation Employee

Suzuki Alto JX-783 514 76 406 330 Negotiation Employee

Suzuki Alto KC-752 514 78 401 323 Negotiation Employee

Suzuki Alto KC-215 540 130 168 38 Negotiation Employee

Toyota Corolla CV-460 1,887 1,824 1,837 13 Negotiation MAP Rice Mills

Honda City HT-359 837 83 708 625 Negotiation Mr. Sajid Hussain
Honda City KZ-267 913 152 746 594 Negotiation Mr. Masood-ur-Rehman
Suzuki Bolan NG-376 477 106 400 294 |nsurance claim |Gl Insurance Claim
Toyota Corolla BE-728 1,748 1411 1,650 239 Insurance claim 1GI Insurance Claim

Toyota Corolla PY-867

1,474 470 852 382 Negotiation

Mr. Zahir M. Abbasi

Toyota Land Cruiser JA 325 5916 794 2250 1,456 Negotiation Mr. Nadir Zafar
Hitachi/O&K Excavators (3) 6,500 4,627 7,762 3,135 Negotiation Haji Rasool Shah & Sons
Komatsu Excavator 27616 1,846 3,238 1,392 Negotiation Haji Rasool Shah & Sons
2015 57,843 14246 26,593 12,347

2014 50,880 18,518 42,802 24,284

11.1.3 Depreciation charge for the year has been
allocated as follow:
2015 2014

Note Rupees in thousands
Cost of sales 25 1,309,185 1,047,644
Administrative expenses 26 10,445 8,151
Distribution cost 27 6,154 5,236
1,325,784 1,061,031
11.2 Capital work in progress
Opening balance 492,464 360,533
Acquisition through business combination 223,403 -
Additions during the year 11.21 1,437,840 1,046,563
2,153,707 1,407,096
Transferred to operating fixed assets: : !
Plant and machinery (1,583,559) (910,584)
Buildings on freehold land (456,207) (4,048)
(2,039,766) (914,632)
11.2.2 113.941 492 464

11.2.1 This includes borrowing cost capitalised amounting to Rs 130.96 million calculated at a rate of 9.66%

per annum (2014: Rs. 38.71 million at 10.33% per annum).
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12.

2015 2014
Note ~ ———Rupees in thousands
11.2.2 Break up of capital work in progress
is as follows:
Plant and machinery and other equipment 44,133 477,223
Civil development works 30,247 -
Advances for capital work in progress 39,561 15,241
113,941 492 464
Intangible assets and goodwill
Computer softwares 121 46,613 32,374
Goodwill 12.2 11,400,015 -
11,446,629 32,374
12.1 Computer softwares
Cost
Opening balance 53,411 53,411
Acquisitions through business combination 19,636 -
Closing balance 73,047 53,411
Amortization
Opening balance 21,037 15,118
Charge for the year 26 5,397 5,919
Closing balance 26,434 21,037
Carrying value 46,613 32,374
Amortisation rate 15% 15%
12.2 Goodwill
Opening balance = =
Acquisition through business combination 35.4 11,400,015 -
Closing balance 11,400,015 -

As mentioned in Note 35, since the fair values of some identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date
have been determined on a provisional basis, accordingly, the allocation of goodwill is not complete. However
an analysis was carried out of impairment in the Parent Company's investment in the Subsidiary Company.

The recoverability was based on its value in use, determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated
by the subsidiary company.

The key assumptions used in the estimation of value in use were as follows.

In percent
Discount rate 17%
Terminal value growth rate 5%
Budgeted growth rate (average of next five years) 4%

The discount rate was a pre-tax measure based on the weighted average cost of equity estimated cost of equity
in the relevant market and in the same currency as the cash flows. Five years of free equity cash flows were
included in the discounted cash flow model, and thereafter on the basis of terminal value growth rate.

Budgeted growth was based on expectations of future outcomes taking into account past experience, adjusted
for anticipated revenue growth. Revenue growth was projected taking into account the average growth levels
experienced in the recent years and the estimated sales volume and price growth for the next five years.
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Following the impairment testing management concludes that recoverable amount of investment exceeds its
carrying value. However in the future years any adverse movement in the key assumptions may lead to reduction
in recoverable amount.

2015 2014
Note ————Rupees in thousands
13. Investment property
Opening balance 345,785 347,883
Surplus on remeasurement of investment
property to fair value 13.1 120 31,791

Transfer to property, plant and equipment - (33,889)
Closing balance 345,905 345,785

13.1 The investment property is a portion of head office building held for letting. On 30 June 2015, an independent
exercise was carried out to calculate the fair value of investment property. To assess the land and building
prices, market research was carried out in the area around the plot where the investment property is situated.
Fair value of investment property is based on independent valuer's judgment about average prices prevalent
on the said date and has been prepared on openly available / provided information after making relevant inquiries
from the market. Valuation was carried out by an independent valuer who holds a recognized and relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category on the investment property

being valued.
14. Long term investment 2015 2014
Note ——Rupees in thousands
Investment in associated company -
United Bank Limited
Cost of of 93,649,694 shares (2014: 93,649,694 shares)
of Rs. 10 each 141 1,862,803 1,862,803
Post acquisition profits brought forward - net
of dividend income 5,287,672 4,608,783
7,150,475 6,471,586
Profit for the year 1,947,751 1,662,211
Dividend received during the year (1,123,797) (983,322)
823,954 678,889
Company's share of associate's exchange reserve 1,111,397 1,069,489
Company's share of associate's surplus on revaluation
of available for sale investment 1,816,962 224,597
Company's share of associate's experience adjustment 80,433 -
10,983,221 8,444,561

14.1 This represents 7.65% (2014: 7.65%) share in the equity of United Bank Limited acquired at an average price
of Rs. 19.89 per share. Market value of investment in UBL as at 30 June 2015 was Rs. 16,006,606 thousand
(2014: Rs. 15,785,592 thousand).

Summarised financial information of the associated company as follows;

2015 2014
Rupees in thousands

Assets 1,374,206 1,103,687
Liabilities 1,226,197 991,103
Income 91,950 80,734
Profit after tax 23.355 21,810

14.2 The reporting date of United Bank Limited is 31 December. For the purpose of applying equity method assets,
liabilities and profit and loss are based on the un-audited consolidated condensed interim financial information
for the period ended 30 June 2015.
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15.

16.

17.

18

19.

20.

21.

Long term deposits

This includes security deposits amounting to Rs. 108.08 million (2014: Rs. 70.29 million) given for the electricity

connections of the plants.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stores and spare parts in transit
Less: Provision for obsolete spare parts

Stock in trade

Raw and packing material

Work in process

Finished stock

Less: Provision for obsolete spare parts

2015 2014
Note ——— Rupees in thousands

3,820,595 3,174,169
319,797 870,502

<4!391) -
4,136,001 4,044,671
401,499 231,037
1,942,205 1,303,695
17.1 404,567 397,880

(30,046) g
2.718,225 1,932,612

17.1 This includes a stock amounting to Rs. 22.2 million (2014: Rs. 4.9 million) which has been dispatched to customer

but risk and rewards are not yet transferred.

Trade debts - considered good

Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: Provision against doubtful trade debts

2015 2014
Note ——————Rupees in thousands
18.1.1 862,701 571,981
1.600 -
864.301 571,981
(1,600) :
862,701 571,981

18.1 This includes Rs. 174.71 million (2014: Rs. 159.01 million) receivable from customers against export sales.

Advances

Advances to executives and employees- considered good
Advances to suppliers and contractors - considered good

Current portion of long term advance

Deposits and prepayments

Security deposits
Prepayments

Other receivables

ECOCEM Pakistan (Private) Limited
Export rebate

Accrued interest

Others

2015 2014
Note ——— Rupees in thousands

7,082 2,666
422,330 394,115
14,333 4,003
443,745 400,784
46,616 4,875
19,115 16,643
65,731 21,518

211 77,188 =

10,107 =
3,197 703
45,364 1,820

135,856 2,523
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211 This includes an amount of PKR 56,306,417 receivable on account of sale of shredding equipment to ECOCEM
Pakistan (Private) Limited (ECOCEM), under the Refuse Derived Fuel Off-take Agreement and the Resource
and Service Agreement, signed between the Subsidiary Company and ECOCEM, on 29 April, 2014. As per the
terms of the agreements, ECOCEM will provide shredded Refuse Derived Fuel to the Subsidiary Company and
the Subsidiary Company shall provide its resources and various services, including land space, electricity, and

security to ECOCEM.
22. Due from Government agencies
2015 2014
Note = —————Rupees in thousands
Customs duty 221 28,373 28,373
Capital value tax 22.1 11,729 11,729
Excise duty 22.2 615,146 615,146
Sales tax - net 71,306 385,487
726,554 1,040,735

22.1 This represents customs duties paid in excess of 5% of the value assessed by the custom authorities for import
of off high way dump trucks and the amount paid as Capital Value Tax (CVT) on this import. The collector of
customs assessed 30% duty and CVT @ 7.5% of the assessed value on import of off high way dump trucks
and did not allow exemption available to the Parent Company under SRO No. 575(1) 2006 dated 06 June 2006.
The Parent Company deposited these amounts under protest as guarantee for clearance and filed an appeal
before Honourable Sindh High Court. The Honourable High Court granted the leave of appeal and held that
exemption for import of off high way dump trucks is available to the Parent Company under SRO No. 575(1)
2006 dated 06 June 20086, therefore the excess amounts paid should be refunded to the Parent Company.
Collector of customs filed an appeal in Honourable Supreme Court against the order of Honourable High Court,
however no stay was granted against the refund accrued to the Parent Company.

The Parent Company has obtained legal opinion on the basis of which it decided to account for these as refund
in the books of account of the Parent Company.

22.2 The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan in its judgment dated 14 April 2007 in a comparable case for levy
of excise duty, dismissed the appeal filed by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) and upheld the decisions
made by the Honourable High Courts of Peshawar, Sindh and Punjab. [The dispute related to levy of excise
duty on the retail price inclusive of excise duty or retail price excluding excise duty]. The FBR's point of view
was that excise duty be calculated on a declared retail price inclusive of excise duty whereas the concerned
respondents contended that the excise duty would not be included in retail price for calculation of excise duty
payable to the Government. The full bench of Supreme Court upheld the judgments made by High Courts and
dismissed the appeal of FBR. The FBR moved a review petition before Supreme Court of Pakistan which is
pending.

The Parent Company has filed a claim for Rs. 615.15 million (2014: 615.15 million) relating to duty paid during
the period June 1998 to April 1999 which pursuant to the above decision was otherwise not leviable and payable
under the law. Commissioner Appeals rejected the claim of the Parent Company pertaining to BCL of Rs. 211.15
million, and the Parent Company has filed an appeal with Appeliate Tribunal against unlawful rejection of refund
claims. A number of hearings were conducted during the year but the case is yet to be discussed. Further on
Mustehkam Cement Limited refund claim (before merger) of Rs. 404 million tax authorities held the proceedings
in abeyance due to awaiting result of litigation on the Parent Company refund claim. The management believes
that the Parent Company's claim is valid and the amount is fully recoverable.

23. Cash and bank balances 2015 2014
Note ———Rupees in thousands
Cash in hand 2,360 =
Current accounts 23.1 191,294 146,326
Deposit accounts 2328233 2,294,278 69,936

2,487,932 216,262
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23.1 This includes Rs.53.37 million (2014: Rs. 62.22 million) held in current accounts maintained with the associated
company.

23.2 Deposit accounts carry interest rates ranging from 1% to 8.6 % (2014: 1% to 10%) per annum. This includes
deposit for a period of 15 days of Rs. 2.2 billion with Allied Bank Limited carrying markup at 7% per annum.
This also include balance of of Rs. 23.29 million maintained with the associated company.

23.3 This includes an amount of US$ 0.384 million (2014: US $ 0.42 million) in US Dollar deposit account.

24. Turnover - net

2015 2014
Note ———— Rupees in thousands
Gross turnover
- Local 36,963,180 32,169,414
- Export 4,552,779 5,021,006
41,515,959 37,190,420
Government levies
Sales tax (5,899,407) (5,106,100)
Excise duties (1,731.110) (1,417,846)
(7,630.517) 30,666,474
Rebates and discounts (1,192.392) (1,715,9486)
32,693,050 28,950,528
25. Cost of sales
Raw and packing materials consumed 251 3,272,366 2,680,760
Fuel and power 12,062,477 11,718,999
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed 1,052,908 803,265
Repairs and maintenance 183,054 91,240
Salaries, wages and benefits 252 753,509 584,279
Support services 288,091 250,354
Rent, rate and taxes 21,228 -
Insurance 33,495 29,767
Equipment rental 27,186 17,434
Utilities 12,041 9,454
Travelling, conveyance and subsistence 72,431 59,227
Communication 4773 3,930
Printing and stationery 6,027 5,756
Entertainment 11,909 4,268
Depreciation 1113 1,309,185 1,047,644
Amortization 12.1 4,856 5,919
Legal and professional charges 1,383 -
Fees and subscription 8,107 -
Consumables 5,306 -
Other manufacturing expenses 41,365 18,426
19,171,697 17,330,722
Opening work in process 1,303,695 1,470,344
Acquisitions through business combination 769,046 -
Closing work in process (1,942,205) (1,303,695)
Cost of goods manufactured 19,302,233 17,497,371
Opening finished stock 397,880 470,713
Acquisitions through business combination 139,332 =
Closing finished stock (404,567) (397,880)

19,434,878 17,570,204
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2015 2014
Rupees in thousands

25.1 Raw and packing materials consumed

Opening balance 231,037 282,378
Acquisitions through business combination 130,527 -
Purchases made during the year 3,282,255 2,629,419
Closing balance (371,453) (231,037)
3,272,366 2,680,760

25.2 Salaries, wages and benefits include staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 46.33 million (2014: Rs. 30.87
million).

26. Administrative expenses

2015 2014
Note = ————Rupees in thousands

Salaries, wages and benefits 26.1 193,277 141,614
Rent, rates and taxes 12,536 1,756
Repairs and maintenance 9,711 6,223
Insurance 1,688 1,690
Utilities 4,825 3,468
Travelling, conveyance and subsistence 27,767 15,617
Communication 4,957 2,346
Printing and stationery 4,670 3,669
Entertainment 9,055 1,166
Advertisements 4,073 862
Donations 26.2 88,656 86,069
Legal and professional charges 31,857 12,925
Fees and subscription 25,160 12,209
Management charges = 550
Auditors' remuneration 26.3 11,111 2,753
Depreciation b i % s 10,445 8,151
Amortisation 541 -
Other 763 1,087

441,092 302,155

26.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 12.58 million (2014: Rs. 5.94
million).

26.2 A provision at 1% (2014: 1%) of the accounting profit after tax for an amount of Rs. 86.69 million has been made
for donation to Bestway Foundation, Bestway Building, 19-A, College Road, F-7 Markaz, Islamabad, (2014:
Rs.85.51 million). The Chief Executive and the following directors are among the trustees of the Foundation:
- Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez - M. Irfan A. Sheikh,

- Zameer Mohammed Choudrey - Arshad Mehmood Chaudhary
Above directors or their spouses do not have a beneficial interest in Bestway Foundation.

26.3 Auditors' remuneration

2015 2014
Rupees in thousands
Annual audit fee 2,637 1,500
Audit fee for audit of consolidated financial statements 600 -
Fee of half year review 500 500
Statutory certifications 1110 75
Taxation services 150 603
Acquisition related transaction advisory services 5,608 -
Out of pocket expenses 506 75

11,111 2,753
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2015 2014

Note —— Ru in th
27. Distribution cost pees In thousands

Salaries, wages and benefits 27.1 81,500 45,780
Support services 1,111 1,153
Rent, rates and taxes 16,478 10,900
Repairs and maintenance /3,988 1,280
Utilities 1,995 850
Travelling, conveyance and subsistence 7,157 6,520
Communication 1,433 1,097
Printing and stationery 1,858 1,627
Entertainment 1,892 1,301
Advertising and promotion 1,546 6,052
Depreciation 11.1.3 6,154 5,236
Legal and professional charges 948 -
Fees and subscription 39,279 32,086
Freight and handling - Local 75,759 83,128
_ - Export 546,450 500,937
Other 2.593 9,027
790.141 706,974
27.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 5.43 million (2014: Rs. 3.14
million).
28. Other expenses 2015 2014
Rupees in thousands
Workers' Welfare Fund 190,249 101,244
Workers' (Profit) Participation Fund 576,349 495,458
766,598 596,702
29. Finance cost
Markup on long term financing 229,973 398,544
Markup on long term musharaka 164,909 21,984
Markup on liability against assets subject to finance lease - 4,230
Markup on short term borrowings 12,136 22,245
Bank charges and commissions 43,551 15,027
Interest on Workers' (Profit) Participation Fund 6,359 =
456,928 462,030
30. Other income
Income from financial assets
Profit on deposit accounts 66,553 51,794
Mark up on long term advance 44 -
Exchange gain - net 1,163 1,682
67,760 53,476
Income from non financial assets
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 12,347 24,284
Rental income from investment property 26,705 24,639
Gain on remeasurement of investment property to fair value 120 31,791
Management fee from related party 1,200 1,200
Liabilities written back 4,479 -
Other 4,058 2,981
48,909 84,895

116,669 138,371
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31.

2015 2014
Note —— Rupees in thousands
Taxation
Current 3,169,666 1,279,029
Deferred (370,214) 1,283,390
2,799,452 2,562,419
31.1 Numerical reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate is as

31.2

follows:

2015 2014
Note = — ——Rupees in thousands

Accounting profit 12,867,833 11,113,045
Tax on accounting profit at applicable rate of 33% (2014: 34%) 4,246,385 3,778,435
Tax effect of low rates on certain income (447,983) (570,978)
Minimum tax - (407,990)
Tax effect of permanent difference (294,445) (63,418)
Tax effect of income taxable under final tax regime (348,932) (391,923)
Tax rate to 30% for deferred taxation and change in

proportion of local and export sales (440,832) 218,293
Tax effect of super tax 266,114 -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax credits (171,012)

2,809,294 2,562,419

Income tax contingencies of the Parent Company

The assessment for the Assessment Year 2000-2001 through 2002-2003 was finalized by the tax authorities
mainly by curtailing business expenditure claimed by the Parent Company and charging surcharge on minimum
tax. The appeals for Assessment Year 2000-2001 were decided against the Parent Company by the Appellant
Tribunal Inland Revenue [ATIR] against which the Parent Company filed reference with the Islamabad High
Court which is pending adjudication. The appeal filed with the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the
CIR(A)] for the Assessment Year 2001-2002 was decided against the Parent Company and for the Assessment
Year 2002-2003 certain issues were decided in favour of the Parent Company. Against these orders the Parent
Company is in appeal with the ATIR which are pending adjudication.

The assessment of the Parent Company for the Tax Years 2003 through 2014 stood finalized under the self
assessment scheme envisaged under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 [the Ordinance].

The tax authority’s leveid tax of Rs. 99.08 million under section 161 of the Ordinance along with default surcharge
of Rs.124.93 million for Tax year 2005 by rejecting the legal ground of time limitation raised by the Parent
Company. On Company's appeal the CIR(A) passed an order by sefting aside the assessment order which was
agitated by the Parent Company before the ATIR which in pending for adjudication. The ATIR stayed the re-
assessment proceedings till disposal of appeal by the ATIR.

The tax authorities initiated audit proceedings for the Tax Years 2006 through 2008. The audit proceedings for
the Tax Years 2006 and 2007 have been concluded, while the audit proceedings for the Tax Year 2008 are still
pending.

The tax authorities amended the assessment of the Parent Company upon conclusion of audit proceeding of
tax year 2006 thereby, disallowing the finance cost attributable to funds utilized for acquiring the share of
Mustehkam Cement Limited, deduction claimed on account of donations paid to Bestway Foundation, and
exemption claimed by Company on interest derived from US dollars accounts. the Parent Company being
aggrieved with the amended assessment order filed a rectification application before the tax authorities and also
preferred an appeal with the CIR(A), who has annulled the order of the tax authorities against which that the
tax department has filed an appeal before the ATIR, which has annulled the amended assessment order.




Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

31.3

The tax authority amended assessment of the Parent Company for the tax year 2007 charging tax of Rs. 29.26
million by making various disallowances and levying tax on property income and dividend income under the
presumptive mode of taxation [PTR]. CIR (A) annulled the order of the tax authorities on all the issues except
for upholding the taxation of property income and dividend income under PTR and disallowance of deduction
claimed on account of donations paid during the year. the Parent Company as well as the tax authorities have
filed cross appeals before the ATIR which are pending for adjudication.

Income tax assessments of the Parent Company for the Tax Years 2010 to 2012 were amended on alleged
concealment of sales by working back production taking gypsum consumed as five per cent of cement produced
and raising tax demand of Rs. 16,974 million (BCL Rs. 14,879 million and MCL Rs. 2,095 million). On appeal
by the Parent Company the CIR (A) cancelled the assessments for the tax year 2010 and 2011 and set aside
the assessment for the tax year 2012 for denovo consideration, Being not satisfied with the order of the CIR(A),
the Parent Company has filed second appeal before the ATIR for tax year 2012 in both BCL and MCL cases.

The DCIR has again taken up the same issues through notice dated 12 November 2013 for all the years under
consideration. On detailed reply by the Parent Company the DCIR changed the dimension of the case to under
utilization of installed capacity and confronted the Parent Company to assess the sales by assuming 98%
capacity utilization. The amended assessment in BCL for the Tax Year 2010 and 2011 has been made at a
demand of Rs. 2,476 million against which, the Parent Company has filed appeals before the CIR(A), which is
subjudice till to-date. However, no order has been passed for tax year 2012 in BCL case and for tax year 2010
to 2012 in MCL cases.

The following tax contingencies stand transferred to the Parent Company from Mustehkam Cement Limited
under the Scheme of amalgamation:

The tax authority has leveid tax of Rs. 9.59 million under section 161 of the Ordinance along with default
surcharge of Rs. 14.76 million for tax year 2007 by rejecting the legal ground of time limitation raised by the
Parent Company. On the Parent Company's appeal the CIR(A) passed an order setting aside the assessment
order which has been agitated by the Parent Company before the ATIR which is pending for adjudication.

For the Assessment Year 1998-99, the Taxation Officer charged additional tax amounting to Rs. 10.39 million
in terms of section 87 of the repealed Income Tax Ordinance, 1979 for non-payment of advance tax. At that
time, no appeal was filed with the CIR(A) against the impugned order on instructions of the Government of
Pakistan [GoP] as MCL was a State owned Enterprise then, and GoP insisted to resolve the disputes with the
Federal Board of Revenue through inter-ministerial consultations. After Company's privatization, it pursued it's
case before the appellate authorities and accordingly filed an appeal with the CIR (A) with the request for
condonation of delay in time for filing of appeal within the prescribed time. This request for condonation of delay
was not accepted. MCL filed appeal with the ATIR where the request for condonation in filling of appeal was
also not entertained. Accordingly, MCL filed a reference with the High Court, which we understand is subjudice
till to-date.

That management of the Parent Company is confident of the favourable outcome of the appeals filed by it and
accordingly no provision has been recognized in these financial statements in respect of tax demand raised by
the tax authorities through amendments/rectifications of assessments.

Income tax contingencies of the Subsidiary Company

The Taxation Officer, vide orders dated 23 April, 2010 and 05 May, 2010, raised an aggregate demand of Rs.
54.16 million against the Subsidiary Company, on account of Federal Excise Duty on royalty and fee for technical
services, paid for the years 2006 to 2008. On appeal, the CIR (A). vide an order dated 20 September, 2010,
set aside the demand in favor of the Subsidiary Company. The Tax Department filed an appeal before the ATIR
against the decision of the CIR (A). The ATIR, vide its order dated 06 August, 2012, decided the matter against
the Subsidiary Company. the Subsidiary Company has filed an appeal before the Honorable Islamabad High
Court against the decision of the ATIR. However, as the amount demanded by the tax authorities has already
been paid by the Subsidiary Company, no provision for a potential liability is required in these consolidated
financial statements.

The DCIR, vide an order dated 14 March, 2011, raised a demand of Income Tax of Rs. 268.56 million by
subjecting reversal of interest and penal charges on foreign currency loans to tax, for the tax year 2005. the
Subsidiary Company filed an appeal with the CIR(A) against the order of the DCIR, which was decided against



Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June, 2015

31.4

the Subsidiary Company. the Subsidiary Company filed an appeal before the ATIR against the aforementioned
order of CIR(A). The ATIR decided the appeal in the favour of the Subsidiary Company. However, the tax
department being aggrieved by the order of the ATIR, has filed a reference application with the Honorable
Islamabad High Court. Pending the outcome of the appeal, no provision has been made in these consolidated
financial statements for the demand raised by the taxation authorities as management is confident that the
matter will ultimately be decided in the favour of the Subsidiary Company.

The DCIR, vide a demand notice, dated 28 June, 2013, reduced the tax refund of the Subsidiary Company from
Rs. 122.656 million to Rs. 71.483 million for the tax year 2010. The reduction in refund is owing to the alleged
suppression of sales, amounting to Rs. 331.904 million, charging of minimum tax, and re-apportionment of
expenses between local and export sales. the Subsidiary Company filed a rectification application with the DCIR
and also filed an appeal with the CIR (A), against the order of the DCIR. The CIR (A), vide its order dated 30
January, 2014 has remanded the case back to the DCIR for reconsideration. No provision and/or adjustment
has been made in these consolidated financial statements as management is confident that the matter will
ultimately be decided in the favour of the Subsidiary Company.

The tax authorities amended the assessment of the Subsidiary Company for the tax year 2008, and reduced
its tax losses, by Rs. 2,582.87 million, on account of a waiver of custom duties, amounting to Rs. 815.18 million,
alleged suppression of sales amounting to Rs. 1,189.35 million and computation of profits attributable to exports.
However, no tax demand was raised by the taxation authorities. the Subsidiary Company filed an appeal before
the CIR(A) against the amended order. In 2014, the CIR(A) set aside the matters of additions to income, on
account of waiver of custom duties and taxes, amounting to Rs. 815.18 million and suppression of sales
amounting to Rs. 1,189.5 million; the matter of computation of profits attributable to exports was decided against
the Subsidiary Company. the Subsidiary Company has filed an appeal against the decision of the CIR(A) before
the ATIR. The taxation officer, also being aggrieved by the decision of the CIR(A) has initiated the re-assessment
proceedings which are in progress.

The tax authorities amended the assessment of the Subsidiary Company for the tax year 2010, alleging
suppression of sales by Rs. 331.9 million, on the basis of consumption of gypsum and further reduced the tax
loss, by not agreeing to the mode of computation of export profits of the Subsidiary Company. the Subsidiary
Company filed a rectification application with the Taxation Officer as well as an appeal before the CIR(A), against
the amended assessment order. In 2014, the CIR(A) decided the appeal in favour of the Subsidiary Company
by setting aside the entire assessment for fresh consideration. The re-assessment proceedings are in progress.

The Taxation Officer, vide an order dated 31 January, 2012, raised a demand of Federal Excise Duty on royalty
and fees for technical services paid by the Subsidiary Company, for the years 2009 and 2010. Under the said
order, an aggregate demand of Rs. 33.63 million was raised, on account of Federal Excise Duty and default
surcharge and penalty thereon. the Subsidiary Company filed an appeal against the said order before the CIR(A).
However, the CIR(A) endorsed the view of the taxation officer and decided the appeal against the Subsidiary
Company. the Subsidiary Company has filed an appeal against the said order of the CIR(A) before the ATIR.
As the amount demanded by the taxation authorities along with the default surcharge and penalty, has already
been adjusted by the taxation authorities against the income tax refund of the Subsidiary Company, for the tax
year 2011, no provision for a potential liability is required in this regard in these consolidated financial statements.

The Finance Act, 2015 introduced a new tax under Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 on every
public company other than a scheduled bank or modaraba, that derives profits for tax year and does not distribute
cash dividend within six months of the end of said tax year or distribute dividends to such an extent that its
reserves, after such distribution, are in excess of 100% of its paid up capital. However, this tax on undistributed
reserves is not applicable to a public company which distributes profit equal to either 40 percent of its after tax
profits or 50% of its paid up capital, whichever is less, within six months of the end of the tax year.

The Parent Company has during the year distributed sufficient interim dividends for the year ended 30 June
2015, which complies with the above stated requirements. Accordingly, no provision for tax on undistributed
reserves has been recognized in these financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015.
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32. Remuneration of the chief executive, directors and executives

33.

The aggregate amounts charged in the consolidated financial statements for the year with respect to remuneration,
including benefits and perquisites, were as follows:

2015 2014
Note —— Rupees in thousands
Chief Executive

Managerial remuneration and allowances 24,000 24,000
Bonus 5 5
Provision for gratuity = =
Compensated absences = =

24,000 24,000
Number of person 1 1
Directors, including Chairman
Managerial remuneration and allowances 54,989 60,010
Bonus 3,064 6,002
Provision for gratuity 1.968 2,394
Compensated absences 1,626 4,086

61,647 72,492
Number of persons 5 5
Executives
Managerial remuneration and allowances 280,388 167,202
Bonus 45,622 29,245
Provision for gratuity 24,101 9,748
Provident fund 3,598 -
Compensated absences 13,451 9,154

367,160 215,349

Number of persons 286 106

32.1 The directors and eligible executives excluding chairman and chief executive are also provided with vehicle and
medical insurance facility as per their entitled limits.

32.2 Executives include 157 employees of the Subsidiary Company consolidated during the year.
Transactions and balances with related parties

The Parent Company is a subsidiary of Bestway (Holdings) Limited, UK (“the Ultimate Parent Company") therefore
all subsidiaries and associated undertakings of the Ultimate Parent Company are related parties of the Parent Company.
Other related parties comprise of directors, key management personnel, entities with common directorships and entities
over which the directors are able to exercise influence. Balances with related parties are shown in the notes 4, 8.2,
14,17, 21 and 23.1 and transactions with related parties are disclosed in notes 11.1.2, 26.2 and 32 to the consolidated
financial statements. Transactions with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

2015 2014
Rupees in thousands

Transactions and balances with parent company

Management charges - 550
Dividend paid during the year 2,334,226 656,068
Dividend payable balance at year end - unsecured 965,749 421,003
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34.

2015 2014
Note = —— Rupees in thousands
Transactions with associated undertakings under
common directorship
Management fee 1,200 1,200
Service / bank charges 7,119 6,097
Donations 87,407 85,507
Dividend received 1,123,797 983,322
Sale of cement 5,704 5,796
Utility expense paid 54 59
Transactions and balances with key
management personnel
Remuneration, allowances and benefits 33.1 727,042 534,416
Advances given during the year - 1,082
Repayments 1,379 2,069
Balance of advances at the year end - unsecured - 1,379
33.1 Remuneration, allowances and benefits
Dividend paid 342,267 222,574
Managerial remuneration and allowances 294,944 251,212
Bonus 48,685 35,247
Provision for gratuity 26,069 12,143
Provision for compensated absences 15,077 13,240
727,042 534.416

Financial instruments
The Group has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s
risk management policies.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. the Group, through
its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors of the Group through its audit committee of the Group oversees how management monitors
compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight
role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board.
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34.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit
exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2015 2014
Rupees in thousands

Long term deposits 133,482 90,323
Long term advances 28,666 12,009
Trade debts 862,701 571,981
Advances 7.082 2,666
Deposits 46,616 4,875
Other receivables 135,856 2,524
Bank balances 2,487,932 216,262

3,702,335 900,640

The maximum exposure to the credit risk for trade
debts at reporting date by geographical region is:

Domestic 687,997 412,971

Middle east and African countries 84,561 =

Asia - other than domestic 90,143 159,010
862,701 571,981

The maximum exposure to the credit risk for trade
debts at reporting date by counter party is:

End user customers 18,310 14,393
Dealers 844,391 557,588
862,701 571,981

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the reporting date are with dealers and represents
debtors within the country. Included in these an amount of Rs.53.90 million (2014: Rs. 79.05 million) secured
against the letter of credits.

The Group's most significant domestic customer is a dealer from whom Rs. 37.49 million (2014: Rs. 35.90
million) is outstanding at the year end.

The Group has placed funds in financial institutions with high credit ratings. the Group assesses the credit quality
of the counter parties as satisfactory. the Group does not hold any collateral as security against any of its financial
assets except as mentioned above.

Impairment losses

The aging of trade debts
at the reporting date is: Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
2015 2015 2014 2014
Rupees in thousands

Past due 1-30 days 855,369 - 558,863 -

Past due 31-60 days 98 = 601 -

Past due 61-90 days - = 6.566 -

Over 90 days 8,834 1,600 5,951 -
864,301 1,600 571,981 -

There is no movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade debts during the year.
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34.2

343

Based on past experience, the management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
trade debts. The allowance accounts in respect of trade debts are used to record impairment losses unless the
Group is satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is possible. The amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against the financial asset directly.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. the Group's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Group's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities,
including expected interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

Carrying Contractual Sixmonths Sixtotweive Onetotwo Twotofive  After five
amount cash fiows or less months years years years

Rupees in thousands

2015

Financial liabilities

Long term financing 17173584 21129964  2,045841 1,992,194 57289,189 11,802,740 -
Long term musharaka 10,000,000 12,469,177 1,019,145 993996 2889826 7,566,210 -
Markup accrued 437,229 437228 437229 . 3 . -
Trade and other payables - = = =

Short term borrowings 2,052,862 2052862 2,052,862 - - -
29663675 36080232 5555077 2986190 8,179,015 19,368,950 .

2014

Financial liabilities

Markup accrued 12,324 12,324 12,324 - - - -
Trade and other payables 3,962,314 3962314 3962314 - - - -
Short term borrowings 2,373,832 2373832 2,373,832

6,348,470 6,348470 6,348,470 -

34.21 The contractual cash flow relating to long and short term borrowings, murabaha and musharaka have
been determined on the basis of expected markup rates.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market
sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. the Group is
exposed to currency risk and interest rates only.

34.3.1 Currency risk
2015 2014

US Dollars in thousand
Exposure to currency risk

Trade debis 1,716 1,605
Bank balances 391 417
Trade creditors (79) (5,665)
Net exposure 2,028 (3,643)

Euro in thousand

Trade and other payables (68) -
Cash in hand 2 -

(66) -
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34.3.2

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year

2015 2014 2015 2014
Average rates Reporting date
spot rates
Rupees / Dollars 101.65 99.05 101.79 98.75
Rupees / Euro 112.88 - 113.36 *

Sensitivity analysis

A five percent strengthening of the PKR against US Dollar and Euro at 30 June would have increased
profit and loss account by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular markup rates, remain constant. This analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

Profit or loss
Rupees in
thousand
30 June 2015
Effect in US Dollar and Euro - gain (9,947)
(9,947)
30 June 2014 .
Effect in US Dollar - gain 17,987
17,987

A five percent weakening of the PKR against US Dollar at 30 June would have had the equal but opposite
effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market markup rates. Majority of the markup rate exposure arises from
short and long term borrowings from banks and short term deposits with banks. At the balance sheet
date the markup rate profile of the Group's markup bearing financial instruments is:

Carrying Amount
2015 2014

Fixed rate instruments Rupess in thousands

Financial assets 2,294,278 81,945

Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities _ 29,226.446 2,373,832

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in markup rates throughout the year would have increased / (decreased)

profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.
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Profit or Loss
100 basis 100 basis
points decrease points increase

Rupees in thousands
Cash flow sensitivity (net)

Variable rate instruments 58,395 (58,395)
30 June 2015 58,395 (58,395)
Variable rate instruments 45,079 (45,079)
30 June 2014 45,079 (45,079)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying value of financial assets and liabilities reflected in consolidated financial statements
approximate their respective fair values.

34.4 Fair value versus carrying amounts

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet,
are as follows:

2015 2014
Assets carried at amortized cost Carrying value  Fair value Carrying value  Fair value

Rupees in thousands

Long term advances 8,006 8,006 12,009 12,009
Long term deposits 133,482 133,482 90,323 90,323
Trade debis 862,701 862,701 571,981 571,981
Advances 7,082 7,082 2,666 2,666
Deposits 46,616 46,616 4,875 4,875
Other receivables 135,856 135,856 2,523 2,523
Bank balances 2,487,932 2,487,932 216,262 216,262

3,681,675 3,681,675 900,639 900,639

Liabilities carried at amortized cost

Long term financing 15,000,000 15,000,000 - -
Long term musharaka - secured 10,000,000 10,000,000 - -
Trade and other payables 4,861,160 4,861,160 3,962,314 3,962,314
Markup accrued 416,546 416,546 12,324 12,324
Short term borrowings 835,809 835,809 2,373,832 2,373,832
31,113,515 31,113,515 6,348,470 6,348,470

34.5 Determination of fair values
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or
disclosure purposes based on the following methods.

Non - derivative financial assets

The fair value of non-derivative financial assets is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted
at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for disclosure purposes.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.
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35.

34.6 Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors of the Parent Company monitors the
return on capital, which the Group defines as net profit after taxation divided by total shareholders' equity. The
Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. There were no changes to the

Group's approach to capital management during the year and the Group is not subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.

Acquisition of subsidiary

On 22 April 2015, the Parent Company assumed management control of Pakcem Limited (formerly Lafarge Pakistan
Cement Limited) (“the subsidiary company"), pursuant to the Company’s successful bid for Lafarge Pakistan’s shares.

Taking control of Pakcem Limited will enable the Group to increase its market share in industry. Further, the Group
also expects to reduce costs through economies of scale.

In 70 days to 30 June 2015, Pakcem contributed revenue of Rs. 2,183,502 thousand and profit of Rs. 674,936 thousand
to the Group's results. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2014, management estimates that consolidated revenue
would have been Rs.41,326,374 thousand, and consolidated profit for the year would have been Rs. 9,222,335
thousand. In determining these amounts, management has assumed that the fair value adjustments, determined provisionally,
that arose on the date of acquisition would have been the same if the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2014,

35.1 Consideration transferred

The following table summarises the acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideration transferred.

(Rupees in
thousands)

Cash 25,941,898

Acquisition related costs

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of Rs. 46,851 thousand on legal fees and due diligence costs,
These costs have been included in ‘administrative expenses’.

35.2 Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The following table summarises the recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date

of acquisition;

(Rupees in

thousands)
Property, plant and equipment 18,933,657
Intangible asset 19,636
Long term advance 10,330
Long term deposits 85,399
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 937,382
Stock in trade 1,038,906
Trade debts - considered good 126,587
Advances 91,059
Deposits and prepayments 29,138
Interest accrued 468
Other receivables 102,042
Advance tax - net 460,336
Cash and bank balances 135,556
Deferred taxation - net (116,5186)
Long term financing (2,609,076)
Trade and other payables (2,153,968)
Markup accrued (88,391)
Short term borrowings - secured (515,860)

16,486,685
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35.3 Measurement of fair values
The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair value of material assets acquired were as follows;
Property, plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and buildings
Market comparison technique and cost technique: The valuation model considers quoted market prices for
similar items when they are available, and depreciated replacement cost when appropriate. Depreciated
replacement cost reflects adjustments for physical deterioration as well as functional and economic obsolescence.

Other components of property, plant and equipment and net assets

All items of net assets other than plant, machinery and factory buildings are measured at book value of the
assets acquired.

Fair values measured on a provisional basis

Certain items of property, plant and equipment and other net assets has been measured provisionally. If new
information obtained within one year of the date of acquisition about facts and circumstances that existed at
the date of acquisition identifies adjustments to the above amounts, or any additional provisions that existed
at the date of acquisition, then the accounting for the acquisition will be revised.

35.4 Goodwill
Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognised as follows;
(Rupees in
thousands)
Consideration transferred 25,941,898
Fair value of identifiable net assets 16,486,685
Less: Net assets attributable to non controlling interest (1,944,802)
Fair value of identifiable net assets (14,541,883)
11,400,015

The goodwill is attributable mainly to synergies expected fo be achieved from integrating the company into the
Group's existing cement sale business. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for tax

purposes.
36. Cash and cash equivalents 2015 2014
Rupees in thousands
Bank balances 2,487,932 216,262
Short term running finances (2.052,862) (2,373,832)
435,070 (2,157,570)
37. Plant capacity and production of clinker
Metric Tonnes Metric Tonnes
Available capacity - Hattar 1,170,000 1,170,000
- Faroogia 1,109,700 1,109,700
- Chakwal 3,420,000 3,420,000
- Pakcem Plant 475,358 -
Actual production - Hattar 982,588 952,146
- Faroogia 802,324 758,942
- Chakwal 2,258,722 2,157,937

- Pakcem Plant 251,101 =
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During the year the actual production from Hattar remained limited due to planned shut down for the maintenance
work at cement mill to maintain its efficiency level.

Available capacity and actual production of the Pakcem plant is based on date after the acquisition date.

38. Provident fund trust

2015 2014
The details of the Provident Fund are as follows:
Size of the trust (Rupees in thousand) 242,334 -
Cost of investments made (Rupees in thousand) 120,815 -
Percentage of investments made (%) 51% =
Fair value of investments made (Rupees in thousand) 185,289 -
8.1 - ir val i
3 Break-up of fair value of investments (Rupsesiin Percentage
2015 thousands) of full
With scheduled bank
Savings account 25415 14%
Quoted Investments
National Investment Trust 29,527 16%
UBL's United Composite Islamic Fund 5,632 3%
UBL's Separately Managed Account 35,139 19%
70,198 38%
Other Investments
Defense Saving Certificates 20,580 1%
Certificates of Islamic Investment of Meezan Bank Limited 41,053 22%
Term Deposit Receipts of Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 11,067 6%
MCB Islamic Bank 16,976 8%
89,676 48%
185.289 100%

Provident Fund Trust is maintained by the Subsidiary Company, consolidated during the year. Comparative figures
being zero are not presented.

All the investments of the Provident Fund Trust have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 227
of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and the rules formulated for this purpose. These figures are un-audited.

39. General
39.1 Number of persons employed 2015 2014
Employees at year end (number) 2,378 1,705
Average employees during the year (number) 2,357 1,916

39.2 Post Balance Sheet Events

39.2.1 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 12 September 2015 has proposed a final dividend of
Rs. 2.5 per share.

39.2.2 The Board of Directors of the Subsidiary Company in their meeting held on 12 September 2015 has
proposed a final dividend of Rs. 0.25 per share.

39.2.3 These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company in their meeting held on 12 September, 2015.

o B
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOIRA&CFO




Pattern of Shareholding

As at June 30, 2015

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDING TOTAL
SHAREHOLDERS [ pmom | 70 | SHARE =D
3953 1 100 80,362
438 101 500 98,864
97 501 1000 70,824
92 1001 5000 230,961
14 5001 10000 98,806
5 10001 15000 64,364
4 15001 20000 76,083
4 20001 25000 92,433
1 25001 30000 29,550
3 30001 35000 95,227
3 35001 40000 116,708
1 40001 45000 40,959
1 45001 50000 46,500
1 50001 55000 50,505
6 65001 70000 402,632
6 75001 80000 463,493
2 80001 85000 166,211
2 90001 95000 185,500
1 95001 100000 100,000
1 110001 115000 111,010
2 125001 130000 255,586
3 150001 155000 463,491
1 170001 175000 171,760
1 185001 190000 185,425
5 215001 220000 1,096,169
1 230001 235000 234,256
4 240001 245000 969,449
2 275001 280000 556,358
1 285001 290000 289,159
2 300001 305000 607,794
1 310001 315000 310,353
1 445001 450000 447,020
2 505001 510000 1,012,420
1 515001 520000 515,114
1 545001 550000 546,894
1 605001 610000 606,062
1 620001 625000 623,664
1 670001 675000 673,486
5 675001 680000 3,394,400
1 800001 805000 803,037
1 840001 845000 841,857
2 955001 960000 1,917,290
2 1085001 1090000 2,178,724
1 1355001 1360000 1,357,760
1 1570001 1575000 1.573,445
1 1805001 1810000 1,808,309
1 1905001 1910000 1,905,652
1 2695001 2700000 2,698,994
1 3390001 3395000 3,392,685
1 4320001 4325000 4,323,753
2 6165001 6170000 12,339,942
1 6185001 6190000 6,188,213
1 7875001 7880000 7,878,441
1 9625001 9630000 9,626,632
1 9900001 9905000 9,903,204
1 12010001 12015000 12,014,147
1 15190001 15195000 15,191,463
1 17150001 17155000 17,153,461
2 18695001 18700000 37,390,634
2 18745001 18750000 37,496,432
1 28185001 28190000 28,188,568
1 31135001 31140000 31,189,368
1 135770001 135775000 135,770,976
1 180720001 180725000 180,722,079
4,701 579,384,918
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

SHARES HELD

%

DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, AND THEIR

SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN

DAWOOD PERVEZ

MOHAMMAD IRFAN ANWAR SHEIKH
ARSHAD MEHMOOD CHAUDHARY
ZAMEER MUHAMMAD CHOUDREY
MOHAMMAD YOUNUS SHEIKH
MOHAMMED ANWAR PERVEZ
RAKHSHANDA CHOUDREY

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKING
AND RELATED PARTIES.

BESTWAY (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
MAP RICE MILLS (PVT.) LIMITED
BESTWAY ( HOLDING ) LIMITED
BESTWAY CASH & CARRY LIMITED
BESTWAY NORTHERN LIMITED
TRUSTEE OF BESTWAY FOUNDATION
BESTWAY FOUNDATION

MODARABAS AND MUTUAL FUNDS.
KASB PREMIER FUND LIMITED

BANKS DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS,
NON BANKING FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS.

HABIB BANK LTD-CLOTH MKT COM. CENTER
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN

ISLAMIC INVESTMENT BANK LTD.

HABIB BANK LIMITED

UNITED BANK LIMITED

UNITED BANK LIMITED

UNITED BANK LIMITED

ALLIED BANK OF PAKISTAN LIMITED
UNITED BANK LIMITED

ALLIED BANK OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

MCB BANK LIMITED

MCB BANK LIMITED

BANK OF BAHAWAL PUR LIMITED
COMMERCE BANK LIMITED

ALLIED BANK OF PAKISTAN, HEAD OFFICE
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN

INSURANCE COMPANIES

STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION
THE EASTERN FEDERAL UNION INSURANCE
AMERICAN EXPRESS CO. INC. LAHORE
MUSLIM INSURANCE CO. LTD.

28,188,568
151,183
7,878,441
12,358,184
11,711,513
21,640,779
185,425

82,114,093

180,722,079
606,062
3,392,685
185,770,976
15,191,463
6,169,971

17,153,461

359,006,697

198
198

225,570

5,320
1,023

264
6,668

1417

61.96

0.00

0.04

0.00
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As at December 31, 2014

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS SHARES HELD %
NIT AND ICP
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 363
INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN 564
927 0.00
OTHERS
G| FINEX SECURITIES LIMITED 1
ADHI SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 900
FIRST CAPITAL EQUITIES LIMITED 161
PRUDENTIAL SECURITIES LIMITED 500
IBRAHIM AGENCIES (PVT) LIMITED 1,716
Y.S. SECURITIES & SERVICES (PVT) LIMITED 44
YOUSUF YAQOOB KOLIA AND COMPANY (PVT) LIMITED 46,500
TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEE 40,959
TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BE 1,437
INSTITUTE OF BUSINESS & TECHNOLOGY 20,000
ASKARI SECURITIES LIMITED 1,320
SARFRAZ MAHMOOQD (PVT) LIMITED 71
NH CAPITAL FUND LIMITED 3
MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED 1
HI-TECH COMPUTERS ASSQCIATES PVT LIMITED 53
PAK PEARL RICE MILLS (PVT) LIMITED 546,894
A1 SUPPORT SERVICES (PVT) LIMITED 310,353
RAHIMTOOLA MANAGEMENT (PVT) LIMITED 1,500
FAIR DEAL SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 500
MUHAMMAD AHMED NADEEM SECURITIES (SMC-PVT) LIMITED 64
DR. ARSLAN RAZAQUE SECURITIES (SMC-PVT) LIMITED 150
INVEST CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED 547
FAIR DEAL SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 50
FIKREE'S (SMC-PVT) LIMITED 136
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) 447,020
NAEEM'S SECURITIES LIMITED 2,292
KAZ| & KAZI LIMITED 79
ADAMJEE SONS LIMITED 9
M/S. MAMOON Ji ALI BHOY 209
M/S. TECHNICAL SERVICES ASSOCIATION 154
HABIB BANK LTD. A/C AHMED MOTORS LIMITED 44
THE AHMEDIYYA ANJUMAN ISHEUT-I-ISLAM 246
AHMED MOTORS LIMITED 158
M.F. CORPORATION LIMITED 440
M/S. SHERIAR F. IRANI INVESTMENT 96
GHARIB WAL CEMENT LIMITED 3.740
PUNJAB COOPERATIVE BOARD FOR LIQUIDATION 374
NH SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 44
M/S. MIR AFZAL KHAN & BROS. 180
1,428,945 0.25
Individual
Local - Individuals 136,601,820
136,601,820 23.58
Grand-Totals: 579,384,918 100.00
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The Company Secretary Folio No./

Bestway Cement Limited CDC A/C No.

Bestway Building, 19-A, College Road,

F-7 Markaz, Islamabad. Shares held

I/We of

being member(s) of Bestway Cement Limited holding

ordinary shares hereby appoint of

or failing him/her of Who is/are members(s) of Bestway

Cement Limited as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf

at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on and at

any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2015.

1. Witness:

Signature

AFFIX
Name REVENUE
Address STAMP

2. Witness: Signature

Signature {Slgnatt.fre appendqd abO\fe should

agree with the specimen signatures
Name registered with the Company.)
Address

important:

1. This form of proxy, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the
Company, 19-A, College Road, F-7 Markaz, Islamabad not less than 48 hours before the time of
holding meeting.

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he/she himself/herself is a member of the Company, except
that a corporation may appoint a person who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxy is deposited by

the member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

For CDC Account Holders the following requirements have to be met:

(M
(i)

(iii)
(iv)

The form of proxy shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the form of proxy.

The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith the form of proxy to the
Company.
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The Company Secretary

Bestway Cement Limited

Bestway Building, 19-A, College Road,
F-7 Markaz, Islamabad.
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BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

A Company of Bestway Group (UK)
Bestway Building, 19-A, College Road, 3
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